JOHNSON CONTROLS INC

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 12/9/2005 For Period Ending 9/30/2005

Address 5757 N GREEN BAY AVENUE P O BOX 591

MILWAUKEE, Wisconsin 53201
Telephone 414-524-1200
CIK 0000053669
Industry Auto & Truck Parts
Sector Consumer Cyclical
Fiscal Year 09/30

Pty LRG L
© Capyight 2005 All Rights Aeserved
Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Onling’s Terms of Use







Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

™ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 20(

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 1-5097

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cagrt

Wisconsin 39-038001C
(State of Incorporation) (I.LR.S. Employer
Identification No.)
5757 N. Green Bay Avenue 53201
P.O. Box 591 (Zip Code)

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
(Address of principal executive office

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
(414) 524-1200

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tfe Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registere
Common Stock, $.(-1/6 par value New York Stock Exchang
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) tife Act:
None

Indicate by check mark whether the regist(ahhas filed all reports required to be filed®gction 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiech shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastiags. Yesv NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of dglient filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation $K&ot contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgeléfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 11l of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-KM

Indicate by check mark whether the registimain accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12if-the Act). YesiM NoO
Indicate by check mark whether the registimat well-known seasoned issuer, as defined ie R0b of the Securities Act.  Yé&4
NoO
Indicate by check mark if the registranta required to file reports pursuant to Sectiorol$ection 15(d) of the Act.  Ydd
No 4
Indicate by check mark whether the registigat shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 efAbt). YesO No ™M

The aggregate market value of the registsasttck held by non-affiliates of the registrant\darch 31, 2005 was approximately
$10.7 billion.

192,972,870 shares of the registrant’s Com8tork, par value $0.04 s per share, were outstanding on October 31, 2005.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Part Ill incorporates by reference portiohthe Proxy Statement dated and filed with the 8es and Exchange Commission on
December 12, 2005.




ITEM 1.
ITEM 2.
ITEM 3.
ITEM 4.

ITEM 5.

ITEM 6.
ITEM 7.

ITEM 7A.
ITEM 8.
ITEM 9.
ITEM 9A.
ITEM 9B.

ITEM 10.
ITEM 11.
ITEM 12.
ITEM 13.
ITEM 14.

ITEM 15.
SIGNATURES
INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Restricted Stock Pla
Restricted Stock Plan

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

Index to Annual Report on Form 10-K
Year Ended September 30, 2005

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS FOR FORWARILOOKING INFORMATION
PART I.

BUSINESS

PROPERTIES

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITHOLDERS

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRAN

PART II.

MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATE STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION:!
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
DISAGREEMENTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSUR
CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE
OTHER INFORMATION

PART III.
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRAT
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANMANAGEMENT
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTION¢
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICE

PART IV.
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Statement Regarding Computation of Ratio of Eamilog-ixed Charge

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
302 Certification of Chief Executive Offici

302 Certification of Chief Financial Offict

906 Certifications of CEO and CF

Page

12
14
14

16
18

19
40
41
89
89
91

91
91
91
91
91

92
93
94




Table of Contents

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS FOR FORWARD -LOOKING INFORMATION

Johnson Contrals, Inc. (“the Company”) haslenforward-looking statements in this documentagieinig to its financial results for fiscal
2006 and future years that are based on prelimidaty and are subject to risks and uncertainti#st@&tements other than statements of
historical fact are statements that are or coulddmmed forward-looking statements, including infation concerning possible or assumed
future risks. For those statements, the Compantiaceithat numerous important factors, such asonepletion of the acquisition of York
International Corporation in December 2005, autdweotehicle production levels and schedules, thktalo increase prices due to higher
raw material costs, the strength of the U.S. oeo#dtonomies, currency exchange rates, the Compeffgctive tax rate, cancellation of
commercial contracts, as well as those factoraudsed in the Company’s Form 8-K filing (dated Oetob, 2005), could affect the
Company’s actual results and could cause its actuadolidated results to differ materially from slecexpressed in any forward-looking
statement made by, or on behalf of, the Company.

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES

On April 1, 2005, the Company deconsolidaddorth American interior experience joint ventaeeit was determined the Company no
longer had effective control over the venture’'sragiag activities. Subsequent to April 1, 2005, @@mpany determined that based on
SFAS 94, “Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subgries,” the joint venture should not have beemsotidated in prior periods. As such,
the Company’s financial statements have been esstataccount for the joint venture on an equitsidan accordance with APB 18, “The
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in CommiStock” for all periods prior to April 1, 2005h& deconsolidation had no impact on
previously reported income from continuing openasionet income or earnings per share. Prior yesailteeof operations, financial position,
cash flows and other financial information includedhe following Form 10-K have been restatedetibect the current year’s presentation.

Subsequent to September 30, 2005, the Conigdantified intercompany subsidiary upstream guees) issued March 21, 2001,
applicable to certain third-party debt of the CompaBased upon the nature of these guarantee€dimpany has determined that condensed
guarantor subsidiary financial statement informasbould have been disclosed in its previouslgfilgerim and annual financial statements
since the issuance of the guarantees. As a résellGompany has restated its fiscal 2004 and f&@@8 consolidated financial statements to
include these required disclosures. As the restaténelates only to the disclosure of guarantaarfaial information, the previously reported
amounts in the Consolidated Statement of Incometam€onsolidated Statement of Financial Positeanain unchanged.

PART |

ITEM 1 BUSINESS

General Development of Business

Johnson Contrals, Inc. is a Wisconsin corfionaorganized in 1885. Its principal office is &ed at 5757 North Green Bay Avenue, P.O.
Box 591, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53201. From 1885 tigin 1978, the Company’s operations were predoniinanthe building efficiency
business. Since 1978, the Company’s operations e diversified through acquisitions and integrawth. The Company operates in
three primary businesses: building efficiency, ilcteexperience, and power solutions (the busiressze formerly referred to as Controls
Group, Seating and Interiors Group, and BatteryuBroespectively).

The building efficiency business is a glolvearket leader in providing installed building cattsystems and technical and facility
management services, including comfort, energysaedrity management for the non-residential bugdimarket. The business’s installed
systems integrate the management, operation aricbtohbuilding control systems such as tempemgtuentilation, humidity, fire safety and
security. The business’s technical and facility agament services provide a complete suite of iatedgrsolutions to improve building
operations and maintenance.




Table of Contents

In 1985, the Company entered the automotadiisg market through the acquisition of Hooverwgnsal, Inc. During the late 1990’s, the
Company expanded into additional interior systemsgeographic markets. The Company’s automotivéngeand interior systems business
operates under the name interior experience, an@timpany is among the world’s largest automotiykers. Interior experience provides
seating, instrument panel, overhead, floor conantedoor systems to more than 35 million vehictewally.

In 1978, the Company entered the North Anaericattery market through the acquisition of Glabeen, Inc. and grew in this market
through internal growth and strategic acquisitioifse Company’s power solutions business servic#sdutomotive original equipment
manufacturers and the general vehicle batteryraftgtet by providing advanced battery technologypbed with systems engineering,
marketing and service expertise. The Company pexiowre than 110 million lead-acid batteries arlpuahd offers nickel-metal-hydride
and lithium-ion battery technology to power hybvighicles.

Recent Developments

On August 24, 2005, the Company enteredardefinitive agreement to acquire York Internaticd@arporation (York), a global supplier
of heating, ventilation, air-conditioning and rgiration equipment and services. York, which isdgeartered in York, Pennsylvania,
reported revenues of $4.5 billion for the year ehDecember 31, 2004, and has approximately 23,6G0ayees. As of December 1, 2005,
the Company expects to complete the acquisiticliedsat approximately $3.2 billion, including thesamption of approximately
$800 million of York debt, in December 2005. Untlez terms of the all cash transaction, the Compahyacquire all outstanding common
shares of York for $56.50 per share. The total caghired to complete the transaction is approxéfyeh2.5 billion, which includes payment
for common shares, transaction fees and expenkesadquisition will be initially financed with sttderm borrowings, which the Company
intends to refinance with long term debt.

Financial Information About Business Segments

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about SegmenendEnterprise and Related Information” establishesstandards for reporting information
about operating segments in financial statememisr&@ing segments are defined as components aftarpése for which separate financial
information is available and is evaluated regul@shthe chief operating decision maker in decidiog to allocate resources and in assessing
performance. The Company’s chief operating decigiaker is its Chief Executive Officer.

Using these criteria, the Company has deterththat it has six operating segments, two of lvhie aggregated in the power solutions
segment under the accounting standard to arritteea€ompany’s five reportable segments for findrreiporting purposes. The Company’s
reportable segments are building efficiency, imteeixperience — North America, interior experieredeurope, interior experience — Asia
and power solutions. The power solutions North Aonzar and European operations are aggregated fortieg purposes due to their similar
economic characteristics and similar customers th@dimilar nature of their products, productisagesses, and distribution channels.

Refer to Note 20, “Segment information,” bétNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenfsages 77-79 for financial information
about business segments.

For purposes of the following discussiontef Company’s businesses, the three interior expegisegments are presented together due t
their similar customers and the similar natureheirt products, production processes, and distobuthannels.

Products/ Systems and Services

Building efficiency

Building efficiency is a major worldwide supmgp of installed control systems and technical &awility management services which
improve the comfort, fire-safety, security, prodvity, energy efficiency, and cost-effectivenessioh-residential buildings. The Company
provides control systems that monitor, automateiategrate critical building operating equipmentia@onditions. These systems are
customized to address
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each building’s unique design and use. Buildingcifhicy provides a broad range of technical andifiaenanagement services that
supplement or function as in-house building steéfchnical services include the operation, schedulamhtenance and repair of building
equipment such as control systems, chillers aniéfsoiFacility management services provide onstiéf for complete facility operations and
management.

The business sells directly to building ovenas well as contractors. It employs sales, engimgeand service personnel working out of
approximately 300 branch offices located in apprately 45 countries throughout the world. Buildaf§iciency employees also work full-
time at numerous customer sites.

Building efficiency also sells its controlssgms and products to original equipment manufactymwholesalers and distributors of air-
conditioning and refrigeration systems and comna¢toeating systems. Building efficiency products avanufactured throughout the world
(see Item 2 “Properties”). The segment also hatsafigrowned affiliates in Asia, Europe, North Aniea and South America.

Worldwide, approximately 45 percent of builgiefficiency’s sales are derived from installedteol systems and approximately
55 percent originate from its service offerings.tk¥ installed control systems, approximately 3&@et of revenues are derived from the 1
construction market while 65 percent are derivedifthe existing buildings market. In fiscal 2008ilthing efficiency sales accounted for
21% of the Company’s consolidated sales.

Interior experience

Interior experience designs and manufactpreducts and systems for passenger cars and fligikst including vans, pick-up trucks and
sport/crossover utility vehicles. The business poed automotive interior systems for original equépt manufacturers and operates
approximately 240 wholly- and majority-owned marataing or assembly plants in 30 countries worldgee Item 2 “Properties”).
Additionally, the business has partially-ownedl&fes in Asia, Europe, North America and South Ainse

Interior experience systems and productaidelcomplete seating systems and components; ¢asigiems, including instrument clust
information displays and body controllers; overhegstems, including headliners and electronic coieree features; floor consoles; and
door systems. Interior experience sales accountegpiproximately 68 percent of total fiscal 2005 sedes.

The business operates assembly plants tpptysautomotive manufacturers with complete seata tjust-in-time/in-sequence” basis.
Seats are assembled to specific order and deliveredpredetermined schedule directly to an autmmaissembly line. Certain of the
business’s other automotive interior systems ae slipplied on a “just-in-time/in-sequence” baB®am and metal seating components, seat
covers, seat mechanisms and other componentsippedho these plants from the business’s produdtoilities or outside suppliers.

The business has substantially grown itgimteystems capabilities through internal growitted by acquisitions. In fiscal 2002, the
business expanded its capabilities in vehicle meats with its acquisition of the automotive eteaics business of France-based Sagem SA.
In fiscal 2003, the Company acquired Borg InstrutaéXG, an automotive electronics company with headeggrs in Germany.

Power solutions

Power solutions services both automotiveinaigequipment manufacturers and the battery afieket by providing advanced battery
technology, coupled with systems engineering, ntaryeand service expertise. The Company is theeltrgutomotive battery manufacture
the world, producing more than 110 million leadedsatteries annually. Investments in new produdtocess technology have expanded
product offerings to nickel-metal-hydride and lithi-ion battery technology to power hybrid vehicles.

Sales of automotive batteries generated 1fitectotal fiscal 2005 sales. In fiscal 2002, pos@utions expanded its battery operations
into the European market through the acquisitiothefGerman automotive battery manufacturer Hoppéakomotive GmbH and Co. KG.
In fiscal 2003, the Company continued its expangitm the European market with its acquisition &RTA Automotive GmbH and the
80 percent
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majority ownership in VB Autobatterie GmbH (collegly “VARTA”"), a major European automotive battamanufacturer headquartered in
Germany. In fiscal 2004, the Company acquired ¢émeaining 51 percent interest in its Latin Amerigaint venture with Grupo IMSA, S.A.
de C. V. More recently, in fiscal 2005, the Companyuired Delphi Corporation’s global battery besis and received a global long-term
contract to supply General Motors with original gopent and original equipment service batterie® dtquisitions support the Company’s
growth strategies and provide new opportunitiesttengthen the Company’s global leadership positidghe automotive battery industry.
Batteries and plastic battery containers are matwufad at plants in North America, South Americaigfand Europe and via a partially-
owned affiliate in India (see Item 2 “Properties”).

Major Customers and Competition

As described previously, the Company is aomsipplier to the automotive industry. Salessaigjor customers, as a percentage of
consolidated net sales, were as follows for thetmezent three-year period:

Customer 2005 2004 2003

General Motors Corporatic 14% 14% 15%
DaimlerChrysler AC 11% 11% 12%
Ford Motor Compan 11% 14% 12%

In fiscal 2005, approximately 15% of the Ca@np's consolidated net sales to these manufactargimated in the United States.
Approximately 42% of the Company’s sales to thesaufacturers originated in the United States, 458tevbased in Europe and 13% were
attributable to other foreign markets. Becausdnefilnportance of new vehicle sales of major autdraghanufacturers to its operations, the
Company is affected by general business condifioitsis industry. Sales to additional automakersaal 2005 that accounted for more than
five percent of Company sales included Nissan M@tor, Ltd. and Volkswagen AG. The Company is alseagor supplier to Toyota Motor
Corporation directly and through its unconsolidgtgdt ventures.

Building efficiency

The building efficiency business conductojierations through thousands of individual contsrdéitat are either negotiated or awarded on
a competitive basis. Key factors in the award efalfation contracts include system and servicditguarice, reputation, technology,
application engineering capability and constructizamagement expertise. Competition for contraatsidies many regional, national and
international controls providers; larger compestor the control systems market include Honeyws#inational and Siemens Building
Technologies (of Siemens AG). The services maskhighly fragmented, with no one company being dami. Sales of these services are
largely dependent upon numerous individual congradgth commercial businesses worldwide; the losanyf individual contract would not
have a materially adverse effect on the Company.

Interior experience

The interior experience business faces catigrefrom other automotive parts suppliers andhwespect to certain products, from the
automobile manufacturers who produce or have tpalulity to produce certain products the business@ply. Competition is based on
technology, quality, reliability of delivery andipe. Design, engineering and product planning aecesiasingly important factors. Independent
suppliers that represent the principal interiorexignce competitors include Lear Corporation, Feiardntier Automotive, Delphi Corporati
and Visteon Corporation.

Power solutions

Approximately 80 percent of automotive batteales worldwide in fiscal 2005 were to the auttweoreplacement market, with the
remaining sales to the original equipment marketvét solutions is the principal supplier of batsrto many of the largest merchants in the
battery aftermarket, including Advance
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Auto Parts, AutoZone, Bosch Group, Costco, IntéesBattery System of America, Pep Boys, Sears, Rdel Co and Wal-Matrt stores.
Automotive batteries are sold throughout the waorider private label and under the Company’s bramdes Optima®, Varta®, LTH® and
Heliar® to automotive replacement battery retaiberd distributors and to automobile manufactursrsrainal equipment. The power
solutions business primarily competes in the battearket with Exide Technologies, GS Yuasa, EaanRdanufacturing Company and
Fiamm.

Backlog

The Company’s backlog relating to the buigdefficiency segment is applicable to its salemsfalled systems and technical service
activity, accounted for using the percentage-of-gi@tion method. In accordance with customary ingustactice, customers are progress
billed on an estimated basis as work proceedsefiteégnber 30, 2005, the unearned backlog to be teckwithin the next fiscal year was
$1.93 billion, compared with the prior year's $1/8Hion. The preceding data does not include anwassociated with facility management
service contracts because such contracts are biypicalti-year service awards. The backlog amourtstanding at any given time is not
necessarily indicative of the amount of revenubde@arned in the coming fiscal period.

At September 30, 2005, the Company'’s integigrerience business had an incremental backlogwforders for its seating & interior
systems, net of discontinued programs, to be egdownithin the next fiscal year of approximatelyZhillion, including unconsolidated joint
venture revenues. The backlog one year ago wasxppmately $2.3 billion. The decrease is primarilyedo lower volumes in Asia, the sale
a business unit and unfavorable exchange ratesaraapo the prior year. The automotive backlogeisegally subject to a number of risks
and uncertainties, such as related vehicle prooluetblumes and the timing of related productiomizhes.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used by the interior experiearud power solutions businesses in connection itgithutomotive seating & interior systems
and battery operations, including steel, urethdmericals, lead, sulfuric acid and polypropyleneteareadily available during the year and
such availability is expected to continue. Costsetain commodities, such as steel, resin andthegtdose significantly in 2005, are expec
to remain stable or moderately soften in the upoagnfiscal year. The building efficiency businessds dependent upon any single source of
supply for essential materials, parts or components

Intellectual Property

Generally, the Company seeks statutory ptioteéor strategic or financially important intetieial property developed in connection with
its business. Certain intellectual property, whegspropriate, is protected by contracts, licensesfidentiality or other agreements.

The Company owns numerous U.S. and foreigents (and their respective counterparts), the imopertant of which cover those
technologies and inventions embodied in currentlpets, or which are used in the manufacture ofahpreducts. While the Company
believes patents are important to its businessatipes and in the aggregate constitute a valuatdetano single patent, or group of patents, is
critical to the success of the business. The Comnfesm time to time, grants licenses under itepts and technology and receives licenses
under patents and technology of others.

The Company has numerous registered tradenratke United States and in many foreign cousitiléne most important of these marks
include “JOHNSON CONTROLS” (including a stylizedrsmn thereof), “JCI” and “JOHNSON.” These marke aidely used in connection
with certain of its product lines and services. Tiaglemarks and service marks “PENN,” “METASYS,"”ARDKEY,” “HOMELINK,” the
HomeLink House Icon, “AUTOVISION,” “TRAVELNOTE,” “BRUECONNECT,” “RAILPORT,” “OPTIMA,” the Optima Trad®ress,
“VARTA,” “LTH,” “HELIAR,” “INSPIRA” and others are used in connection with certain Gomproduct lines and services. The Comj
also markets automotive batteries under the lickrselemarks “EVEREADY,” “ENERGIZER” and “FREEDOM.”

7
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Most works of authorship produced for the @amy, such as computer programs, catalogs andlgatesure, carry appropriate notices
indicating the Company’s claim to copyright protestunder U.S. law and appropriate internationedties.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Laws addressing the protection of the envirent (Environmental Laws) and workers’ safety aadlth (Worker Safety Laws) govern the
Company’s ongoing global operations. They genegaibvide for civil and criminal penalties, as wadl injunctive and remedial relief, for
noncompliance or require remediation of sites wiGwmpany-related materials have been releasedhatenvironment.

The Company has expended substantial resogtabally, both financial and managerial, to coynpith Environmental Laws and Work
Safety Laws and maintains procedures designedsterfand ensure compliance. Certain of the Compamnysinesses are or have been
engaged in the handling or use of substances thatimpact workplace health and safety or the emwirent. The Company is committed to
protecting its workers and the environment agahmstisks associated with these substances.

The Company operations and facilities have been, and inuheé may become, the subject of formal or inforard@brcement actions
proceedings for noncompliance with such laws ottierremediation of Company-related substanceasetkinto the environment. Such
matters typically are resolved by negotiation wihulatory authorities that result in commitmentsdmpliance, abatement, or remediation
programs and, in some cases, payment of penadfistarically, neither such commitments nor suchaies have been material. (See Item 3
“Legal Proceedings” of this report for a discussidithe Company’s potential environmental liabéi)

Environmental Capital Expenditures

The Company’s ongoing environmental complkapmgram often results in capital expenditurevifBnmental considerations are a part
of all significant capital expenditures; howevetpenditures in 2005 related solely to environmeotahpliance were not material. It is
management’s opinion that the amount of any futaygtal expenditures related solely to environmiecaenpliance will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company'’s financial resultsompetitive position in any one year.

Employees

As of September 30, 2005, the Company emplaypproximately 114,000 employees, of whom appraséty 72,000 were hourly and
42,000 were salaried.

Seasonal Factors

Sales of automotive seating & interior systeand batteries to automobile manufacturers foragsariginal equipment are dependent upon
the demand for new automobiles. Management beligagslemand for new automobiles generally refleetssitivity to overall economic
conditions with no material seasonal effect. Thmuotive replacement battery market is affectedvibgther patterns because batteries are
more likely to fail when extremely low temperatup@ace substantial additional power requirementsupvehicle’s electrical system. Also,
battery life is shortened by extremely high tempees, which accelerate corrosion rates. Theretotieer mild winter or moderate summer
temperatures may adversely affect automotive reph@nt battery sales.

Building efficiency’s activities are executed a relatively continuous basis, with no sigrificfluctuation in revenues during the year.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Refer to Note 20, “Segment information,” bétNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenisages 77-79 for financial information
about geographic areas.
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Research and Development Expenditures

Refer to Note 15, “Research and developmaeritifie Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statémen page 71 for research and
development expenditures.

Available Information

The Company’s filings with the Securities @&dhange Commission (SEC), including annual repant Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, definitive proxy statements on Scheddl&, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendminthose reports filed pursuant to
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, are magdable free of charge through the Investor Retaisection of the Company’s Internet
website at http://www.johnsoncontrols.ca@® soon as reasonably practicable after the Comglantronically files such material with, or
furnishes it to, the SEC. Copies of any materiaés@ompany files with the SEC can also be obtafremlof charge through the SEGVvebsiti
at http://www.sec.goy at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F StkeE., Washington, D.C. 20549, or by calling 8&C’s Public
Reference Room at 1-800-732-0330. The Companynadd@s available, free of charge, its Ethics Pol@ysporate Governance Guidelines,
committee charters and other information relatetthéoCompany on the Company’s Internet websit@ @rinted form upon request. The
Company is not including the information contairmedthe Company’s website as a part of, or incotjpayat by reference into, this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

At September 30, 2005, the Company condutdezperations in 35 countries throughout the waslidh its world headquarters located in
Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The Company’s wholly- and andy-owned facilities, which are listed in the kalon the following pages by business
and location, totaled approximately 78 million scigeet of floor space and are owned by the Companogpt as noted. The facilities
primarily consisted of manufacturing, assembly and/arehouse space, except where noted that thigyfaas administrative space. The
Company considers its facilities to be suitable adéquate. The majority of the facilities are oppgaat normal levels based on capacity.

In addition, approximately 300 building eféincy branch offices, located in major cities thgbaut the world, are either owned or leased.
These offices vary in size in proportion to thewok of business in the particular locality.

Johnson Controls, Inc.
Properties at September 30, 2005
Interior experience

Alabama Cottondale(1),(3 Michigan Ann Arbor(4)
Eastabogi Battle Creek(3
California Livermore(2),(3) Canton(1)
Georgia Norcross(1, Dearborn (1),(4
Suwanee(1 Detroit(3)
lllinois Sycamore(2),(3 Holland(2),(3)
Indiana Ossian Mt. Clemens(1),(3
Kentucky Bardstown(3! Plymouth(2),(3)
Cadiz(3) Rockwood(3)
Georgetown(3 Taylor(1),(3)
Glasgow(3) Warren(1)
Shelbyville(1) Zeeland(1),(3
Winchester(1 Mississippi Madison
Louisiana Shrevepor Missouri Earth City(1),(3)

Jefferson City(3
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New Jerse!
Ohio

Oklahoma
Tennesse

Texas
Virginia
Wisconsin
Argentina
Australia
Austria
Belgium

Brazil

Canade

China

Czech Republi

France

Dayton(1),(3)
Greenfield
Northwood
Oberlin(1),(3)

West Carrollton(1
Oklahoma City(3'
Athens(2)
Lexington(3)
Murfreesboro(2
Pulaski(2),(3]

El Paso(1),(3
Chesapeake(:
Hudson(1),(3’
Buenos Aires(1
Rosario
Adelaide(1),(3;
Melbourne(2)
Graz(1),(3)
Mandling(3)

Geel(3)

Gent(1),(3)
Gravatai(3)

Juiz De Fora(1
Pouso Alegre¢

Santo Andre

Sao Bernardo do Campo(
Sao Jose dos Camp
Sao Jose dos Pinhais
Milton(1),(3)
Mississauga(1),(c
Orangeville

Saint Mary's
Tecumsel
Tilsonburg(3)
Whitby

Beijing(3)
Shanghai(1),(4
Benatky nad Jizerou(1),(:
Ceska Lipa(2),(3
Mlada Boleslav(1),(3
Roudnice(2),(3

Rychnov nad Kneznou(1),(:

Straz pod Ralskem(:
Brioude(1),(3)
Cergy-Pontoise(4
Conflans(3)
Creutzwald(2),(3
Harnes(3!

La Ferte Bernard(1),(%
Les Ulis(1),(4)
Rosny-sul-Seine(1),(3
Schweighous-sul-Moder(3)
Strasbourg(3

10

Germany

Hungary

Italy

Japar

Korea

Malaysia

Mexico

Boblingen(1),(3]
Bochum(1),(3]
Bremen(1),(3
Burscheid(2),(3
Espelkamp(3
Grefrath(1),(3]
Hannover(1),(3
Karlsruhe(4)
Lahnwerk(2),(3]
Luneburg
Neustadt(3
Rastatt(1),(3
Remchingen(3
Schwalbach(1
Sindelfingen(1),(4
Uberherrn(1),(3
Unterriexingen(2),(3
Waghausel(3
Weyhausen(1),(4
Wuppertal(2),(3;
Zwickau(3)

Pilis

Solymar(2)
Melfi(1),(3)
Potenza(1),(4
Rocca ['Evandro(1)
Salerno(3]
Turin(1),(3)
Ayase(3)
Fukuoka
Hamakita

Mouka
Nagoya(1),(4.
Yokosuka(2)
Ansan(1),(4,
Asan(3)
Dangjin(3)
Hwasung
Jeongeup(1
Namsa(1
Yongin(2)

Johor Bahrt
Melacca

Pekan(1

Perak

Shah Alam(3
Juarez
Monclova(3)
Naucalpan de Juarez(
Puebla(2),(3
Ramos Arizpe
Tlaxcala(3)
Tlazala(1)
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Netherlands
Poland
Portugal
Romanis
Russia

Singapore
Slovak Republic

Slovenia
South Africa

Spain

Sweder

Thailand
Tunisia
United Kingdom

Sittard(1),(3)
Bierun(3)

Nelas(3)
Portalegre(3
Mioveni(1),(3)
Ploiesti(3)
Moscow(4)

St. Petersburg(1),(
Singapore(1),(4
Bratislava(1),(3’
Kostany nad Turcom(:
Slovenj Gradec(1),(<
East London(1

Port Elizabeth(1),(3
Pretoria(2),(3
Uitenhage(1
Alagon(3)
Barcelona(3
Madrid(1),(3)
Valencia(2),(3
Valladolid
Zaragoza(3
Goteborg(1),(4
Stockholm(1),(4
Rayong(3)

Bi'r al Bay(3)

Burtor-Upor-Trent(2),(3)

Chelmsford(1),(3
Leamington Spa(1),(:
Liverpool(2),(3)
Sunderlanc
Telford(2),(3)
Wednesbury(3

Power solutions

California
Colorado
Delaware
Florida

lllinois

Indiana

lowa
Kentucky
Missouri

North Caroling
Ohio

Oregon

South Carolin¢
Texas

Wisconsin
Austria

Fullerton(1),(3)
Aurora(2),(3)
Middletown(2),(3)
Tampa(2),(3
Geneva(3

Ft. Wayne(3

Red Oak(3
Florence(1),(3

St. Joseph(2),(¢
Winstor-Salem(2),(3’
Toledo(3)
Portland(3)
Oconee(2),(3

Ft. Worth(1),(4)
San Antonio(1,
Milwaukee(1),(3)
Innsbruck(1),(4
Klagenfurt(1),(4)
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Austria (cont.)

Belgium

Brazil

China

Czech Republi
France

Germany

Hungary
Italy
Korea
Mexico

Netherlands
Poland

Slovak Republic
Spain

Sweder

Switzerlanc
United Kingdom

Linz(1),(4)
Salzburg(1),(4
Brussels(1),(3
Sorocaba(3
Shanghai(2
Ceska Lipa(3
Courbevoie(1),(4
Rouen
Sarreguemines(:
Hannover(3'
Krautscheid(3
Otzenhause
Rastatt(1’
Zwickau (2),(3)
Budapest(1),(3
Milan(1),(4)
Gumi

Celaya(3)
Cienega de Flore
Escobedc
Monterrey(2),(3;
Torreon
Rotterdam(1),(4
Katowice(1),(4)
Warsaw(1)
Trnava(l)
Burgos(3)
Guadalajara(1),(4
Guadamar del Segu
Madrid(1),(4)
Danderyd(1),(4
Hultsfred(2)
Regensdorf(1),(4
Denham(1),(4

Building efficiency

Alabama
California

Connecticu
Florida

Georgia
lllinois
Indiana
Kentucky
Maryland

Massachusetl
New Jerse!

Huntsville(1),(4)

El Segundo(1),(4
Newport Beach(1),(4
San Francisco(1),(«
Stamford(1),(4

Fort Lauderdale(1),(4
Jacksonville(1),(4
Atlanta(1),(4)

Oak Brook(1),(4
Goshen(1),(3
Erlanger(1),(4.
Bowie(1),(4)
Gaithersburg(1),(4
Loveville(1)
Framingham(2),(4
Iselin(1),(4)
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New York Melville(1),(4) Japan (cont. Saitama(1),(4
New York(1),(4) Tokyo(1),(4)
Ohio Beachwood(1),(4 Yokohama(1),(4
Pennsylvani: Conshohocken(1),(« Korea Seoul(1),(4;
Philadelphia(1),(4 Malaysia Kuala Lumpur(1),(4
Pittsburgh(1),(4 Mexico Cuidad Juarez(1),(:
Texas Houston(1),(4 Irapuato(1),(4
Pharr(1),(4, Reynosa(3
Virginia Vienna(1),(4) Netherland: Gorinchem(1),(4
Washington D.C.(1),(4) Leeuwarden(3
Washingtor Bellevue(1),(4, Norway Oslo(1),(4)
Wisconsin Milwaukee(2),(4) Philippines Mandaluyong(1),(4
Watertown(1),(3' Poland Poznan(1),(4
Australia Sydney(1),(4 Warsaw(1),(4
Austria Vienna(1),(4) Russia Moscow(1),(4)
Belgium Brussels(1),(4 St. Petersburg(1),(
Diegem(2),(4 Singapore Singapore(1),(4
Brazil Brasilia(1),(4) Slovak Republic Bratislava(1),(4
Canade Kamloops(1),(4 South Africa Randburg(1),(4
Markham(1),(4. Spain Madrid(1),(4)
Ottawa(1),(4, Sweder Danderyd(1),(4
Victoria(1),(4) Switzerlanc Basel(1),(3]
China Beijing(1),(4) Zurich(1),(4)
Hong Kong(1),(4 Thailand Bangkok(1),(4

Czech Republi

Shanghai(1),(3
Shenzhen(1),(4
Tianjin(1),(4)
Prague(1),(4

United Kingdom

Birmingham(1),(4
Cumbernauld(1),(4
Leatherhead(1),(4
London(1),(4)

France Colombes(1),(4 Reading(1),(4
Germany Essen(2),(3 Stockport(1),(4
Hannover(1),(4 Swindon(1),(4,
Hungary Budapest(1),(4 Waterlooville(1),(4)
India Mumbai(1),(4)
Italy Lomagna(3 Corporate
Milan(1),(4) Wisconsin Milwaukee(4)
Japar Chiba(1),(4)
Hiroshima(1),(4, (1) Leased facilitie
Hokkaido(1),(4) (2) Includes both leased and owned facili
Koga(3) (3) Includes both administrative and manufactufanglities
Kyushu(1),(4) (4) Administrative facilities only

Nagoya(1),(4,
Osaka(1),(4

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Environmental Litigation and Proceedings and OtherMatters

As noted previously, liabilities potentiallyise globally under various Environmental Laws atker Safety Laws for activities that are
not in compliance with such laws and for the clgmafisites where Company-related substances harereteased into the environment.

Currently, the Company is responding to atems that it is responsible for performing enmimeental remediation, or for the repayment
of costs spent by governmental entities or otherfopming remediation, at approximately 50 sitethim United States. Many of these sites
landfills used by the Company in the past
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for the disposal of waste materials; others arers#ary lead smelters and lead recycling sites wither€ompany returned lead-containing
materials for recycling; a few involve the clearafgCompany manufacturing facilities; and the renrarfall into miscellaneous categories.
The Company may face similar claims of liabilityaalditional sites in the future. Where potentiabliities are alleged, the Company pursues
a course of action intended to mitigate them.

The Company accrues for potential environidnsses consistent with US generally accepteduatting principles; that is, when it is
probable a loss has been incurred and the amouhé dbss is reasonably estimable. Its reservesrfeironmental costs totaled $65 million
and $61 million at September 30, 2005 and 2004eacts/ely. The Company reviews the status of ttessin a quarterly basis and adjusts its
reserves accordingly. Such potential liabilitiesraed by the Company do not take into considergimssible recoveries of future insurance
proceeds. They do, however, take into accountikietylshare other parties will bear at remediasdas. It is difficult to estimate the
Companys ultimate level of liability at many remediatioites due to the large number of other partiesriat be involved, the complexity
determining the relative liability among those gt the uncertainty as to the nature and scoffeedhvestigations and remediation to be
conducted, the uncertainty in the application @f énd risk assessment, the various choices and assbciated with diverse technologies
may be used in corrective actions at the sitestlamoften quite lengthy periods over which evehtemediation may occur. Nevertheless,
Company has no reason to believe at the preseatthiat any claims, penalties or costs in connedtiitim known environmental matters will
have a material adverse effect on the Companyaniral position, results of operations or cash fiow

The Company is involved in a number of prddiability and various other suits incident to thyeration of its businesses. Insurance
coverages are maintained and estimated costsamalesl for claims and suits of this nature. It Bi@gyemens opinion that none of these v
have a material adverse effect on the Company&niiral position, results of operations or cash fio@osts related to such matters were not
material to the periods presented.

In 1989, Johnson Controls initiated an actiothe Milwaukee County, Wisconsin Circuit Coulthnson Controls, Inc. v. Employers
Insurance of Wauss, which sought reimbursement under comprehensimergéliability insurance policies dating from 19%#ough 1985
for costs relating to certain environmental mattersl995, the Circuit Court dismissed the actiasdd on the Wisconsin Supreme Court’s
decision inCity of Edgerton v. General Casualty Co. of Wis@wriBhe Company twice appealed the case to the Codtppéals and then
petitioned the Wisconsin Supreme Court to reviesvithver courts’ judgments. The Supreme Court grhtite petition and on July 11, 2003,
overruled its decision in thedgertoncase, and found that the comprehensive generdlitiigbsurance policies may provide coverage for
environmental damages. The Supreme Court’s decisimanded the case to the Circuit Court for furtmrsideration. In fiscal 2005, the
Company filed a motion for declaratory judgmentwinich it seeks a ruling that one of its insurersaghed its duty to defend, thus waiving
defenses against the Company’s environmental cldliifms ultimate outcome cannot be determined atithis; however, the Company
expects a decision on its motion during fiscal 2006

In 2003, the Company was involved in an asise®lease during the renovation of a buildingakeland, Florida. Following an
investigation, the U.S. EPA turned its findings otethe U.S. Attorney for the Middle District ofdfida. In November 2005, the
U.S. Attorney advised the Company that it is coasidy proceedings against the Company, includinggedings that would involve criminal
charges pursuant to Section 113(c) of the ClearAiy 42 U.S.C. §413(c), and Section 103 of the Comprehensive Bnuiental Respons
Compensation, and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. § 10BeTCompany believes the release was totally inaelveand does not believe this should
be a criminal matter. The Company also believesahg monetary sanctions resulting from the U.Sorsey’s pursuit of this matter would
not be material.

On October 27, 2005, the Independent Ing@mynmittee into the United Nations Oil-for-Food Praxgme published its Report on
Programme Manipulation. It alleges that illegalkkiacks to the Iragi government were paid by 2,258manies. A subsidiary of York, York
Air Conditioner and Refrigeration
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FZE, is alleged to have paid $647,110 on six hutagian goods contracts totaling $7,216,413. Yonkdrwted a preliminary investigation
into these allegations, with the Company’s oversiylork, with the concurrence of the Company, restjeé a meeting with the U.S.
Department of Justice (DOJ) and the Securitieskarthange Commission to discuss the results ofrtxestigation to date, and
representatives of the Company and York attendatohtieeting. The Company intends to cooperate Ww&OJ and the SEC with respect to
this matter.

ITEM 4 SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDER.
No matters were submitted to a vote of s¢éghdlders during the fourth quarter of the fisgahr covered by this report.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of FA0rK, the following list of executive officers die¢ Company as of December 1, 2005 is
included as an unnumbered Item in Part | of thi®rein lieu of being included in the Company’scsyear 2005 Proxy Statement.

John M. Barth 59, became Chairman on January 1, 2004. He watedl President in 1998 and Chief Executive OffareOctober 1
2002. He was elected a member of the Board of Riredn 1997. Previously, Mr. Barth served as Chipkrating Officer and an
Executive Vice President with responsibility foetAutomotive Group. Mr. Barth joined the Companyl 869.

Stephen A. Roell55, became Vice Chairman on May 25, 2005, watedea member of the Board of Directors and Exeeliice
President in 2004 and serves as a member of thee@ffthe CEO. He served as Chief Financial Offlsetween 1991 and 2005.
Previously, he served as Senior Vice Presidentvétea Vice President from 1991 to 1998 and eatered as Corporate Controller and
Treasurer. Mr. Roell joined the Company in 18

Giovanni “John” Fiori , 62, was elected an Executive Vice President 022dhd serves as President of Johnson Controlsatienal
and as a member of the Office of the CEO. Prewound served as President of automotive operatioBsirope, Africa, South America
and Asia and Vice President of automotive seatperations in Europe. Mr. Fiori joined the CompamyL987.

John P. Kennedy62, was elected an Executive Vice President 062hd was appointed President of the Controls Gim2004 ant
has been a member of the Office of the CEO sin€2 28e served as Senior Vice President from 20@D05. He served as Secretary
from 1987 to 2004 and as General Counsel from 182004. He previously served as a Vice PresiddntKennedy joined the
Company in 1984

Keith E. Wandel| 56, was elected an Executive Vice President 352dhd appointed a member of the Office of the QEZD04. He
has served as President of the Automotive Grougedidctober 1, 2003. He served as a Corporate \fesident from 1997 to 2005.
Previously, he served in a number of managemertitignass most recently as President of battery ojma for the Automotive Group a
Vice President and General Manager of the AutoredBvoup’s Starting, Lighting and Ignition Batterwi3ion. Mr. Wandell joined the
Company in 198¢

R. Bruce McDonald 45, was elected Chief Financial Officer on May 2805. He previously served as Assistant Chiefufdmal
Officer and has served as a Corporate Vice Presgilece 2002. He served as Corporate Controlleeshovember 2001 when he joined
the Company. Prior to that time, Mr. McDonald wasé/President of Finance for the automotive busimésS RW Inc. TRW Inc.
supplies automotive systems, modules and compoteatgomotive original equipment manufacturers @atated after-markets
worldwide.

Jeffrey G. Augustin43, was elected a Corporate Vice President amgdCate Controller in March of 2005, the month bie¢d the
Company. Prior to that time, Mr. Augustin was ViReesident of Finance and Corporate Controller dé®ay, Inc. Gateway, Inc. sells
desktop and notebook comput

14




Table of Contents

and servers (PCs), and PC-related products dyold&t. Augustin previously held financial positisnvith Allied Signal/ Honeywell and
IBM.

Beda Bolzenius49, was elected a Vice President November 165 20@ serves as executive vice president and danereager
Europe, Africa and South America for the Automoti¥mup. Dr. Bolzenius joined the Company in 200éradn 18-year career at Robert
Bosch GmbH. Robert Bosch GmbH is a global manufactof automotive and industrial technology, consugoods and building
technology

Susan F. Davis52, was elected Corporate Vice President, Huneso&ces in 1994. Previously, she served as Viesidemt of
Organizational Development for the Automotive Graung the former Plastics Technology Group. Ms. B@ined the Company in
1983.

Jeffrey S. Edwards42, was elected a Corporate Vice President i 200 serves as Group Vice President and Generzhdéa for
Japan and Asia Pacific for the Automotive Grouptgiiors business. Mr. Edwards has served Johneatrds for 20 years in a variety
of automotive sales, manufacturing and engineqogitions.

Charles A. Harvey 53, was elected Vice President of Diversity andlie Affairs November 16, 2005. Mr. Harvey jointt
company in 1991 and previously held a number ofdrunesources leadership assignments in the Cor’s interior experience busine

Sean Major, 41, was elected Assistant Secretary and appofdsistant General Counsel in 2004. He formerlyegmas group Vice
President and General Counsel International. MjoMained the Company in 199

Alex A. Molinaroli, 45, was elected a Corporate Vice President idl 20@ serves as Vice President and General Mafagidorth
America Systems & the Middle East for the Cont@teup. Mr. Molinaroli has worked for Johnson Cotdrimr 22 years and has held
increasing levels of responsibility for controlsgms and services sales and operat

Jerome D. Okarmab53, was named Vice President, Secretary and @e@eunsel in November 2004. He was elected a Catpo
Vice President in September 2003 and served astassiSecretary from 1990 to 2004. He served asif&peneral Counsel from 2000
to 2004. Prior to that he served as Assistant G¢i@ounsel from 1989 to 2000, and previously asu@idice President and General
Counsel of the Controls Group and the Battery Grodip Okarma joined the Company in 19t

Darlene Rose 60, was elected Senior Vice President in 2004. sghved as Vice President Corporate DevelopmehStategy from
1999 to 2004. She previously served as Direct@aporate Benefits and Payroll, and earlier heldagament positions in audit,
financial planning and information technology. NRose was elected a corporate officer in 1999 aimejlthe Company in 196

Gregg M. Sherrill, 52, was elected a Corporate Vice President it 200 serves as Group Vice President and Generzdéa for
the Automotive Group’s battery business. Sinceifgrlohnson Controls seven years ago, he haseiteedsin key interiors management
positions in North America and Eurof

Michael D. Su 46, was elected a Corporate Vice President id 200 serves as Vice President and Managing Diretthe Asia
Pacific region for the Controls Group. Mr. Su hagt with Johnson Controls for 21 years, servingaitious controls management
positions in Asia and North Americ

Subhash “Sam” Valanjy 62, was elected a Corporate Vice President i@ B9 has served as Chief Information Officer sjoggng
the Company in 199t

Frank A. Voltolina, 45, was elected a Corporate Vice President amgdCate Treasurer in July 2003 when he joined then@any.
Prior to that time, Mr. Voltolina was Vice Presidexmd Treasurer at ArvinMeritor, Inc. ArvinMeritdnc. is a global supplier of a broad
range of integrated systems, modules and compotettie motor vehicle industr
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Denise M. Zutz 54, was appointed Vice President of Strategyestr Relations and Communication in 2004. Shefdwaerly
served as Vice President, Corporate Communicatam 1991 to 2004. Ms. Zutz was elected a corpastiteer in 1991. She has served
as Director of Corporate Communication and in otteenmunication positions since joining the Compan$973.

There are no family relationships, as defibgdhe instructions to this item, between the &executive officers.

All officers are elected for terms that expim the date of the meeting of the Board of Dinecfollowing the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders or until their successors are elestddjualified.

PART Il

ITEM 5 MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON STOCK AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Company’s shares are traded on the New Stwck Exchange under the symbol “JCI.”

Number of Record Holders

Title of Class as of October 31, 200!
Common Stock, $.(-1/6 par value 52,50
Common Stock Price Range Dividends
2005 2004 _2005 2004

First Quarte! $ 53.05-63.9¢ $ 47.6(-58.12 $0.28 $0.22¢
Second Quarte 55.25-63.8¢ 56.25-62.3: 0.28  0.22¢
Third Quartel 52.57-58.2( 49.57-60.2( 0.2t 0.22¢
Fourth Quarte 55.8¢-62.7( 50.97-58.01 0.2t 0.22¢
Year $ 52.57-63.9¢ $ 47.6(-62.32 $1.0C $ 0.9C

On November 19, 2003, the Company’s Boariodctors declared a two-for-one stock split of tlienmon stock payable January 2,
2004 to shareholders of record on December 12,.2111i8 stock split resulted in the issuance of apjnately 90.5 million additional shares
of common stock and was accounted for by the teairedfapproximately $7.5 million from common stdokcapital in excess of par value. .
share or per share data in this Form 10-K have bestated to reflect the two-for-one stock split.

The Company has entered into an Equity Swgqeément, dated as of March 18, 2004 (the “Swagé&gent”), with Citibank, N.A.
(“Citibank”). The Company selectively uses equityaps to reduce market risk associated with its Gomstock-based compensation plans,
such as its deferred compensation plans and sfmleaiation rights. These equity compensation liitds increase as the Company’s stock
price increases and decrease as the Company’sggticekdecreases. In contrast, the value of thepSvggieement moves in the opposite
direction of these liabilities, allowing the Compaw fix a portion of the liabilities at a stateshaunt.

Citibank has advised the Company that, imestion with the Swap Agreement, Citibank may pasehshares of the Company’s stock in
the market or in privately negotiated transactiopgo an amount equal to $135 million in aggregaseket value at any given time. The
Company disclaims that Citibank is an “affiliategrghaser” of the Company as such term is defindRile 10b-18(a)(3) under the Securities
Exchange Act or that Citibank is purchasing anyafifor the Company. Although the Swap Agreemestahstated expiration date, the
Company’s intention is to continually renew the $wagreement with Citibank’s consent. The Swap Agreet reduced compensation
expense in the three months ended September 30 B0@pproximately $10 million.
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The following table presents information puanst to Item 703(a) of Regulation S-K regardingrigigurchase of the Company’s common
stock by the Company and purchases of the Compaoysnon stock by Citibank in connection with theapwAgreement during the three
months ended September 30, 2005. The repurchasies Gbmpany’s common stock by the Company relsitdysto stock option and
restricted stock transactions that are treatedashiing repurchases of Company common stock fop@ses of this disclosure.

Total Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Number of Average  Shares Purchased & Value of Shares That
Shares Price Paid  Part of the Publicly May yet be Purchased
Period Purchased per Share  Announced Progranm Under the Program(1)
7/1/05— 7/31/05
Purchases by Compa — — — —
Purchases by Citibar — — — $ 37,352,00
Total — — — $ 37,352,00
8/1/05— 8/31/05
Purchases by Compa 2,69 $ 60.17 — —
Purchases by Citibar — — — $ 33,034,00
Total 2,69: $ 60.1z2 — $ 33,034,00
9/1/05— 9/30/05
Purchases by Compa — — — —
Purchases by Citibar — — — $ 29,515,00
Total — — — $ 29,515,00

(1) The dollar amounts in this column relate gotelthe approximate dollar value of shares that bepurchased under the Swap
Agreement as of the end of the period in ques

The Company has filed as exhibits to this éadrReport on Form 10-K the CEO and CFO certifmadirequired by Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Company also subdchihe Annual CEO certification to the New Yorlko&t Exchange.

The Company’s transfer agent’s contact infatfon is as follows:

Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.,
Shareowner Services Departm
P.O. Box 6485t

St. Paul, MN 551€-0856

(877) 60:-7397
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data refettie results of operations, balance sheet dadiac@nmon share information for the years
ended September 30, 2001 to 2005. The financial lukat been restated to reflect adjustments refatgidcontinued operations (see Note 2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements) and therdadidation of a North American interior experiefjoimt venture (see Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

As of and for the Year Ended September 30,
Restated
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In millions, except per share data)

OPERATING RESULTS

Net sales $ 27,479.. $ 24,603.( $ 21,171. $ 18,781.( $ 17,404.
Operating income (As Reporte $ 1066« $ 1,135: $ 1,028( $ 1,006 $ 872.¢
Operating income (Adjusted $ 1066 $ 1,135 $ 1,028( $ 1,006.. $ 941.€
Income from continuing operatiol $ 7572 % 766.6 $ 644¢ % 583.¢ $ 471.¢
Income from continuing operations (Adjustel $ 7572 0% 766.6 $ 644¢ % 583.¢ $ 533.(
Net income (As Reportes $ 909.« % 817t % 682¢ $ 600t $ 478.:
Net income (Adjusted) $ 909«  $ 817t  $ 682.¢ $ 600t $ 540.¢
Earnings per share from continuing operations (As

Reported’

Basic $ 398 % 40¢ % 357 % 326 $ 2.67

Diluted $ 39C % 39 % 34C % 3.0¢ % 2.52
Earnings per share from continuing operations (8idjd)*

Basic $ 398 % 40¢ $ 357 % 326 $ 3.0Z

Diluted $ 39C $ 39 % 34C % 3.0¢ % 2.8t
Earnings per share (As Report:

Basic $ 474,  $ 43¢ % 3.7t $ 33 % 2.71

Diluted $ 46¢ $ 424 % 36C $ 3.1 % 2.5t
Earnings per share (Adjustec

Basic $ 474 $ 43t % 3.7¢ % 33 % 3.07

Diluted $ 46¢ $ 424  $ 36 $ 3.1 % 2.8¢
Return on average sharehol¢ equity(1) 13% 16% 17% 18% 17%
Capital expenditure $ 664.1 $ 783t $ 606.C $ 4731 % 585.%
Depreciatior $ 613.2 $ 550.2 $ 511«  $ 4821 % 418.7

Number of employee 114,00( 113,00( 108,00( 102,00( 104,00(
FINANCIAL POSITION

Working capital(2 $ 297« $ (421¢ $ (186.0 $ 411y $ (167.9
Total asset $ 16,144.. $ 14,758. $ 12916. $ 10,982. $ 9,710.(
Long-term deb $ 1577% $ 1630¢ $ 17766 $ 1,826 $ 1,394.
Total debt $ 2342:. $ 2670¢6 $ 2354%F $ 1,971 $ 1,819«
Shareholder equity $ 6,058. $ 5206 $ 4261 $ 3499° $ 2,985
Total debt to total capitalizatic 28% 34% 36% 36% 38%
Book value per shai $ 3141 % 2741 $ 232: % 1938 % 16.72
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As of and for the Year Ended September 30,
Restated
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In millions, except per share data)

COMMON SHARE INFORMATION

Dividends per shar $ 1.0C $ 0.9C $ 0.72 $ 0.6€ $ 0.62
Market prices
High $ 63.9¢ $ 6232 $ 50.4 $ 46.6( $ 408t
Low $ 52.5i $ 47.6C $ 34.5¢ $ 32.0¢ $ 232
Weighted average shares (in milliol
Basic 191.¢ 187.7 178.7 176.7 173.€
Diluted 194.% 192.¢ 189.1 188.2 186.(
Number of shareholde 52,96¢ 55,46( 55,82 57,55! 59,70:

*  The adjusted information is presented as if SF¥o. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetsstl been adopted October 1, 1999.
Results have been adjusted to exclude goodwill imation expense of $68.8 million, and the relatebme tax effect, in fiscal 200

(1) Return on average shareholders’ equity (R@Bjasents income from continuing operations dividedverage equity. Income from
continuing operations includes $210 million and #8aillion of restructuring costs in fiscal 2005da2004, respectively. Additionally,
fiscal 2004 includes an $84.4 million Japaneseipargain.

(2) Working capital for 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001 edtekinet assets of discontinued operati

ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Important Disclosures

This discussion summarizes the significaotdiss affecting the consolidated operating restiligncial condition and liquidity of the
Company for the three-year period ended Septenthe2®5. This discussion should be read in conjanatith the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes to the Consolidated FinaBtaé¢ments.

In February 2005, the Company completed &he af its engine electronics business for apprakafy $419 million. The sale of the eng
electronics business resulted in a gain of appratetg $81 million ($51 million after tax), net clated costs. In March 2005, the Company
completed the sale of its Johnson Controls WorldiSes, Inc. subsidiary (World Services) to IAP \Wavide Services, Inc. for
approximately $260 million. The sale of World Sees resulted in a gain of approximately $139 mill{85 million after tax), net of related
costs. Operating results, net assets and lialilitied cash flows have been segregated as discettiperations in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements.

On April 1, 2005, the Company deconsolidaddorth American interior experience joint ventaeeit was determined the Company no
longer had effective control over the venture’'sragiag activities. Subsequent to April 1, 2005, @@mpany determined that based on
SFAS 94, “Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subgries,” the joint venture should not have beemsotidated in prior periods. As such,
the Company’s financial statements have been sgktataccount for the joint venture on an equitsidan accordance with APB 18, “The
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in CommiStock” for all periods prior to April 1, 2005h& deconsolidation had no impact on
previously reported income from continuing openasionet income or earnings per share.

Subsequent to September 30, 2005, the Conigantified intercompany subsidiary upstream guees, issued March 21, 2001,
applicable to certain third party debt of the Compaased upon the nature of these guarantee€dimpany has determined that condensed
guarantor subsidiary financial statement informagbould have been disclosed in its previouslyfilgerim and annual financial statements
since the
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issuance of the guarantees. As a result, the Contparestated its fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 alisteted financial statements to include
these required disclosures. As the restatemeriesetmly to the disclosure of guarantor finanaiébimation, the previously reported amounts
in the Consolidated Statement of Income and thes@laated Statement of Financial Position remaichamged.

Prior year results of operations, financiasition and cash flows noted in the following dission have been restated to reflect the current
year's presentation of the engine electronics busiaessWorld Services as discontinued operations lamdNbrth American interior
experience joint venture as an investment in @gigrowned affiliate.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FISCAL 2005 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2004

Sales
The Company’s net sales for the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

%

2005 2004 Change
(In millions)
Building efficiency $ 5,717. $ 5,323." 7%
Interior experienc— North America 8,498.¢ 8,237 .« 3%
Interior experienc— Europe 8,935.! 7,677.¢ 16%
Interior experienc— Asia 1,399.: 1,092.¢ 28%
Power solution: 2,928.! 2,271. 29%
Total $ 27,479. $ 24,603.( 12%

Consolidated net sales in the current figear were $27.5 billion, increasing 12% above theryear sales of $24.6 billion. Excluding
the favorable effects of currency translation, satereased 9% above the prior year.

Building efficiency

Building efficiency achieved sales of $5.7id in fiscal 2005, 7% above the prior year. Hidihg the favorable effects of currency
translation, sales grew 5% year-over-year.

Building efficiency sales in North America nr@eB% greater than one year ago due to growthstesys installation and services and the
incremental effect of current year acquisitionsst8gns installation sales were up 13% reflectingngtrgrowth in both the existing buildings
and new construction market. Service sales inctbd%ein comparison to the prior year with both lisgcimanagement and technical service
showing slight increases in revenues.

Sales in Europe increased 7% over the paar yreflecting the positive effects of currengnsiation and the growth of facility
management services. System installation sales veenparable to the prior year.

Building efficiency sales in other geograpimarkets, which represent approximately 10% ofségment’s sales, increased 7% compared
to fiscal 2004 due to strong growth in the new tartsion market in Japan.

Orders of installed control systems and texirservices for the year ended September 30, 208eded the prior year level, driven
primarily by growth in the Americas. Orders fortalted control systems were primarily in the donteahd European existing building
markets.
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Interior experience— North Americe

In North America, interior experience salerav$8.5 billion, up 3% versus the prior year. Hiight increase was due to new business
awards and a favorable mix of vehicle platforms pamd to the estimated 2% decrease in the domesdticle production.

Interior experience— Europe

In Europe, interior experience sales wer® $8lion, up 16% versus the prior year sales a7$¥llion. Excluding the positive impact of
currency translation, sales grew 11% year-over-yBae growth was primarily attributable to new gant awards in seating and interior
systems in the current year, growth in electrorée®nue and a slightly positive mix relative to #stimated slight decline in industry
production in Europe over the past fiscal year.

Interior experience— Asia

In Asia, interior experience sales were $illébn, up 28% versus the prior year. Excluding &ffects of currency translation, sales grew
24% year-over-year. The strong growth is primadilye to the introduction of significant new modelslapan by original equipment
manufacturers (OEMs) and strong sales in our sgatisiness in Korea.

Power solution:

Power solutions sales were $2.9 billion, @pe2versus the prior year reflecting strong increasédoth North America and Europe.
Excluding the effects of currency translation, sajeew 27% year-over-year.

North American sales of automotive batteimeseased 35% over last year primarily due to twugsition of the remaining 51% interest
its joint venture with Grupo IMSA, S.A. de C.V. (lim American JV) in the fourth quarter of fiscalaye2004 (see Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements), which added $258 milliosalés in the current year. Sales were also fawiatgacted by the paskrough pricing o
higher lead costs and higher shipments to existirsjomers.

European sales of automotive batteries isg@d 5% over the prior year primarily due to higft@pments to existing customers, the
favorable impact of currency translation, and thessthrough pricing of higher lead costs to custesme

Fiscal 2006 Sales Outlook

For fiscal 2006, management anticipatesribasales will grow to $32 billion, an increaseapproximately 16% from fiscal 2005 net
sales. The growth is expected to be partially offiseunfavorable effects of currency translatiomttze Company assumes the dollar will
strengthen relative to the euro assuming a eurbamge rate of $1.20.

Building efficiency sales are expected taéase approximately 75% over fiscal 2005 due mamthe anticipated revenues resulting
from the acquisition of York International Corpaoat This growth is expected to be partially offegtunfavorable effects of currency
translation.

At September 30, 2005, the unearned backldg texecuted within the next year was $1.93 bill&#% above the prior year's
$1.84 billion. The majority of the increase wasihtttable to the increase in orders in North AmeeriBuilding efficiency’s backlog relates to
its installed control systems and technical seraitévity and is accounted for using the percentafgeompletion (POC) method.

Management anticipates that interior expegesales will be level with fiscal year 2005 anel dfffects of currency translation will be
unfavorable. At September 30, 2005, interior exgreaé had an incremental backlog of net new incrésthbnsiness for its interior systems to
be executed within the next three fiscal years3a8®illion, $1.2 billion of which relates to fidogear 2006. The backlog is generally subject
to a number of risks and uncertainties, such asa@lvehicle production volumes and the timingrofjpction launches.
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Management expects power solutions salesneilbase approximately 15%, due primarily to tbg@uasition of Delphi’s global battery
business on July 1, 2005. This growth is expeciduktpartially offset by unfavorable effects ofremcy translation.

Operating Income
The Company'’s operating income for the fisedrs ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 wad@asdol
%

2005 2004 Change

(In millions)

Building efficiency(1) $ 294.¢ $ 241t 22%
Interior experienc— North America(2) 349.¢ 504.1 (31)%
Interior experienc— Europe(3) 252.¢ 113.( 125%
Interior experienc— Asia(4) 30.C 37.¢ (20)%
Power solutions(5 349.t 237.( 47%
Total 1,276. 1,133.: 13%
Restructuring cost (210.0 (82.9

Japanese pension g: — 84.£

Consolidated Operating Incor $ 1,066. $ 1,135.

(1) Building efficiency operating income excludgsl.3 million and $13.3 million of restructuringste for the year ended September 30,
2005 and 2004, respective

(2) Interior experience — North America operatingome excludes $11.9 million and $5.1 million e$tructuring costs for the year ended
September 30, 2005 and 2004, respecti\

(3) Interior experience — Europe operating inca@reludes $129.6 million and $51.1 million of restring costs for the year ended
September 30, 2005 and 2004, respecti\

(4) Interior experience — Asia operating incomelades $0.4 million of restructuring costs for trear ended September 30, 2005 and a
pension gain of $84.4 million for the year endegt8mber 30, 200¢

(5) Power solutions operating income excludes&dllion and $12.9 million of restructuring cos$ts the year ended September 30, 2005
and 2004, respectivel

Consolidated operating income for fiscal 205 $1.1 billion, 6% below the prior year opergtincome. Included in the current year’s
consolidated operating income was $210 millionestmucturing costs, compared to the prior year Wwhicluded $82 million of restructuring
costs (see Note 16 to the Consolidated FinanciéBients) and an $84 million Japanese pension(gggnNote 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). Excluding the impacts ofdfegementioned restructuring costs and pensiom gansolidated operating income for
fiscal 2005 grew 13% versus the prior year.

Building efficiency

Fiscal 2005 building efficiency operatingamee of $295 million (excluding $51 million of restturing costs), was 22% above the prior
year operating income of $242 million (excluding@$tillion of restructuring costs). The strong grbwias attributable to sales growth ¢
higher gross profit in North America and Europetipdly offset by higher worldwide Selling, generahd administrative (SG&A) expenses.

North American gross profit increased priyadiue to a favorable mix of systems and serviaesness compared to the lower margin
facility management sales. In addition, systemsardice gross margins benefited from improved dmral efficiencies associated with the
Company’s branch office redesign initiative. Eurapgross profits were also higher due to cost raolue and higher facility management
sales. Higher SG&A expenses in North America wenaarily due to acquisitions in the current yeahjeh added approximately $32 millic
of expense in the current fiscal year.
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Interior experience— North Americe

Interior experience — North America operatingopme decreased 31% to $350 million (excluding sillion of restructuring costs),
compared to the prior period operating income d@4s&illion (excluding $5 million of restructuringsts). The decrease of $154 million was
due to selling price reductions and material costdases in excess of cost savings, partially offgdower SG&A expenses.

Lower sales mix of mature vehicle programs sales price reductions under long term agreenvétiithe Company’s customers
exceeded cost reductions and operational efficgsngy $71 million in the period. The lower salex wii mature vehicle programs negatively
impacted results as these sales typically deliverenfavorable margins due to operational efficiea@nd cost reductions that are
implemented throughout the vehicle life cycle. tmtrast, new vehicle programs require significargieeering and start up costs thereby
reducing margins at the onset of the program. Ahpuee reduction renewal negotiations during tkeiqd yielded terms consistent with pi
agreements. It should be noted that price reducionmitments are often made in the context of leoadstomer negotiations on several
factors, including volume, potential new businegpartunities and geographic expansion.

The segment experienced commaodity cost iseeagrimarily steel, resin and chemicals, of agprately $132 million, net of recoveries,
compared to the prior year. The Company continaesitiress fluctuations in commodity costs in thgar through negotiations with both its
customers and suppliers. In order to address fiilwctiations, the Company continues to modify dibeation and terms of its direct material
buy contracts. The Company expects commodity ¢ostfations to continue to impact gross profitistél 2006, with increased cost
pressures from Tier 2 and Tier 3 suppliers offgethe Company’s direct purchase initiatives.

SG&A expenses decreased $49 million in thr@deprimarily due to lower net engineering expensempared to the prior year which
included increased engineering expenses incuriredefe vehicle programs.

Interior experience— Europe

Operating income in Europe was $252 millierc{uding $130 million of restructuring costs) caamgd to $113 million (excluding
$51 million of restructuring costs) in the priorayean increase of $139 million due to increasddmes of higher margin interior systems,
lower launch costs and operational improvementsrttzae than offset the price and commodity costdases and certain higher SG&A
expenses. Excluding the positive impact of foragrrency, operating income increased $125 million.

Implemented cost reductions, operationatigfficies and the higher sales mix of mature velpisdgrams exceeded incremental sales
reductions by approximately $202 million in theipdr The segment benefited from implemented cahictons resulting from the 2005
restructuring plan and continued to benefit from 2003 turnaround program which concentrated ointpementation of best business
practices and six sigma activities on its existipgrations. Annual sales price reduction renewgbtiations during the period yielded terms
consistent with prior agreements.

The incremental effect of commodity costaled approximately $53 million in the period. Thereases were less than those incurred in
North America due to the timing of contract renesahd variations in certain terms of the agreem&@&A expenses increas
approximately $24 million primarily due to higheogram management costs primarily related to pwicigaand information technology
activities, partially offset by lower net enginegriexpenses.

Interior experience— Asia

Operating income in Asia decreased to $30aniin the current year, 20% below the prior yaarount of $38 million. The decrease was
primarily due to start-up and engineering costsaased with new program wins in Japan in the atryear. The net effect of foreign
currency translation was neutral to the segmemi&sating income.
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Power solution:

Power solutions operating income increase®B&D million (excluding $17 million of restructag costs) in the current fiscal year, 47%
above the prior yeas'$237 million (excluding $13 million of restrucing costs). The increase is primarily due to higtedes volumes in bo
the Americas and Europe and the acquisition oféh@aining interest in the Company’s Latin Amerigaint venture in the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2004, which added an additional $24ionilof operating income to the current year. Thever solutions business also benefited
from a favorable product mix in North America amkcational improvements in Europe. The increaseas wartially offset by the
incremental effect of commodity costs, which negasi impacted global operating income by approxeha$8 million net of the benefit fro
the implementation of lead hedges and improved thaesgh of lead costs.

Fiscal 2006 Operating Income Outloc

In fiscal 2006, the Company anticipates thegrall operating margin percentage will be levighviiscal 2005 (excluding restructuring
costs). Management believes that the interior égpee business operating margin percentage waligatly higher, power solutions will be
level and building efficiency will be slightly lowe

Building efficiency operating margin percegador fiscal 2006 is expected to decline compaoettie fiscal 2005 level as the operational
efficiencies associated with the Company’s brarftibeoredesign initiative are expected to be offsgthe seasonality of the York
International Corporation business and non-recgraicquisition costs. As of December 1, 2005 the gomy anticipates closing the York
transaction in early December of 2005, after thekseason for residential air conditioning and inga¢quipment.

The interior experience business’s operatiaggin percentage for fiscal 2006 is expected ¢eeimse slightly compared to fiscal 2005 due
to the benefits of operational efficiencies, restiing, and lower launch costs, which will be ely offset by lower sales prices and
increased employee benefit costs. Interior expeedras supply agreements with certain of its custertihat provide for annual sales price
reductions and, in some instances, for the recosfnyaterial cost increases. The business expeasritinue its historical trend of being able
to significantly offset any sales price change$wibst reductions from design changes and prodtyctmprovements and through similar
programs with its own suppliers.

Management anticipates that the power salatliusiness operating margin percentage will bed \ith fiscal 2005 due to the short-term
dilutive impact of Delphi’s North American operai®and additional investments in new technologies.

Management believes that the Company with alse an increase in healthcare expense on a ioaisdl basis of approximately
$30 million and higher domestic pension expens&3@ million. Pension expense is expected to inergaisnarily due to the decrease in the
U.S. discount rate assumption from 6.25% to 5.50%.

Deconsolidation of a North American Joint Ventui

On April 1, 2005, the Company deconsolidaddorth American interior experience joint ventaeeit was determined the Company no
longer had effective control over the venture’'sragiag activities. Subsequent to April 1, 2005, @@mpany determined that based on
SFAS 94, “Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subgries,” the joint venture should not have beemsotidated in prior periods. As such,
the Company’s financial statements have been esstataccount for the joint venture on an equitsidan accordance with APB 18, “The
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in CommiStock” for all periods prior to April 1, 2005.

Revenues and expenses previously recordeeriain consolidated financial statement line itemesnow reported on a net basis as Equity
income in the Consolidated Statement of IncometheadCompany’s net investment in the joint ventsreeported in the Investments in
partially-owned affiliates line in the Consolidat8thtement of Financial Position. The deconsoliatif this joint venture had no impact on
income from continuing operations, net income oniegs per share in the respective periods.
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The following table summarizes the joint wemrts sales and operating income for fiscal 2005, 20042003 as previously recorded in
Company’s consolidated financial statements:

Year Ended September 30,

2005* 2004 2003
(In millions)
Net sales $ 403.¢ $ 760« $ 420.(
Operating incom: $ 36 $ 83¢ $ 721

* Year ended September 30, 2005, includes six maftastivity as the joint venture was deconsolidaedf April 1, 2005

Restructuring Cost:

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2008,Glompany executed a restructuring plan (2005 Rao)ving cost reduction actions and
recorded a $210 million restructuring charge inellith Restructuring costs in the Consolidated State of Income. These restructuring
charges include workforce reductions of approxiya?€l00 employees within interior experience andier solutions and 800 employees in
the building efficiency business. The charges aaset with employee severance and termination litsrea® paid over the severance period
granted to each employee and on a lump sum bass velguired in accordance with individual severaagreements. As of September 30,
2005, approximately 630 employees within interigperience and the power solutions businesses aheémployees in the building
efficiency business have been separated from tinep@oy. In addition, the 2005 Plan includes eighhptlosures within interior experience
and power solutions and four plant closures withiilding efficiency. The write downs of the long€id assets associated with the plant
closures were determined using a discounted cashahalysis. The interior experience and powertgnig actions are primarily concentra
in Europe, while the building efficiency restrudhg actions involve activities in both North Amesiand Europe. The Company expects to
incur other related and ancillary costs associaftiéil some of these restructuring initiatives. Thegsts are not expected to be material and
will be expensed as incurred. The majority of th&tnucturing activities are expected to be comgleiethe end of the second quarter of fiscal
year 2006

The Company recorded the restructuring chasge result of management’s ongoing review ofibmpany’s cost structure, the sharp
increase in commodity costs, and the current ecandifiiculties facing some of our most significacustomers. Company management is
continually analyzing our businesses for opportesito consolidate current operations and to losatdacilities in low cost countries in clc
proximity to our customers. This ongoing analysidudes the review of our manufacturing, enginggénd purchasing operations as well as
our overall Company footprint. As a result of tt@023 Plan, the Company anticipates savings of appately $135 million in fiscal year
2006.

Other Income/ Expense

Other net expense decreased slightly in tiheent year due to lower Miscellaneous — net expenastly offset by lower equity income
and higher net interest expense. Miscellaneous texpense decreased approximately $37 million fiteenprior year period as the prior year
period included foreign currency losses of appratety $16 million (compared to a slight gain in therent year), approximately $6 million
of expense in fiscal year 2004 associated wittetitey redemption of outstanding bonds and highernecurring litigation expenses in fiscal
2004. Equity income of $72 million was $25 milliwer than the prior year, primarily attributabtedecreased earnings at certain interior
experience joint ventures in China and Europe.ilNetest expense increased from the prior yearapiiynas a result of higher interest rates.

Provision for Income Taxe:!

The Company'’s base effective income tax fi@teontinuing operations for fiscal 2005 declirted?5.7% from 26.0% for the prior year
primarily due to continuing global tax planningtiatives. The Company’s base effective tax ratalsulated by adjusting the effective tax
rate for significant one time tax items. For tharyended September 30, 2005, the effective ratem@acted by an $11.5 million and
$69 million tax benefit in
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the first and second quarters, respectively, deedbange in tax status of a French and a Gernizsidiary. The change in tax status resulted
from a voluntary tax election that produced a dekhwgiidation of the French and German subsidigide$)S federal income tax purposes.
The Company received a tax benefit in the US ferltiss from the decrease in value from the origimabasis of these investments. This
election changed the tax status of the French arth&n entities from controlled foreign corporati¢ns., taxable entities) to branches (i.e.,
flow through entities similar to a partnership) fdS. federal income tax purposes and is therepyrted as a discrete period tax benefit in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109,c¢dunting for Income Taxes”. The voluntary tax dlattrelated to the German subsidiary
resulted in a capital loss for tax purposes of $%@8on, $187 million of which was utilized in theecond quarter. The tax benefit on the
remaining capital loss has not been recorded athaining capital loss can only be used to therexaf future capital gains resulting from
non-recurring transactions in the US, none of whkidhcontemplated at this time; there are no prugiefeasible tax planning strategies in
place at this time to utilize such capital losghse;capital loss carryforward period for US fedénabme tax purposes is 5 years thereby
limiting the time period in which the Company coultlize the US capital losses; and certain assignptand estimates in determining the
amount of capital loss were used that may chargeltimate capital loss to be realized. These &nelits were partially offset by an increase
in the tax valuation allowance of $28 million ireteecond quarter related to restructuring chamestiich no tax benefits were recorded in
certain countries given the uncertainty of itsiiion due to restrictive tax loss rules or a latkustained profitability in that country. In
addition, other valuation allowance adjustmentsrduthe year related primarily to continuing losaésertain foreign subsidiaries for which
no tax benefit was recognized were offset by tliezation of losses in certain foreign subsidiarfieswhich sustained profitability has not yet
been demonstrated, thereby resulting in no sigmtichange in the Company’s total valuation allovgaduring the year. The fiscal year
ended September 30, 2004 benefited from a $27omifivorable tax settlement related to prior pesiod

The annual effective tax rate for income frdiscontinued operations approximated 39% and 35%\Vorld Services and the engine
electronics business, respectively. These effettiveates approximate the local statutory ratestdf for permanent differences. The
Company’s income taxes for the gain on the sattismfontinued operations resulted in an effectixeréde of 38.1%.

Minority Interests in Net Earnings of Subsidiarie

Minority interests in net earnings of subaidis were $41 million compared with $52 milliontire prior year primarily due to lower
earnings at certain interior experience subsidiarieNorth America. The decrease was partiallyeiffy/ higher earnings at certain Asian joint
ventures.

Net Income

Net income for fiscal 2005 reached $909 willi11% above the prior year's $818 million assalteof increased gross profit, the gain on
the sale of discontinued operations, and a redaffedtive income tax rate on continuing operatiguastially offset by higher restructuring
costs and a pension gain in the prior year. Fi2@ab diluted earnings per share were $4.68, 10%eath@ prior year's $4.24.
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FISCAL 2004 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2003
Sales

The Company’s net sales for the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:
%

2004 2003 Change
(In millions)
Building efficiency $ 5,323.° $ 4,809.¢ 11%
Interior experienc— North America 8,237.« 7,605.! 8%
Interior experienc— Europe 7,677.¢ 5,861. 31%
Interior experienc— Asia 1,092.¢ 1,013.¢ 8%
Power solution: 2,271, 1,881.( 21%
Total $  24,603. $ 21,171 16%

Consolidated net sales in fiscal year 200ev#24.6 billion, increasing 16% above the pricairygales of $21.2 billion.

Building efficiency

Building efficiency achieved sales of $5.8idm in fiscal 2004, 11% above the prior year. Exding the effects of currency translation,
sales grew 5% year-over-year.

Building efficiency sales in North America i@eB% greater than one year ago due to growthstesys installation and services. Systems
installation sales were up reflecting higher volgnirethe new construction market. Service saleg\wagher in comparison to the prior year
reflecting additional commercial facility managerheervice activity and an increase in technicaliserrevenues.

Sales in Europe increased 14% over the paar, reflecting the positive effects of curren@nslation and the growth of installed syste
in the new construction market. Building efficiergales in other geographic markets, which reprdssatthan 10% of the segment’s sales,
increased slightly compared to fiscal 2003.

Interior experience— North Americe

In North America, interior experience salesrev$8.2 billion, up 8% versus the prior year. Tdriswth reflects new interior systems
business with a variety of automakers and involvemeplatforms with production levels that exceadlee industry average.

Interior experience— Europe

In Europe, interior experience sales werd $illion, up 31% versus the prior year. Excludthg effects of currency translation, sales
grew 17% year-over-year. The growth is primarilyda the launch of new business and favorablegstatimix.

Interior experience— Asia

In Asia, interior experience sales were $illion, up 8% versus the prior year. Excluding #féects of currency translation, sales grew
4% year-overyear. The growth is primarily due to higher volunme&orea and China. This was partially offset bwér volumes in Japan a
Malaysia due to decreased demand for mature vebliatiorms which are nearing the end of their paidife cycle.

Power solution:

Power solutions sales were $2.3 billion, &p62versus the prior year. Excluding the effectswofency translation, sales grew 17% year-
over-year.
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North American sales of automotive battemeseased 14% over last year primarily due to phassagh pricing of higher lead costs and
slightly higher shipments to existing customersw@osolutions sales were also favorably impacte@3# million for the inclusion of two
months of operations associated with the acquisiicthe remaining 51% interest in its joint vemtwvith the Latin American JV (see Note 1
to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

European sales of automotive batteries ise@84% over the prior year primarily due to fabdeacurrency translation, the inclusion of
one additional month from the acquisition of VART#ee Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Stateshesltghtly higher automotive batte
unit shipments, and the pass-through pricing ofididead costs to customers.

Operating Income
The Company'’s operating income for the fiseadrs ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 wad@asdol
%

2004 2003 Change
(In millions)
Building efficiency(1) $ 241t $ 241« —
Interior experienc— North America(2) 504.1 581.¢ (13)%
Interior experienc— Europe(3) 113.C (44.)) *
Interior experienc— Asia(4) 37.€ 42.C (10)%
Power solutions(5 237.( 206.¢ 15%
Total 1,133.: 1,028.( 10%
Restructuring cosl (82.9 —
Japanese pension g: 84.4 —
Consolidated Operating Incor $ 1,135. $ 1,028.(

* Metric not meaningful
(1) Building efficiency operating income excludes $1@iBlion of restructuring costs for the year en@=ptember 30, 200

(2) Interior experience — North America operatingome excludes $5.1 million of restructuring cdststhe year ended September 30,
2004.

(3) Interior experienc— Europe operating income excludes $51.1 millionestructuring costs for the year ended Septembe2(BIA.
(4) Interior experienc— Asia operating income excludes a pension gain 4f4ghillion for the year ended September 30, 2i
(5) Power solutions operating income excludes $12.8amibf restructuring costs for the year ended Seytter 30, 2004
Consolidated operating income for fiscal 20% $1.1 billion, 10% above the prior year’'s $illon. Consolidated operating income in

fiscal 2004 includes restructuring costs of $82ioml(see Note 16 to the Consolidated Financialébtents) and a pension gain of $84 mil
(see Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statésjien comparison to fiscal 2003.

Building efficiency

Fiscal 2004 building efficiency operatingamee of $242 million, excluding $13 million of restturing costs, was comparable to the prior
year. The results were attributable to higher vasrand favorable effects of currency translatidiset by lower gross margin percentage
North America and higher worldwide SG&A expenseshbrth America, the benefit from higher volumesrsftalled control systems a
new facility management business was offset by tayress margin percentages in the installed syshersimess due to the competitive new
construction environment. In Europe, gross prefitluding the effects of
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currency translation, was comparable to the pre@rySG&A expenses were higher worldwide resulfiogn investments in sales force
additions in the technical service business, irs@daension and healthcare costs and the impaati@ncy translation.

Interior experience— North Americe

Interior experience — North America operatingopme decreased 13% to $504 million (excludingriion of restructuring costs) due to
higher commodity costs and higher SG&A expensesgigroffset by cost reductions and operationéicedncies.

The segment experienced commaodity cost isegrimarily steel, of approximately $15 milliocompared to the prior year. The
Company continues to address the rising commodiysan the region through negotiations with bédgtcustomers and suppliers.

The impact of a lower sales mix of matureigiehprograms and incremental sales price redustixeceeded implemented cost reductions
and operational efficiencies by $2 million in theripd. The lower sales mix of mature vehicle praggaegatively impacted results as these
sales typically deliver more favorable margins thueperational efficiencies and cost reductions éina implemented throughout the vehicle
life cycle. In contrast, new vehicle programs reguignificant engineering and start up costs thereducing margins at the onset of the
program. Annual price reduction renewal negotiatidaring the period yielded terms consistent witbhrpagreements. It should be noted that
price reduction commitments are often made in tireext of broader customer negotiations on sevacabrs, including volume, potential
new business opportunities and geographic expansion

SG&A expenses increased $61 million in thary@imarily due to increased engineering expemsrsred for new vehicle programs,
higher healthcare, pension and insurance costgelss the impact of currency translation.

Interior experience— Europe

Operating income in Europe was $113 millierc{uding $51 million of restructuring costs) comgzhto a prior year loss of $44 million,
an increase of $157 million due to performance oupments in the majority of the Company’s proddtrings and lower SG&A expenses,
partially offset by higher commodity costs. Excluglithe positive effects of foreign currency tratista operating income increased
$151 million.

The segment benefited from the full year ioigd the region’s turnaround program which concaiet on the implementation of best
business practices and six sigma activities iexisting operations, new program launches, andgdmto the manufacturing footprint.
Implemented cost reductions, operational efficieacand the higher sales mix of mature vehiclenarog exceeded incremental sales price
reductions by $142 million in the period. Annudksaprice reduction renewal negotiations duringgigod yielded terms consistent with
prior agreements.

The incremental effect of commodity costalied approximately $5 million in the current fisgalar compared to the prior year. As in
other regions, the Company continues to addressding commodity costs through negotiations withhbits customers and suppliers.

SG&A expenses decreased $14 million in ther peimarily due to decreased engineering expeinsesred for new vehicle programs
compared to the prior year.

Interior experience— Asia

Operating income in Asia decreased to $38amiin the current year (excluding $84 milliona@fension gain), 10% below the prior year.
Excluding the positive effect of foreign currencartslation, operating income decreased 22% yeary@mar. This decrease is primarily
attributable to an increase in the amount of SG&pemditures and launch costs in Japan and Korateceto new program awards.
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Although overall volumes were up, the segrsamiargins were unfavorably impacted by a signiftadecrease in sales of higher margin,
mature vehicle programs that benefit from operatiffigiencies and cost reductions achieved thraheghproduct life cycle.

SG&A expenses in the segment were approxign&t? million higher in the year primarily due itecreased engineering expenses
incurred for new vehicle programs.

Power solution:

Power solutions operating income increase®8¥ million (excluding $13 million of restructng costs) in the current fiscal year, 15%
above the prior year's $207 million. In North Anmeaj higher volumes, increased operating efficienaead the purchase of the Latin
American JV which contributed $13 million, more thaffset higher commodity costs. Operating incomEurope was higher due to
increased volumes and integration savings achifreed previous acquisitions, which outpaced increaseeommodity costs. The incremer
effect of commodity costs negatively impacted glalgerating income by approximately $44 million ses the prior year.

Restructuring Cost:

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2004,Glompany executed a restructuring plan involviogf structure improvement actions and
recorded an $82.4 million restructuring charge imifRestructuring costs in the Consolidated StatéraEmcome. These costs primarily rel
to workforce reductions of approximately 1,500 eoyples in interior experience and power solutiorts4#0 employees in building
efficiency. In addition, four interior experienckpts will be consolidated. Through September 8052 substantially all impacted employees
have been separated from the Company. Employeeaseeeand termination benefits are paid over thers@ce period granted to each
employee and on a lump sum basis when requiredcordance with individual severance agreementsgwifgcant portion of the interior
experience and power solutions actions were coratextin Europe. Building efficiency restructuriagtions involved activities in both Nor
America and Europe. The remaining restructuringiiets are expected to be completed in the fitstrter of fiscal year 2006.

Japanese Pension Settlement Gain

In fiscal 2004, the Company recorded a pengain related to certain of the Company’s Japapession plans established under the
Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance Law (see Ndtettid Consolidated Financial Statements). In @tzoece with recent amendments to
this law, the Company completed the transfer afagempension obligations and related plan assedtsetdapanese government which resulted
in a non-cash settlement gain of $84.4 million, afe®1.2 million associated with the recognitionunirecognized actuarial losses, recorded
within SG&A expenses in the Consolidated Statenséiticome. The funded status of the Company’s ndB-gension plans improved by
$85.6 million as a result of the transfer of thpeasion obligations and related plan assets.

Other Income/ Expens

Despite higher average debt levels in figear 2004, net interest expense of $98 million d@sn $7 million from the prior year due to a
higher proportion of floating rate debt that betesfifrom the low interest rate environment. Equigome of $96 million was $20 million
higher than the prior year, primarily attributabbencreased earnings at certain interior expeggaint ventures in China. Miscellaneous —
net expense increased approximately $6 million amexbto fiscal 2003 mainly due to higher foreigrrency losses in the current year and
the inclusion of a gain in the prior year relatedhte conversion and subsequent disposition oftiestment in Donnelly Corporation (see
Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Provision for Income Taxe:

The effective income tax rate for continuaygerations for the year ended September 30, 2082®&&% compared with last year’s
29.0%. The effective rate for the current fiscadly@as lower than the combined U.S. federal areé statutory rate due to reduced foreign
and U.S. effective rates resulting from the corgthbenefits of global tax planning initiatives. Thaée was further impacted by a $17 million
favorable tax settlement received in the first tgraand a $10 million favorable settlement of waiilde tax audits in the fourth quarter.

Minority Interests in Net Earnings of Subsidiarie

Minority interests in net earnings of subaids were $52 million compared with $23 milliontive prior year primarily due to higher
earnings at certain interior experience subsididrieNorth America and the absence of significangfieeering and launch costs incurred in
prior year.

Net Income

Net income for fiscal 2004 reached $818 wmil]i20% above the prior year's $683 million assalteof increased operating and equity
income and a reduced effective income tax rataigigroffset by higher minority interests in netraings of subsidiaries. Fiscal 2004 diluted
earnings per share were $4.24, 18% above the ywais $3.60.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Capital expenditures in fiscal 2005 were $664ion, down from $784 million in the prior yeand an increase from $606 million in 20
Consistent with both prior years, the majority leé 2005 expenditures were associated with theiagntexperience business. In fiscal 2005,
interior experience capital expenditures relateith¥estments in launches of new business and edsttion projects. Management expects
capital expenditures to approximate $775 — $82%ioniin fiscal 2006.

Goodwill at September 30, 2005 was $3.7d3illi$0.2 billion higher than the prior year. Thergase was primarily associated with the
acquisition of Delphi’s global battery business &l Companies Inc., a corporate real estate sss\fiom included in the Company’s
building efficiency segment (see Notes 1 and hiéoGonsolidated Financial Statements).

Investments in partially-owned affiliatesSgtptember 30, 2005 were $445 million, $3 milliossl¢han the prior year. The decrease was
attributable to the sale of a building efficienayéstment, offset by increases in interior exp&genvestments from equity income and a new
power solutions investment related to the acquisitif Delphi’s global battery business.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
WORKING CAPITAL AND CASH FLOW

The Company had positive working capital 9% million at September 30, 2005, compared witlegative $422 million one year ago,
excluding the assets and liabilities of discontthoperations. The increase is primarily the restittecreased short-term borrowings
($275 million) and a decrease in factored recersl$121 million), partially offset by higher aces payable. Working capital, excluding
the assets and liabilities of discontinued operati@ash and debt, of $891 million was $372 millgher than the prior year amount of
$519 million primarily due to higher accounts reedile partially offset by increased accounts pagabl

The Company’s days sales in accounts reckefabthe year ended September 30, 2005 was S8 casase compared to the year ended
September 30, 2004 days sales in accounts receigébl. The increase from the period ended SepeB® 2004, primarily relates to the
decrease in factored receivables and the effedty@ifyn currency translation.
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The Company’s inventory turnover ratio foe §rear ended September 30, 2005, was 18, consigtarthe ratio for the year ended
September 30, 2004.

Cash provided by operating activities in &is2005 was $927 million compared with $1.3 billiarfiscal 2004. The decrease primarily
reflects a $180 million voluntary cash contributtorfund the accumulated benefit obligations ofaierU.S. defined benefit pension plans
and unfavorable working capital changes. The valgntontribution, which reduces future cash fundieguirements, resulted in a prepaid
benefit cost included within Other current asset$ @ther noncurrent assets, as appropriate, i€tmsolidated Statement of Financial
Position. The contribution increased plan assetiseafuly 31, 2005 measurement date and will rés@treduction of approximately
$16 million in fiscal 2006 pension expense.

A significant portion of the Company’s satee to customers in the automotive industry (se 126 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for major customers disclosure). Fuduerse developments in the automotive industrjddoupact the Company’s liquidity
position and/or require additional restructuringled Company’s operations.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company reviews lordiyed assets for impairment whenever events or gbsin circumstances indicate that its carrying amhonay
not be recoverable. The Company has certain sasdj mainly located in Germany, Italy, Mexicoddbanada that have generated
operating losses and, in certain circumstances hiaited loss carryforward periods. As a restiie €ompany has recorded valuation
allowances against tax assets for certain of teebsidiaries. The Company’s loliged asset impairment analyses indicate that sasdahest
countries are not impaired based on undiscountsfd ft@wvs. At September 30, 2005, the Company doesave any material assets whose
recovery is at risk.

CAPITALIZATION

Total capitalization of $8.4 billion at Septieer 30, 2005 included short-term debt of $0.7dwilllong-term debt (including the current
portion) of $1.7 billion and shareholders’ equify$6.0 billion. The Company'’s total capitalizatisras $7.9 billion at September 30, 2004.
The Company’s total debt as a percentage of tafaitalization at the end of fiscal 2005 decline@709% from 33.9% one year ago, mainly
due to the reduction of outstanding debt. By the @fifiscal 2006, the Company expects total delat psrcentage of total capitalization to
increase to approximately 40% as a result of thek Yiternational Corporation acquisition.

In December 2003, the Company filed a $1ll®hiuniversal shelf registration statement, undliich the Company can issue a variety of
debt and equity instruments, with the Securitie Brchange Commission effective March 26, 2004Séptember 30, 2005, the Company
had $1.5 billion available under the shelf regisbrastatement.

In October 2005, the Company entered intoexyear $1.6 billion revolving credit facility wbih expires in October 2010. This facility
replaces the five-year $625 million revolving ctddcility, which would have expired in October A)@nd the 364-day $625 million facility,
which expired in October 2005. There were no drawany of the committed credit lines through Sejbien80, 2005.

In October 2005, the Company entered int@.8 Billion revolving credit facility. The facilitgxpires on the earlier of 364 days after the
effective date of this credit agreement, as defioedecember 28, 2006. The Company intends tahesesvolving credit facility to provide a
liquidity backstop for commercial paper that then@any intends to issue to fund the anticipated ia@tepn of York International Corporatic
(see Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statéshen

The Company believes its capital resourcedlignidity position at September 30, 2005 are adée to meet projected needs.
Requirements for working capital, capital expendiy dividends, pension fund contributions, debtunitées and acquisitions in fiscal 2006,
other than the anticipated York International asijiain, will continue to be funded from operatiorapplemented by short- and long-term
borrowings, if required. The anticipated York Imtational acquisition will be initially financed waitshort term borrowings,
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which the Company intends to refinance with lomgntelebt (see Note 23 to the Consolidated Finaigtaiements).

The Company is in compliance with all covelsaand other requirements set forth in its creglitaments and indentures. None of the
Company'’s debt agreements require accelerated megyin the event of a decrease in credit ratiGgsrently, the Company has ample
liquidity and full access to the capital marketsvégd the Company'’s credit ratings from Fitch (A)poMly’s (Baal), and Standard & Poors (A-
) as of December 1, 2005, the Company believes dad@rmgrades, or a single downgrade over multiplels, would be necessary befort
access to the commercial paper markets would beetimAt September 30, 2005, the Company has a ir@dlavailability of $1.25 billion
under its revolving credit facilities to meet commial paper maturities and operating needs.

A summary of the Company’s significant conteal obligations as of September 30, 2005 is bave:

2011 and
Total 2006 2007-2008 2009-2010 Beyond
(In millions)
Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt (including capital lease obligation $165 $ 81 $ 71C $ 93 $ 774
Interest on long-term debt (including capital lease
obligations)* 80¢ 99 13t 99 47E
Operating lease 68€ 24t 22¢ 12t 87
Unconditional purchase obligatio 2,831 1,404 1,28¢ 147 —
Pension and postretirement contributi 29¢ 65 45 49 14C
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 628 $18% $ 2,40¢ $ 512 $ 1,47¢

* See"Capitalizatior” for additional information related to the Comp’s lon¢-term debt

Unconditional purchase obligations includeoants committed under legally enforceable contracisurchase orders for goods and
services with defined terms as to price, quandityd delivery. Pension and postretirement contrimstinclude amounts expected to be pai
the Company to the plans. Other noncurrent liaediprimarily consist of pension and postretirenadligations included in the table and
other amounts whose settlement dates cannot benagaly determined.

On August 24, 2005, the Company enteredardefinitive agreement to acquire York Internatiddarporation, a global supplier of
heating, ventilation, air-conditioning and refrigdon equipment and services. Under the termseplhcash transaction, the Company will
acquire all outstanding common shares of York f6.50 per share. The total cash required to comihet transaction is approximately
$2.5 billion, which includes payment for common r&sa transaction fees and expenses. As of DecemBe05, the Company anticipates
closing the York International Corporation trangactn early December 2005 (see Note 23 to the Glafeted Financial Statements).

GUARANTEES AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company is party to certain synthetisésawhich qualify as operating leases for accogrginmposes. The lease contracts are
associated with the financing of the Company’sraftc The guarantees extend through the maturigach respective underlying lease in
September 2006. In the event the Company exeriisegtion not to purchase the aircraft for the agring obligations at the scheduled
maturity of the leases, the Company has guararikeechajority of the residual values, not to exc#éd million at September 30, 2005.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company prepares its consolidated firrstatements in conformity with accounting prireggenerally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP). This requires managyet to make
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estimates and assumptions that affect reported mtmand related disclosures. Actual results coiffdrdrom those estimates. The following
policies are considered by management to be théeritisal in understanding the judgments thatiavelved in the preparation of the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements anditieertainties that could impact the Company’slte®i operations, financial position
and cash flows.

Revenue Recoghnitio

The Company recognizes revenue from long-®rstems installation contracts of the buildingoééhcy business over the contractual
period under the POC method of accounting. Undemttethod, sales and gross profit are recognizedods is performed based on the
relationship between actual costs incurred and éstamated costs at the completion of the contRRetenues from contracts with multiple
element arrangements, such as those includingibstfilation and services, are recognized as elachest is earned based on objective
evidence of the relative fair value of each elemBeicognized revenues that will not be billed uritierterms of the contract until a later date
are recorded as an asset captioned “Costs andhgaiini excess of billings on uncompleted contratikewise, contracts where billings to
date have exceeded recognized revenues are reasdelibility captioned “Billings in excess ofst® and earnings on uncompleted
contracts."Changes to the original estimates may be requiveidig the life of the contract and such estimatesaviewed monthly. Sales ¢
gross profit are adjusted prospectively for revisiin estimated total contract costs and contralctes. Estimated losses are recorded when
identified. Claims against customers are recognéexkvenue upon settlement. The use of the PORoohef accounting involves
considerable use of estimates in determining resgneosts and profits and in assigning the amdarascounting periods. The reviews have
not resulted in adjustments that were significarthe Company’s results of operations. The Compamyinually evaluates all of the issues
related to the assumptions, risks and uncertaiimttesrent with the application of the POC metho@odounting. In all other cases, the
Company recognizes revenue at the time productshipped and title passes to the customer or assrare performed.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asse

In conformity with U.S. GAAP, goodwill is tesd for impairment annually, or more frequentlg¥ents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired. The Gomperforms impairment reviews for its reportimgts, which have been determined to be
the Company'’s reportable segments, using a fairevaiethod based on management’s judgments and jptssnsn The fair value represents
the amount at which a reporting unit could be bawglsold in a current transaction between willpggties on an arms-length basis. In
estimating the fair value, the Company uses meligf earnings based on the average of histodaalished multiples of earnings of
comparable entities with similar operations andcheooic characteristics. The estimated fair valubén compared with the carrying amount
of the reporting unit, including recorded goodwllhe Company is subject to financial statementtasthe extent that the carrying amount
exceeds the estimated fair value. The impairmestitig performed by the Company at September 30 ,206@icated that the estimated fair
value of each reporting unit exceeded its corredjpncarrying amount, including recorded goodwillaas such, no impairment existed at
that time. Other intangible assets with definited continue to be amortized over their estimasedul lives. Indefinite and definite lived
intangible assets (see Note 5 to the ConsolidatehEial Statements) are also subject to impairrtesting. A considerable amount of
management judgment and assumptions are requigggtiorming the impairment tests, principally irtetenining the fair value of each
reporting unit. While the Company believes its jodgnts and assumptions were reasonable, differsnbagtions could change the estimated
fair values and, therefore, impairment chargesdabelrequired.

Employee Benefit Plan

The Company provides a range of benefittsternployees and retired employees, including pessand postretirement health care. Plan
assets and obligations are recorded annually as#te Company’s measurement date utilizing varamigarial assumptions such as
discount rates, assumed rates of return,
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compensation increases, turnover rates and heakhcost trend rates as of that date. Measureroéngt periodic benefit cost are based on
the assumptions used for the previous year-endureragnts of assets and obligations. The Comparigws\its actuarial assumptions on an
annual basis and makes modifications to the assangpbased on current rates and trends when apati@phs required by U.S. GAAP, the
effects of the modifications are recorded currenthamortized over future periods.

The discount rate used by the Company ischasdhe interest rate of noncallable high-qualityporate bonds, with appropriate
consideration of the Company’s pension plans’ pigdints’ demographics and benefit payment termguit 31, 2005, the Company
decreased its discount rate on U.S. plans to Ze&fept from 6.25 percent at July 31, 2004 (see Wéto the Consolidated Financial
Statements). The decline of 75 basis points wasistmt with the changes in published bond indi€as. change increased the Company’s
U.S. projected benefit obligation at September2B05 by approximately $315 million and is expedtethcrease pension expense in fiscal
year 2006 by approximately $32 millic

In estimating the expected return on plaetsshe Company considers the historical retumglan assets, adjusted for forward-looking
considerations, inflation assumptions and the ihpathe active management of the plans’ investsgts. Reflecting the relatively long-term
nature of the plans’ obligations, approximately 66fthe plans’ assets were invested in equitiet thie balance primarily invested in fixed
income instruments.

The Company uses a market-related valuesatashat recognizes the difference between theote return and the actual return on plan
assets over a three-year period. As of Septemh&(85, the Company had approximately $25 millibarrecognized asset gains associated
with its U.S. pension plans, which will be recogdzn the calculation of the market-related valftiassets and subject to amortization in
future periods.

Based on information provided by its indepamtdactuaries and other relevant sources, the Caoyripelieves that the assumptions usec
reasonable; however, changes in these assumptioigimpact the Company’s financial position, réswif operations or cash flows.

Primarily as a result of a $180 million volary cash contribution in the current year, the @any has recorded a prepaid benefit cost of
$324 million for its U.S. pension plans as of Sagier 30, 2005 in accordance with SFAS No. 87 “Empgils’ Accounting for
Pensions” (SFAS 87). SFAS 87 requires that an &ssetcognized if the net periodic pension coktss than the amounts the employer has
contributed to the plan and a liability be recoguiizf the net periodic pension cost exceeds amdhbatemployer has contributed to the plan.
The funded status of a retirement plan is the wifiee between the projected benefit obligationthedair value of its plan assets. The
projected benefit obligation is the actuarial preésalue of all benefits attributed by the planénbfit formula to employee service. At
September 30, 2005, the Company’s U.S. pensiors plane under funded by $295 million since the pteie benefit obligation exceeded the
fair value of its plan assets. Material differenogsy result between the funded status of a retintiplan and the recorded asset or liability
due to certain items that have an immediate impac¢he projected benefit obligation, but are redogpghover a longer period of time in the
net periodic pension cost. For example, at Septe8Me2005, the Company had an unrecognized neardat loss on its U.S. pension plans
of $566 million. This actuarial loss is includedtire projected benefit obligation at September2B05, but in accordance with SFAS 87, in
general, the amount of the loss is amortized tgpaabdic pension expense over the average rengpgarvice period of the employees in the
plan where the loss was generated.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties to its custanaiepending upon the specific product and terntkeo€ustomer purchase agreement. Most
of the Company’s product warranties are customecifip. A typical warranty program requires thag¢ 8ompany replace defective products
within a specified time period from the date ofesdlhe Company records an estimate of future wirnahated costs based on actual
historical return rates. At September 30, 2005QGhmpany had recorded $61 million of warranty resetased on an analysis of return rates
and other factors (see Note 7 to the Consolidatean€ial Statements). While the
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Company’s warranty costs have historically beemiwiits calculated estimates, it is possible thatrfe warranty costs could differ
significantly from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes inr@ecte with Statement of Financial Accounting Stadd (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assets and liabdliare recognized for the future tax consequeattdbutable to differences between
financial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective tax basesoperating loss and other loss
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabiliiss measured using enacted tax rates expectegliotagaxable income in the years in wh
those temporary differences are expected to beseeed or settled. The Company records a valuatiowance that primarily represents
foreign operating and other loss carryforwardsaich utilization is uncertain. Management judgmismniequired in determining the
Company'’s provision for income taxes, deferreddssets and liabilities and the valuation allowarecerded against the Company’s net
deferred tax assets. In calculating the provisariricome taxes on an interim basis, the Company aa estimate of the annual effective tax
rate based upon the facts and circumstances knbeach interim period. On a quarterly basis, thteaeffective tax rate is adjusted as
appropriate based upon the actual results as cemparthose forecasted at the beginning of thalfigear. In determining the need for a
valuation allowance, the historical and projectiedricial performance of the operation recordingrtéedeferred tax asset is considered along
with any other pertinent information. Since futfirencial results may differ from previous estingtgeriodic adjustments to the Company’s
valuation allowance may be necessary. At SepteBbe2005, the Company had a valuation allowan&5@8 million primarily related to n
operating and other loss carryforwards, mainiyhe S, Germany, Italy, Mexico and Canada for wisigbtainable taxable income has not
been demonstrated or future capital gains aregadizable (see Note 17 to the Consolidated FindSté#ements). The Company does not
provide additional United States income taxes aisiributed earnings of consolidated foreign subsies included in stockholders’ equity.
Such earnings could become taxable upon the séilguidtation of these foreign subsidiaries or uglividend repatriation. The Company’s
intent is for such earnings to be reinvested bysth#sidiaries or to be repatriated only when it itdae tax effective through the utilization of
foreign tax credits.

The Company is subject to income taxes intBeand numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significartigment is required in determining our
worldwide provision for income taxes and recording related assets and liabilities. In the ordir@yrse of our business, there are many
transactions and calculations where the ultimatel&dermination is uncertain. We are regularly uralelit by tax authorities. Accruals for
contingences are provided for in accordance wighréguirements of SFAS No. 5 “Accounting for Cogéncies”. The Company’s federal
income tax returns and certain foreign income &urns for fiscal years 1997-2003 are currentlyaundrious stages of audit by the Internal
Revenue Service and respective foreign tax autbsri\lthough the outcome of tax audits is alwaysantain, management believes that it
has appropriate support for the positions takeitsotax returns and that its annual tax provisimetuded amounts sufficient to pay
assessments, if any, which may be proposed bya#iegt authorities. At September 30, 2005, the Comieas recorded a liability for its best
estimate of the probable loss on certain of itspiasitions, the majority of which is included ini@t noncurrent liabilities. Nonetheless, the
amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolutiorthe issues raised by the taxing authorities mégrdinaterially from the amounts accrued
for each year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company selectively uses financial imsnts to reduce market risk associated with chaimgeseign currency, interest rates and
commodity prices. All hedging transactions are arifed and executed pursuant to clearly definettiesl and procedures, which strictly
prohibit the use of financial instruments for traglpurposes. At the inception of the hedge, the fizom assesses the effectiveness of the
hedge instrument and designates the hedge insttiasaither (1) a hedge of a recognized assealoility or of an unrecognized firm
commitment (a fair value hedge), (2) a hedge afradasted transaction or of the variability of cistvs to be received or paid related to a
recognized asset or liability (a cash flow hedge) o
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(3) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign opargh net investment hedge). The Company perféredge effectiveness testing on an
ongoing basis depending on the type of hedgingunwnt used.

For all foreign currency derivative instrurtedesignated as cash flow hedges, retrospectiwetibness is tested on a monthly basis
using a cumulative dollar offset test. The fairueabf the hedged exposures and the fair valuesolfitlge instruments are revalued and the
ratio of the cumulative sum of the periodic chanigethe value of the hedge instruments to the catiud sum of the periodic changes in the
value of the hedge is calculated. The hedge is ddexn highly effective if the ratio is between 8@ 425 percent.

For net investment hedges, the Company assé@sset investment positions in the foreign apens and compares it with the
outstanding net investment hedges on a monthlysb@ke hedge is deemed effective if the aggregattanding principal of the hedge
instruments designated as the net investment Hadgéoreign operation do not exceed the Compangtinvestment positions in the
respective foreign operation.

A discussion of the Company’s accounting@e$ for derivative financial instruments is inahadin the Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies in the Notes to Consolidatenlficial Statements, and further disclosure relatirfinancial instruments is included in
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Stateme

Foreign Exchange

The Company has manufacturing, sales andhiisbn facilities around the world and thus makesestments and enters into transactions
denominated in various foreign currencies. In otdenaintain strict control and achieve the besedftthe Company’s global diversification,
foreign exchange exposures for each currency atechiaternally so that only its net foreign excharexposures are, as appropriate, hedged
with financial instruments.

The Company hedges 70 to 90 percent of ibsvknforeign exchange transactional exposures. Tdregany primarily enters into foreign
currency exchange contracts to reduce the earaimgigash flow impact of non-functional currency atemated receivables and payables.
Gains and losses resulting from hedging instrumeffiset the foreign exchange gains or losses omtigierlying assets and liabilities being
hedged. The maturities of the forward exchangeraots generally coincide with the settlement dafeke related transactions. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses on these contracteevgnized in the same period as gains and lossteediedged items. The Company also
selectively hedges anticipated transactions treasabject to foreign exchange exposure, primaritit foreign currency exchange contracts,
which are designated as cash flow hedges in accoedaith SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivativestruments and Hedging Activities,”
as amended by SFAS No. 137, No. 138, and No. 149.

The Company generally finances its foreigarapons with local, non-U.S. dollar debt. The fgrecurrency denominated debt serves as a
natural hedge of the foreign operations’ net agssitions. The Company has also entered into skfagsagn currency-denominated debt
obligations and crossdrrency interest rate swaps to hedge portions afdat investments in Europe and Japan. The cyreffects of the del
obligations and swaps are reflected in the accurdilather comprehensive income account within $iedders’ equity where they offset
gains and losses recorded on the net investmefigrope and Japan.
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Sensitivity Analysi

The following table indicates the total Udsllar (USD) equivalents of net foreign exchangetracts (hedging transactional exposure)
and non-U.S. dollar denominated cash, debt and-@wsency interest rate swaps (hedging transla&igrosure) outstanding by currency and
the corresponding impact on the value of theseungnts assuming a 10% appreciation/depreciatiatheot).S. dollar relative to all other
currencies on September 30, 2005.

As previously noted, the Company’s policyhphbits the trading of financial instruments for fitdlt is important to note that gains and
losses indicated in the sensitivity analysis wdgdbffset by gains and losses on the underlyingivables, payables and net investments in
foreign subsidiaries described above.

September 30, 2005

Non-USD
Financial Instruments
Designated as Hedges of:

Foreign Exchange

Transactional Translation Net Gain/(Loss) from:
Foreign Foreign Amounts of
Exposure Exposure Instruments 10% 10%
Long/ Long/ Long/ Appreciation Depreciation
Currency (Short) (Short) (Short) of USD of USD
(In millions)

(U.S. dollar equivalents

Euro $ (291) $ 643 $ 9349 $ 93 $ (93)
Japanese ye @ (20%) (20¢) 21 (22)
South Korean wo — (36) (36) 4 4
British pound 304 57 361 (36) 36
Mexican pes( 32C 35 35E (35 35
Canadian dolla 15 8 7 @ 1
Slovenska korun 134 7 141 (14) 14
Romanian let — (29 (19 2 ()]
Czech korun:i 364 (12¢) 23€ (24) 24
Brazilian real — (32) (32) 3 3
Polish zloty (47) ©)] 44 4 4
South African rant 8 50 58 (6) 6
Other 10 35 45 (4) 4
Total $ 822 $ (889 $ 67 $ 7 $ @

Interest Rates

The Company’s earnings exposure related verad movements in interest rates is primarilyvéetifrom outstanding floating rate debt
instruments that are indexed to shtetm market rates. The Company, as needed, usgeshtate swaps to modify its exposure to intesde
movements. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, theoswaalify and are designated as cash flow hedgkdraalue hedges. A 10% increase
or decrease in the average cost of the Companyiabla rate debt, including outstanding swaps, waabkult in a change in pre-tax interest
expense of approximately $2.3 million.

In September 2005 following a definitive agreent unanimously approved by the Boards of Dirsatbboth companies, the Company
entered into three forward treasury lock agreemientsduce the market risk associated with chairgigerest rates associated with the
Company'’s anticipated fixed-rate bond issuancéntanice the acquisition of York International Cormgion (see Note 23 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). The three forward treasagl hgreements, which have a combined notional atafub1.3 billion, fix a portion of the
future interest cost for 5-year, 10-year and 30-pemds. The treasury lock agreements are desigjiaateash flow hedges. The fair value of
each treasury lock agreement, or the
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difference between the treasury lock referenceantkthe fixed rate at time of bond issuance, lmalamortized to interest expense over the
life of the respective bond issuance.

ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY AND OTHER MATTERS

The Company’s global operations are govetmelhws addressing protection of the environment{nmental Laws) and worker safety
and health (Worker Safety Laws). Under variousuitstances, these laws impose civil and criminaafiies and fines, as well as injunctive
and remedial relief, for noncompliance and requéraediation at sites where Company-related substamave been released into the
environment.

The Company has expended substantial resogtabally, both financial and managerial, to compith applicable Environmental Laws
and Worker Safety Laws, and to protect the enviremnand workers. The Company believes it is in wuttgl compliance with such laws
and maintains procedures designed to foster andegempliance. However, the Company has beeniratheé future may become, the
subject of formal or informal enforcement actiompoceedings regarding noncompliance with sucls lanthe remediation of Company-
related substances released into the environmeoh ®atters typically are resolved by negotiatidtihwegulatory authorities resulting in
commitments to compliance, abatement or remedigiograms and in some cases payment of penaltisiridally, neither such
commitments nor penalties imposed on the Compang haen material.

Environmental considerations are a partlafighificant capital expenditure decisions; howeexpenditures in 2005 related solely to
environmental compliance were not material. At 8eyiter 30, 2005, the Company had an accrued lybili$65 million relating to
environmental matters compared with $61 million gear ago. A charge to income is recorded whenptobable that a liability has been
incurred and the cost can be reasonably estimatedlCompany’s environmental liabilities do not taki® consideration any possible
recoveries of future insurance proceeds. Becauteaincertainties associated with environmentakdiation activities at sites where the
Company may be potentially liable, future experteeaemediate identified sites could be consideraimjer than the accrued liability.
However, while neither the timing nor the amounubimate costs associated with known environmemialediation matters can be
determined at this time, the Company does not @xpatthese matters will have a material adveffeeteon its financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Additionally, the Company is involved in amber of product liability and various other suitsident to the operation of its businesses.
Insurance coverages are maintained and estimastsl @ recorded for claims and suits of this matiiis managemerg’opinion that none
these will have a materially adverse effect onGbenpany’s financial position, results of operationgash flows (see Note 22 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements). Costs relatstith matters were not material to the periodsemted.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
(In millions, except per share data; unaudited)
2005
Net sales $ 6,617.¢ $ 6,899.¢ $ 7,062.: $ 6,900.: $ 27,479.
Gross profit 805.4 827.¢ 900.: 948.¢ 3,481.¢
Net income 168.¢ 202.t 2545 283.¢ 909.<
Earnings per shai
Basic* 0.8¢ 1.0¢€ 1.3¢ 1.47 4.74
Diluted* 0.87 1.04 1.31 1.4¢ 4.6¢
2004 (Restated)
Net sales $ 5,972.° $ 6,121.¢ $ 6,276.( $ 6,232.¢ $ 24,603.(
Gross profit 810.: 788.¢ 842. 836.: 3,277.¢
Net income 164.k 157.7 222.: 273.( 817.t
Earnings per shal
Basic* 0.9C 0.8< 1.17 1.4z 4.3t
Diluted* 0.8¢ 0.8z 1.1t 1.41 4.24

* Due to the use of the weighted-average shareganding for each quarter for computing earnirgysshare, the sum of the quarterly per
share amounts may not equal the per share amauthefgear

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See “Risk Management” included in Item 7 —ridgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdtion and Results of Operations.
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PRICEAVATERHOUSE( COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
100 E, Wisconsin Ave, Suite 1500
Milwaukes W1 53202

Telephone (414} 212 1600

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johi@ontrols, Inc.

We have completed an integrated audit of dohrControls, Inc.’s 2005 consolidated financiatesnents and of its internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2005 artitawf its 2004 and 2003 consolidated financiatesnents in accordance with the stand
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boarai(eld States). Our opinions, based on our audigspaesented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial stement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financiatsments listed in the accompanying index presenyfin all material respects, the financial
position of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its subsidiat September 30, 2005 and 2004, and the sestteir operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endedeBdger 30, 2005 in conformity with accounting pijrtes generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, fir@ancial statement schedule listed in the accamiog index presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein wheri@ conjunction with the related consolidatedficial statements. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule arespensibility of the Company’s management. Osgpoasibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements and financial stat¢sthedule based on our audits. We conductedunlitseof these statements in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accoun@wgrsight Board (United States). Those standagqire that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whitthdinancial statements are free of material rateshent. An audit of financial statements
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgghe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made égagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant presentation. We believe that
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 18 and 21 to the cadeteld financial statements, the Company has ekttt 2004 and 2003 consolidated
financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, we have audited management’s assessineluded in Management’s Report on Internal Galrfiver Financial Reporting
appearing under Item 9A, that Johnson Controls,dittnot maintain effective internal control o¥grancial reporting as of September 30,
2005, because the Company did not maintain effectbntrols over the identification and disclosufreeguired guarantor subsidiary financial
statement information, based on criteria estahbdishénternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg Cbhmpany’s management is responsible for maimgieffective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessmerthefeffectiveness of internal control over finahogporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on management’s assessment and on tletiedfeess of the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of internal controbiofinancial reporting in accordance with the sedd of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamgisinethat we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial
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reporting was maintained in all material respetsaudit of internal control over financial repadiincludes obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, evalugtimanagement’s assessment, testing and evaldlaéresign and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedwas we consider necessary in the circumstaebelieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financiaporting is a process designed to provide reaserasiurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygsats that could have a material effect on thenGiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficierarygombination of control deficiencies, that resuft more than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interimriitial statements will not be prevented or detectée. following material weakness has
been identified and included in managemgatsessment. As of September 30, 2005, the Condidnpt maintain effective controls over
identification and disclosure of required guaramstasidiary financial statement information in @@mpany’s consolidated financial
statements as required by Rule 3-10 of Regulatidh Specifically, the Company did not have effeetmontrols, including the
communication between the Company’s Treasury Deymart and Accounting Department, to identify theuiegd financial statement
disclosures to be included in the Company’s codatdid financial statements resulting from subsjdimrarantees applicable to certain third-
party debt of the Company. This control deficienegults in the restatement of the Company’s fi2684 and fiscal 2003 consolidated
financial statements and its fiscal 2005 and fi2€l4 interim consolidated financial statementsaddition, this control deficiency could
result in inaccurate or incomplete guarantor suasidinancial statement disclosures that wouldiltedgs a material misstatement to annual or
interim financial statements that would not be praed or detected. Accordingly, management hasleded that this deficiency constitutes a
material weakness. This material weakness was @eresi in determining the nature, timing, and extértudit tests applied in our audit of
the fiscal 2005 consolidated financial statemeants, our opinion regarding the effectiveness ofGbenpany’s internal control over financial
reporting does not affect our opinion on those otidated financial statements.

As described in Management’'s Report on Irete@ontrol Over Financial Reporting, managementeéhasuded the recently acquired
operations of Delphi Corporation’s global battensimess from its assessment of internal controt fimancial reporting as of September 30,
2005 because it was acquired by the Company inéhpse business combination in July 2005. We hbeeexcluded the recently acquired
operations of Delphi Corporation’s global battensimess from our audit of internal control ovemficial reporting; total assets and total
revenues of these operations represent approxiyréieland 1%, respectively, of the related constdiddinancial statement amounts as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2005.
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In our opinion, management’'s assessmentlttatison Controls, Inc. did not maintain effectivieeinal control over financial reporting as
of September 30, 2005, is fairly stated, in alleniai respects, based on criteria establishadt@érnal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the COSO. Also, in our opinion, becadsbeeffect of the material weakness describedralom the achievement of the objectives
of the control criteria, Johnson Controls, Inc. hasmaintained effective internal control overdirtial reporting as of September 30, 2005,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by the COSO.

W Ll

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
December 2, 2005

44




Table of Contents

Johnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended September 30,

Restated
2005 2004 2003
(In millions, except per share data)
Net sales
Products and system $ 24,337. $ 21,653. $ 18,610.:
Services* 3,142.: 2,949.¢ 2,561.;
27,479.. 24,603.!( 21,171.
Cost of sale:
Products and syster 21,463 18,911.: 16,065..
Services 2,533.¢ 2,414.( 2,077.¢
23,997.! 21,325.. 18,143.(
Gross profit 3,481.¢ 3,277.¢ 3,028.:
Selling, general and administrative exper 2,205t 2,144.¢ 2,000.:
Restructuring cosl 210.( 82.4 —
Japanese pension g — (84.4) —
Operating incom: 1,066.¢ 1,135.. 1,028.(
Interest incomt 13.C 13.1 8.4
Interest expens (120.5 (111.0 (113.9
Equity income 71.¢ 96.4 76.€
Miscellaneous— net (27.9) (63.9) (58.9)
Other income (expens (63.0 (65.4) (86.2)
Income before income taxes and minority inter 1,003.« 1,069.¢ 941.¢
Provision for income taxe 205.1 251.¢ 273.t
Minority interests in net earnings of subsidial 41.1 51.€ 23.4
Income from continuing operatiol 757.2 766.¢ 644.¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of incdaxes 16.1 50.7 38.C
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ofrime taxe: 136.1 — —
Net income $ 909.4 $ 817.f $ 682.¢
Earnings available for common shareholc $ 909.4 $ 815.7 $ 675.7
Earnings per share from continuing operati
Basic $ 3.9t $ 4.0¢ $ 3.57
Diluted $ 3.9C $ 3.9¢ $ 3.4C
Earnings per shal
Basic $ 4.74 $ 4.3t $ 3.7¢
Diluted $ 4.6¢ $ 4.2¢ $ 3.6C

* Products and systems consist of interior expeeand power solutions products and systems atdirguefficiency installed systems.
Services are building efficiency technical and lfgcmanagement service

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitlamcial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

September 30,

Restated
2005 2004
(In millions, except par value and share data)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel $ 171.2 $ 99.2
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfalbants of $47.0 and $46.9, respectiv 4,672.. 3,815.¢
Costs and earnings in excess of billings on uncetaglcontract 314.t 271.¢
Inventories 983.1 858.:
Assets of discontinued operatic — 579.¢
Other current asse 997.7 725.F

Current assel 7,138.¢ 6,350.!
Property, plant and equipme— net 3,581.¢ 3,333.¢
Goodwill — net 3,732.¢ 3,566.:
Other intangible asse— net 289.( 290.¢
Investments in partial-owned affiliates 444 ¢ 447 .¢
Other noncurrent asse 957.% 769.%
Total asset $ 16,144. $ 14,758.

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Shor-term debi $ 684.( $ 813.:
Current portion of lon-term debt 80.¢ 226.
Accounts payabl 3,937t 3,425.:
Accrued compensation and bene 704.2 592.
Accrued income taxe 44.: 48.€
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncetagl contract 225.7 197.2
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol — 228.t
Other current liabilitie: 1,164.¢ 888.¢

Current liabilities 6,841. 6,420.¢
Long-term debi 1,577t 1,630.¢
Postretirement health and other bene 158.7 164.1
Minority interests in equity of subsidiari 195.¢ 121t
Other noncurrent liabilitie 1,313.: 1,215.;

Long-term liabilities 3,244.¢ 3,131.:
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Common stock, $.04/ spar value

shares authorized: 600,000,(

shares issued: 20— 193,253,563; 200— 191,176,60¢ 8.1 8.C
Capital in excess of par vall 1,091.¢ 953.(
Retained earning 4,905.¢ 4,187.¢
Treasury stock, at cost (20— 382,628 shares; 20(— 855,668 share: (6.9 (14.5)
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 59.¢ 71.€

Shareholder equity 6,058.. 5,206.:
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $ 16,144. $ 14,758.c

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitlamcial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(In millions)

Operating Activities

Net income

Gain and income from discontinued operati

Income from continuing operatiol

Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuapgrations to cash provided by

operating activitie:
Depreciatior
Amortization of intangible:

Equity in earnings of partial-owned affiliates, net of dividends receiv

Deferred income taxe

Minority interests in net earnings of subsidial
Gain on sale of lor-term investmen
Non-cash restructuring cos

Pension contributions in excess of expe
Japanese pension settlement ¢

Other

Changes in working capital, excluding acquisitiansl divestitures of business

Receivable!
Inventories
Other current asse
Restructuring reserve
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Accrued income taxe
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncetegl contract
Cash provided by operating activities of continuapgration:
Investing Activities
Capital expenditure
Sale of property, plant and equipm
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Proceeds from sale of lo-term investmen
Business divestiture
Recoverable customer engineering expendit
Changes in lor-term investment
Cash used by investing activiti
Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in st-term deb+— net
Increase in lon-term debr
Repayment of lor-term debi
Payment of cash dividen
Other
Cash (used) provided by financing activit
Cash (used) provided by discontinued operat
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivale

September 30,

Restated

2005 2004 2003
$ 909. $ 817.t $ 682.¢
(152.7) (50.7) (38.0)
757.2 766.¢ 644.¢
613.: 550.: 511.¢
23.1 18.€ 16.¢
(46.5) (18.6) (25.€)
(25.2) 100.£ 120.
41.1 51.€ 23.¢
— — (16.6)
47.F 7.1 —
(138.9) - (231.7)
— (84.4) —
25.¢ (32.7) (5.9
(787.%) (308.9) 25.7
(59.4) (3.0) 1.4
(113.9) 36.€ (60.7)
101.¢ 41.¢ —
379.2 165.7 (52.7)
81.4 14.C (127.9
27.7 (3.0 (12.9
927 .¢ 1,303.: 811.¢
(664.1) (783.5) (606.0)
39.2 50.€ 52.2
(327.9) (419.6) (384.7)
— — 38.2
678.t — —
(9.8) (55.0) (46.0)
11.€ (25.6) (8.6)
(272.2) (1,232.9) (955.1)
(105.7) 659.¢ 52.¢
82.7 213.¢ 510.%
(373.7) (869.9) (376.7)
(191.9) (170.7) (136.9)
45.4 34.: 27.C
(543.9) (132.9 77.€
(69.2) 71.€ (6.2)
29.t 5.€ .3
$ 721 $ 15.% $ (629

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitlamcial statements.
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At September 30, 2002
Comprehensive incom:
Net income
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Realized gains on marketable securi
Realized and unrealized gains/losses on
derivatives
Minimum pension liability adjustmel
Other comprehensive incor
Comprehensive incorr
Reduction of guaranteed ESOP d
Cash dividend
Series D preferred ($3.97 per one ten-

Johnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Employee Stock
Ownership
Plan —
Unearned
Compensation

Preferred

Total Stock

Common
Stock

Capital in
Excess o'
Par
Value

Retained
Earnings

Treasury

Stock,
at Cost

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive

Income
(Loss)

(In millions, except per share data’

$3,499. $ 103 $ (446 %
682.¢ = =
203 — —

(11.9) — —

10.5 — —
(63.9 _ _
139.t

822.¢
21.C —

21.C

thousandth of a share), net of $0.5 million tax

benefit
Common ($0.72 per shar
Other, including options exercis
At September 30, 2003
Comprehensive incom:
Net income
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Realized and unrealized gains/losses on
derivatives
Minimum pension liability adjustmel
Other comprehensive incor
Comprehensive inconr
Reduction of guaranteed ESOP d
Cash dividend
Series D preferred ($0.99 per one ten-
thousandth of a share), net of tax ber
Common ($0.90 per shar
Par value reductio
Conversion of preferred stock to common st
Other, including options exercis:
At September 30, 200:
Comprehensive incom:
Net income
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Realized and unrealized gains/losses on
derivatives
Minimum pension liability adjustmel
Other comprehensive lo
Comprehensive incon
Cash dividend
Common ($1.00 per shar
Other, including options exercis:

At September 30, 2005

(7.2) — —
(128.6) — _
54.0 (6.7) —

14¢ $

0.2

690.C

58.C

$2,994.(

682.¢

$

(12.0 $

2.5

(246.9)

203.F
(11.9)

10.
(63.4)

4,261 97.1 (23.6)

817.t — —
171.2 — —

11. = =
3.9 — —
178.¢

996.:
23.¢ —

23.€

(1.8 — —
(168.9) — —
_ (96.0) _
95.¢ (1.2) —

15.1

748.(

(1.8
(168.9)

(9.5)

(106.9)

171.2

11.2
(C)

5,206. — —

909.2 — —
(29.5) = =

34.2 — —
(16.9 = =

(12.)
897.:

(191.9 — —
146.2 — —

0.1

138.¢

4,187.¢

909.4

(191.9

7.7

$6,058.. $ —  $ = $

81 $

1,091.¢

$4,905.

$

6.8 $

59.€

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitlamcial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements inclilngeaccounts of Johnson Controls, Inc. and itsedimand foreign subsidiaries that are
consolidated in conformity with accounting prin@plgenerally accepted in the United States of Aradll).S. GAAP). All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminateasitmvents in partially-owned affiliates are accodrite by the equity method when the
Company’s interest exceeds 20 percent. Under oestéeria as provided for in FASB Interpretation.M6(R), “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities”, the Company may consolidatadially-owned affiliate when it has less than &&6wnership. Gains and losses from the
translation of substantially all foreign currenayaincial statements are recorded in the accumutdtest comprehensive income account
within shareholders’ equity.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with U.S. GAAP requires management to makémates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts and related disclosures. Actsaltecould differ from those estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes revenue from long-®rstems installation contracts of the buildingoééhcy business over the contractual
period under the percentage-of-completion methaatobunting (see “Long-Term Contracts”). In allatlcases, the Company recognizes
revenue at the time products are shipped andptitdses to the customer or as services are performed

LONG-TERM CONTRACTS

Under the percentage-of-completion methodoabunting used for long-term contracts, salesgaosss profit are recognized as work is
performed based on the relationship between acts incurred and total estimated costs at coropleBales and gross profit are adjusted
prospectively for revisions in estimated total canot costs and contract values. Estimated losseseaorded when identified. Claims against
customers are recognized as revenue upon settleffenamount of accounts receivable due after eae ig not significant.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cagharket. Cost is determined using the last-istfout (LIFO) method for most inventories at
domestic locations. Cost of other inventories ieained on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) methdénished goods and work-in-process
inventories include material, labor and manufactyoverhead costs.

PRE-PRODUCTION COSTS RELATED TO LONG-TERM SUPPLY AR RANGEMENTS

The Company’s policy for engineering, reshand development, and other design and developoostd related to products that will be
sold under long-term supply arrangements requireb sosts to be expensed as incurred. Customebuesements are recorded as an
increase in cash and a reduction of Selling, géaghadministrative expense when reimbursement fie customer is received. Costs for
molds, dies, and other tools used to make prodbatswill be sold under long-term supply arrangetaame capitalized within Property, plant
and equipment if the Company has title to the assiehas the nonancelable right to use the assets during the ééitie supply arrangeme
Capitalized items, if specifically designed forupgly arrangement, are amortized over the terrh@ftrangement; otherwise, amounts are
amortized over the estimated useful lives of treetss The carrying values of assets capitalizet@dordance with the foregoing policy are
periodically reviewed for evidence of impairment. @eptember 30, 2005 and
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

2004, approximately $268 million and $178 millisaspectively, of costs for molds, dies and othelstavere capitalized within Property,

plant and equipment which represented assets tthvthe Company had title. In addition, at Septen3@er2005 and 2004, the Company

recorded within Other current assets approxima&2B0 million and $194 million, respectively, of t®$or molds, dies and other tools for
which customer reimbursement is assured.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Company uses the straight-line methadepfeciation for financial reporting purposes aockterated methods for income tax
purposes. The general range of useful lives farfaial reporting is 10 to 50 years for buildingsl amprovements and 3 to 20 years for
machinery and equipment.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Stadd (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other IntangiBlesets,” goodwill and indefinite
lived intangible assets are not amortized; howewath must be tested for impairment at least ampuamortization continues to be recorded
for other intangible assets with definite liveseT@ompany is subject to financial statement risthenevent that goodwill and intangible as
become impaired.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has written policies and procesltinat place all financial instruments under tihection of corporate treasury and restrict
all derivative transactions to those intended fulding purposes. The use of financial instrumemt$réding purposes is strictly prohibited.
The Company uses financial instruments to managentirket risk from changes in foreign exchangesratel interest rates.

The fair values of all derivatives are re@atdn the Consolidated Statement of Financial RosiThe change in a derivative’s fair value is
recorded each period in current earnings or accatellother comprehensive income (OCI), dependingtwther the derivative is designa
as part of a hedge transaction and if so, the ¢§pedge transaction.

The Company hedges 70 to 90 percent of ibsvknforeign exchange transactional exposures. Tmpany primarily enters into forward
exchange contracts to reduce the earnings andloashmpact of non-functional currency denominatedeivables and payables. Gains and
losses resulting from these contracts offset theido exchange gains or losses on the underlyisgtaisind liabilities being hedged. The
maturities of the forward exchange contracts gdlyeraincide with the settlement dates of the rdbtransactions. Gains and losses on these
contracts are recorded in Miscellaneous — neténGbnsolidated Statement of Income and are recedriivthe same period as gains and
losses on the hedged items.

Cash Flow Hedgeshe Company selectively hedges anticipated traimsecthat are subject to foreign exchange expogun®arily using
foreign currency exchange contracts. These instnisrere designated as cash flow hedges in accardetit SFAS No. 133,Accounting fol
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”asended by SFAS No. 137, No. 138 and No. 149 amdeaorded in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Effective portion of the contracts’ gains or losdae to changes in fair value are initially
recorded as a component of accumulated OCI ansidxsequently reclassified into earnings when tligée transactions, typically sales and
costs related to sales, occur and affect earniftgsse contracts are highly effective in hedgingvidugability in future cash flows attributable
to changes in currency exchange rates. The Comglaayselectively uses interest rate swaps to matdifyxposure to interest rate
movements. These swaps also qualify as cash flolgdse with changes in fair value recorded as a oot of accumulated OCI. Interest
expense is recorded in earnings at the fixed ettéogth in the swap agreement. At September 3052the Company entered into three
forward treasury lock agreements designated asfagthedges to reduce the market risk associatdtdahanges in interest rates
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related to the Company’s anticipated fixede bond issuance to finance an acquisition (se M. and 23) . There were no interest rate s
outstanding designated as cash flow hedges atr8bpte30, 2004.

For the years ended September 30, 2005 0w Be net amounts recognized in earnings duseffeictiveness and amounts excluded
from the assessment of hedge effectiveness wenmatatial. The amount reported as realized andaliresl gains/losses on derivatives in
accumulated OCI account within shareholders’ eg@ipresents the net gain/loss on derivatives dasidras cash flow hedges.

Fair Value Hedge§he Company had two interest rate swaps outstaratiBgptember 30, 2005 designated as a hedge fitvalue of
a portion of fixed-rate bonds (see Note 11). Baothdwap and the hedged portion of the debt arededdn the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. The change in fair value of shvaps exactly offsets the change in fair valuhethedged debt, with no net impact on
earnings.

Net Investment Hedg@fie Company has cross-currency interest rate sarsg$oreign currency-denominated debt obligatibras are
designated as hedges of the foreign currency exp@ssociated with its net investments in foreigarations. The currency effects of the
obligations are reflected in the accumulated OCbant where they offset translation gains and lmsseorded on the Company’s net
investments in Europe and Japan. The cross-curiatengst rate swaps are recorded in the Conselidatatement of Financial Position at
fair value, with changes in value attributable hamges in foreign exchange rates recorded in tieégio currency translation adjustments
component of accumulated OCI. Net interest paymenteceipts from the interest rate swaps are dezbas adjustments to interest expense
in earnings on a current basis. A net gain of agprately $5 million associated with hedges of meieistments in foreign operations was
recorded in the accumulated OCI account for theodeanded September 30, 2005. A net loss of appravaly $86 million associated with
hedges of net investments in foreign operationsre@srded in the accumulated OCI account for thimgeended September 30, 2004.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company adopted the fair value recogmitimvision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for StoBlesed Compensatiorihd adopted tt
disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148, “Accounfior Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and B&gale-an amendment of FAS 123,
effective October 1, 2002. In accordance with SFS 148, the Company has adopted the fair valuegrEtion provisions on a prospective
basis. Compensation expense is recognized ovénibe-year vesting period of stock options granted.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are computed byidiyinet income, after deducting dividend requirete®n the Series D Convertible Prefel
Stock, by the weighted average number of commoreshautstanding. Diluted earnings per share argated by dividing net income, after
deducting the after-tax compensation expense thatdiarise from the assumed conversion of the S&i€onvertible Preferred Stock, by
diluted weighted average shares outstanding. Diluteighted average shares assume the converstba 8eries D Convertible Preferred
Stock, if dilutive, plus the dilutive effect of canon stock equivalents which would arise from thereise of stock options. Effective
December 31, 2003, the Company converted all thstanding Series D Convertible Preferred Stock [¢ete 12).

CASH FLOW

For purposes of the Consolidated Stateme@tash Flows, the Company considers all investmeititsa maturity of three months or less
at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Substantially all of the Company’s internatboperations use the respective local currengi@functional currency. Assets and
liabilities of international entities have beemistated at period-end exchange rates, and incothexgenses have been translated using
average exchange rates for the period.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income is defined as the sunebincome and all other non-owner changes intgqiihe components of the non-owner
changes in equity, or accumulated other compreheriscome, were as follows (net of tax):

September 30

2005 2004
(In millions)
Foreign currency translation adjustme $ 1291 $ 158.¢
Realized and unrealized gains/losses on deriva 43.2 8.S
Minimum pension liability adjustmen (112.5) (95.6)
Accumulated other comprehensive inca $ 59.¢ $ T71.C

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

During December 2004, the Financial Accountttandards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 123R,tSBased PaymentSFAS 123R]
which requires companies to measure and recognin@ensation expense for all stock-based paymeffasr aalue. Stock-based payments
include stock option grants and certain transastiorder other Company stock plans. The Companytgyogtions to purchase common stock
to some of its employees under various plans aeprequal to the market value of the stock on #testhe options were granted. In April
2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission ardehéeesffective date of SFAS 123R to the firstiimeperiod of the first fiscal year
beginning after June 15, 2005 and accordingly tbdified prospective method will be adopted by tlwrpany in the first quarter of fiscal
2006. The impact of the adoption of SFAS 123R délpend on levels of share-based payments grantbd future.

RECLASSIFICATION
Certain prior year amounts have been re¢ladgio conform to the current year’s presentation.

1. ACQUISITIONS

In fiscal 2005, the Company made six acqgoisit for a combined purchase price of approxima$&l$3 million, including the assumption
of debt. The most significant of these acquisitignas follows:

«In June 2005, the Company completed its acquisdfddS| Companies, Inc. Management believes thimisition will provide clients
with an expanded, integrated mix of global corpera@l estate services, enabling the Company thefualign new and existing
customer real estate assets with their business object

«In July 2005, the Company completed the acquisitioDelphi Corporation’s global battery businesandgement believes the
acquisition enables the Company to participat@érapidly growing Asian automotive battery marletiticularly in China
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The following table summarizes the prelimintair values of the assets acquired and liabliiesumed at the dates of acquisition.

(In millions)
Current assets, net of cash acqu $ 161.:
Property, plant and equipme 168.2
Goodwill 166.2
Other intangible asse 16.2
Other noncurrent asse 62.5
Total asset 574.%
Current liabilities 176.¢
Long-term liabilities 69.€
Total liabilities 246.5
Net assets acquire $ 327.¢

The operating results of these acquisitiamgetbeen included in the Company’s Consolidatedriial Statements from the dates of
acquisition. Pro forma information reflecting thesmjuisitions has not been disclosed as the ingracbnsolidated net income was not
material.

Goodwill of approximately $86 million, all @fhich is tax deductible, has been assigned ttilding efficiency segment. Goodwill of
approximately $8 million, none of which is tax detlhle, has been assigned to the interior expegierdNorth America segment. Goodwiill
of approximately $72 million, $68 million of whidk tax deductible, has been assigned to the povketiens segment. In addition,
approximately $16 million of customer relationshfjpbject to amortization were recorded with a udé@iof 15 years. The purchase price
allocations may be subsequently adjusted to refileat appraisals and other valuation studies.

The Company has recorded restructuring resesf’approximately $82 million related to the Drélpattery acquisition. This restructuring
reserve includes workforce reductions of approxatyat,500 employees and calls for four plants telbsed or merged into existing faciliti
of the Company. As of September 30, 2005, the Compaas in the process of finalizing the restructgmlan related to the acquisition. The
Company anticipates that the restructuring actwitisoe completed by the end of the first quartefiscal 2007. As of September 30, 2005,
there was no usage of the restructuring reserves.

In fiscal 2004, the Company acquired 100% enship of its power solutions joint venture withupo IMSA, S.A. de C.V. (Latin
American JV). The purchase price for the remairiihép interest in the joint venture was approxima&d25 million, including the
assumption of debt. The acquisition was fundedhilhjtwith short-term debt. Management believesdbauisition is in line with the
Company'’s growth strategies and provides new oppdi¢s to strengthen the Company’s global leadpnsbsition in the automotive battery
industry.
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The following table summarizes the fair valwd the assets acquired and liabilities assumdéakiatin American JV acquisition, which
was effective on August 1, 2004.

(In millions)
Current assets, net of cash acqu $ 163.¢
Property, plant and equipme 218.¢
Goodwill 458.(
Other intangible asse 37.C
Other noncurrent asse 4.C
Total asset 881.%
Current liabilities 167.7
Long-term liabilities 214.(
Total liabilities 381.%
Less historical investment balance in part-owned affiliate 117.C
Net assets acquire $ 383.(

The operating results of the Latin Americarhdve been included in the Company’s consolidéitexhcial statements from the date of
acquisition. For periods prior to the acquisititte Company’s investment was accounted for by tjuétyemethod. Pro forma information
reflecting this acquisition has not been discloaethe impact on consolidated net income was nténah

Goodwill of $458 million, none of which isxtaeductible, has been assigned to the power snkisegment related to the Latin American
JV acquisition. Approximately $12 million of custemrelationships subject to amortization were réedrwith a weighted average useful life
of approximately 39 years. In addition, $25 millieas assigned to trademarks with an indefiniteuldigé.

In fiscal 2003, the Company made acquisitions combined purchase price of approximately5hilion, including the assumption of
debt. Short-term borrowings were initially usedit@nce the acquisitions and were partially reficeththrough the issuance of senior notes in
September 2003. The more significant of these a@ns were as follows:

* On October 31, 2002, the Company acquired VARTA $\&utomotive Battery Division, a major Europeancauibtive battery
manufacturer headquartered in Germany. The VartarAaotive Battery Division (Varta) consists of VARTAutomotive GmbH and tt
80 percent majority ownership in VB Autobatterie

« Effective July 23, 2003, the Company completedaitguisition of Borg Instruments AG (Borg), an autdive electronics company
with headquarters in Germar
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The following table summarizes the fair valwod the assets acquired and liabilities assuméteadates of acquisition.

(In millions)
Current assets, net of cash acqu $ 343.1
Property, plant and equipme 261.1
Goodwill 200.:
Other intangible asse 51.€
Other noncurrent asse 14.1
Total asset 870.2
Current liabilities 278.2
Long-term liabilities 207.:
Total liabilities 485.F
Net assets acquire $ 384.7

The operating results of these acquisitiamgetbeen included in the Company’s consolidateahfiral statements from the dates of
acquisition. Pro forma information reflecting thesmjuisitions has not been disclosed as the ingracbnsolidated net income was not
material.

Goodwill of approximately $200 million, of vudh $22 million is expected to be deductible fot parposes, has been assigned to the
interior experience — Europe segment ($107 millamdl the power solutions segment ($93 million). vegpmately $43 million of intangible
assets subject to amortization and with a weightestage useful life of approximately 24 years wepsrded. This included approximately
$1 million and $17 million, respectively, of patedtand unpatented technology with a weighted aeenagful life of approximately 14 years,
and $25 million of customer relationships with agied average useful life of approximately 31 ge&m addition, $9 million was assigned
to trademarks with an indefinite useful life.

Restructuring reserves related to the Vartpsition of approximately $18 million were recetdat September 30, 2003. The majority of
the reserves were established for employee severarsts related to workforce reductions of appraxély 235 employees. The Varta
restructuring activities were substantially comglat the end of fiscal year 2004. The Company naditeal payment of $36.6 million related
to the Varta acquisition in fiscal 2004.

2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In February 2005, the Company completed #te af its engine electronics business, includetiéninterior experience — Europe
segment, to Valeo for approximately € 316 millionabout $419 million. This nocere business was acquired in fiscal 2002 from Baga.
As part of the post-closing activities, the Compaaitled a claim with Valeo for approximately $8limn ($5 million after tax), resulting in
an adjustment to the purchase price. The saleeodtigine electronics business resulted in a gaappfoximately $81 million ($51 million
after tax), net of related costs.

In March 2005, the Company completed the shits Johnson Controls World Services, Inc. sdiasy (World Services), included in the
building efficiency segment, to IAP Worldwide Seres, Inc. for approximately $260 million. This nsinategic business was acquired in
fiscal 1989 from Pan Am Corporation. The sale ofri#&ervices resulted in a gain of approximatelg$nillion ($85 million after tax), net
of related costs.
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The following summarizes the revenues, exgeand related gain on sale of the discontinuedatipas:

Johnson Controls

Engine Electronics(1) World Services, Inc.(2)
Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30,
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

(In millions)
Net sales $ 1997 $ 435¢ $ 2886 $ 3404 $ 7541 $ 766.1
Cost of sale: 172.% 362.2 239.4 318.€ 695.( 715.¢

Gross profit 27.4 73.7 49.Z 21.¢ 59.1 50.2
Selling, general and administrative exper 16.€ 33.¢ 29.t 8.1 16.€ 9.C
Operating incom: 10.€ 39.¢ 19.7 13.7 42.2 41.2
Miscellaneou— net — — — 14 0.2 1.1

Income before income taxes and minority inter 10.€ 39.¢ 19.7 15.1 42 .4 42.3
Provision for income taxe 3.7 14.1 7.C 5.8 16.5 16.5
Minority interests — — — 0.1 0.9 0.5
Net income $ 62 $ 257 $ 127 $ 92 $ 250 $ 25:
Earnings per share from discontinued operat

Basic $ 00 $ 014 $ 007 $ 008 $ 01z $ 0.14

Diluted $ 00 $ 01z $ 007 $ 00t $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1
Earnings per share from gain on sale of discontinue

operations
Basic $ 0.27 — — $ 0.4 — —
Diluted $ 0.2¢€ — — $ 0.4 — —

(1) Engine Electronics includes revenues and expehsaeggh February 28, 2005, the effective date ofdibposition.
(2) World Services includes revenues and expensesghigiarch 30, 2005, the effective date of disposit

Assets of the engine electronics business e disposal date totaled $427 million, whicimgisted of goodwill ($154 million), accounts
receivable ($100 million), property, plant and guuéent — net ($69 million), other intangible assetsiet ($59 million) and other
miscellaneous assets ($45 million). Liabilitiestoé engine electronics business as of the displadaltotaled $89 million, which consisted of
accounts payable ($82 million) and other miscelbarsdiabilities ($7 million).

Assets of Johnson Controls World Services, &3 of the disposal date totaled $178 millioniclwltonsisted of accounts receivable
($127 million), goodwill ($30 million), property lant and equipment — net ($10 million) and otheserilaneous assets ($11 million).
Liabilities of Johnson Controls World Services,.las of the disposal date totaled $57 million, Whgonsisted of accounts payable
($40 million) and other miscellaneous liabiliti&d 7 million).
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3. INVENTORIES

September 30,
2005 2004

(In millions)

Raw materials and suppli $ 497 .2 $ 462.7
Work-in-process 157.¢ 139.1
Finished good 377.¢ 291.c
FIFO inventories 1,032.¢ 893.1
LIFO reserve (49.7) (34.9)
Inventories $ 983.1 $ 858.:

Inventories valued by the LIFO method of ag@ing were approximately 31 percent of total ireeies at September 30, 2005 and 2004.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

September 30,
2005 2004

(In millions)

Buildings and improvemen $ 1,783.¢ $ 1,558.!
Machinery and equipme 5,086.¢ 4,781..
Construction in progres 479. 382.(
Land 249.¢ 249.(
Total property, plant and equipme 7,599.( 6,970.
Less accumulated depreciati (4,017.9) (3,636.9)
Property, plant and equipme— net $ 3,58l $ 3,333.¢

Interest costs capitalized during 2005, 2804 2003 were $11.2 million, $16.0 million and $&ilion, respectively.

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The changes in the carrying amount of goddailthe years ended September 30, 2005 and 2@04 as follows:

Interiors — Interiors — Interiors —
Buildings North America Europe Asia Power Total

(In millions)

Balance as of September 30, 20( $ 4047  $ 1,176..  $ 942  $ 212.¢  $249.1 $2,985.:
Gooduwill from business acquisitiol — — — — 458.C  458.(
Currency translatio 31.c 0.€ 71.¢ 2.4 10.4 116.5
Other (1.7) — 10.€ (30.0 27.7 6.€
Balance as of September 30, 2004 434.: 1,176.7 1,024. 185.: 745.z2 3,566.:
Gooduwill from business acquisitiol 85.¢ 8.C — — 72.2 166.2
Currency translatio (3.0 1.4 (20.7) 5.€ (0.8 (6.9
Other (1.§) (0.2 (1.2 1.t 8.8 7.1
Balance as of September 30, 2005 $ 515.2 $ 1,185.¢ $ 1,013.:  $ 192.¢  $825.f $3,732.¢

See Note 1 for discussion of goodwill fronsimesses acquired during fiscal 2005 and 2004.
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The Company’s other intangible assets, piiignelom acquisitions, are valued based on indepebdppraisals and consisted of the

following:
September 30, 2005 September 30, 2004
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
(In millions)
Amortized intangible asse
Patented technolog $ 230¢ % (102.§) $128.1 $ 2321 % (85.¢) $146.%
Unpatented technolog 31.t (6.8 24.7 31.7 4.9 26.€
Customer relationshig 95.k (7.6) 87.¢ 76.Z (4.9 71.5
Miscellaneous 9.9 (8.3 1.€ 10.E (7.3 3.2
Total amortized intangible asst 367.¢ (125.5 242.: 350.¢ (102.9) 247.¢
Unamortized intangible asse¢
Trademarks 39.€ — 39.¢ 37.1 — 37.1
Pension asst 7.1 — 7.1 6.C — 6.C
Total unamortized intangible ass 46.7 — 46.7 43.1 — 43.1
Total intangible asse $ 414 (125.9) $289.C $ 3937 $ 102.9) $290.¢

Amortization of other intangible assets wppraximately $23 million and $19 million for theams ended September 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Excluding the impact of any futurgusitions including York International Corporatidhe Company anticipates that annual
amortization of other intangible assets will appnoate $21 million for each of the next five years.

6. GUARANTEES

The Company has guaranteed the residual valated to the Company aircraft accounted foryashetic leases. The guarantees extend
through the maturity of each respective underly@zge in September 2006. In the event the Compeargised its option not to purchase the
aircraft for the remaining obligations at the salled maturity of the leases, the Company has gteedrthe majority of the residual values,
not to exceed $44 million and $53 million in aggregat September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively Cbmpany has recorded a liability of
approximately $2 million and $4 million within Othaoncurrent liabilities and a corresponding offséhin Other noncurrent assets in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position negato the Company’s obligation under the guaranéé&eptember 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. These amounts are being amortizedtbedife of the guarantees.

7. PRODUCT WARRANTIES

The Company offers warranties to its cust@anuepending upon the specific product and terntseo€ustomer purchase agreement. Most
of the Company’s product warranties are customecifip. The Company has been increasingly offedisgounts in lieu of warranties
resulting in a decline in the overall warranty lld. A typical warranty program requires that tBempany replace defective products within
a specified time period from the date of sale. Thenpany records an estimate for future warrantgteel costs based on actual historical
return rates. Based on analysis of return rateso#ret factors, the adequacy of the Company’s wéyrgrovisions are adjusted as necessary.
While the Company warranty costs have historically been withircafculated estimates, it is possible that futurerargy costs could exce
those estimates. The Company’s product warrarniylitiais included in Other current liabilities the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.
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The changes in the carrying amount of the @amy’s total product warranty liability for the yeaended September 30, 2005 and 2004
were as follows:

Year Ended
September 30,
2005 2004

(In millions)
Beginning balanc $ 67F $ 78.:
Accruals for warranties issued during the pe 46.¢ 48.¢
Accruals from business acquisiti 3.1 4.2
Accruals related to p-existing warranties (including changes in estimg (6.5 (22.€
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during théople (49.9) (43.])
Currency translatio (0.2 2.2
Ending balanci $ 615 $ 67.E
8. LEASES

Certain administrative and production faigbtand equipment are leased under long-term agmsnMost leases contain renewal options
for varying periods, and certain leases includéoogtto purchase the leased property during dreaehd of the lease term. Leases generally
require the Company to pay for insurance, taxesnaaidtenance of the property. Leased capital agsdtsded in net property, plant and
equipment, primarily buildings and improvementsrev&78 million and $90 million at September 30, 2@0d 2004, respectively.

Other facilities and equipment are leaseceuagrangements that are accounted for as opellatisgs. Total rental expense was
$242 million in 2005, $235 million in 2004 and $20@lion in 2003.

Future minimum capital and operating leaggmEnts and the related present value of capitabl@ayments at September 30, 2005 were
as follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
(In millions)
2006 $ 18.€ $ 245.2
2007 14.C 134.€
2008 13.7 94.t
2009 49.€ 72.4
2010 7.8 52.:
After 2010 25.1 86.€
Total minimum lease paymer 128.¢ $ 685.¢
Interest 24.:
Present value of net minimum lease paym $ 104.¢
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9. SHORT-TERM DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS

September 30,
2005 2004
(In millions)
Commercial pape $ 476.¢ $ 267.C
Bank borrowings 207.2 546.:
Shor-term debi $ 684.( $ 813.c
Weighted average interest rate on s-term debt outstandin 3.75% 2.36%

The Company had committed lines of creditilatsée for support of outstanding commercial pabet averaged $1.25 billion during the
year and were $1.25 billion at September 30, 200&ddition, the Company had uncommitted linesreflit from banks totaling $1.62 billic
at September 30, 2005, of which $1.50 billion remadiunused. The lines of credit are subject taithual terms and conditions applied by
banks.

In October 2005, the Company entered inteexyear $1.6 billion revolving credit facility wti expires in October 2010. This facility
replaces the five-year $625 million revolving ctedtility, which would have expired in October B)@nd the 364-day $625 million facility,
which expired in October 2005. There were no dravany of the committed credit lines through Seten30, 2005.

In October 2005, the Company entered int@.8 $illion revolving credit facility. The facilitgxpires on the earlier of 364 days after the
effective date of this credit agreement, as defioedecember 28, 2006. The Company intends tdhesesvolving credit facility to provide a
liquidity backstop for commercial paper that thenpany intends to issue to fund the anticipated ia@tgpn of York International Corporatic
(see Note 23).
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10. LONG-TERM DEBT

September 30,
2005 2004
(In millions)
Unsecured note
Floating rate note due in 20! $ — $ 200.(
4.875% due in 2013 ($300 million par val 298.¢ 298.t
5% due in 2007 ($350 million par valu 353.% 361.¢
6.3% due in 2008 ($175 million par valt 174.¢ 175.¢
7.7% due in 2015 ($125 million par valt 124.¢ 124.¢
7.125% due in 2017 ($150 million par val 149.¢ 149.1
6.95% due in 204 125.( 125.(
Unsecured loa
Floating rate loan due in 20( 50.C 50.C
Industrial revenue bonds due through 2005, nehamortized discount of $0.1 million in 20 — 9.7
Capital lease obligatior 104.¢ 89.C
Foreigr-denominated del
euro 131t 1422
yen 91.4 92.1
Other 54.z 39.¢
Gross lon-term debt 1,658.- 1,857.:
Less current portio 80.¢ 226.7
Net lon¢-term debi $ 1577t $ 1,630.¢

Due dates are by fiscal ye.

At September 30, 2005, the Company’s euraahénmated long-term debt was comprised of $132 omlbbf fixed rate debt. The weighted
average interest rate of the fixed debt was 8.8%.

The Company had yen-denominated long-ternh tédling $91 million at September 30, 2005. Tixed interest rate portion of yen debt
was equivalent to $59 million with a weighted awgranterest rate of 1.7% and the variable ratdqomas equivalent to $32 million with a
weighted average interest rate of 0.36%.

In September 2005, the Company repaid intfigl$200 million longerm, floating rate note that matured. The repaymes funded witl
short-term borrowings.

The installments of long-term debt maturingubsequent years are: 2006 — $81 million, 2008447 million, 2008 — $263 million,
2009 — $88 million, 2010 — $5 million, 2011 and beg — $774 million. The Company’s long-term deltlides various financial
covenants, none of which are expected to restriaré operations.

Total interest paid on both short and longatdebt was $133 million in 2005, $137 million i6@ and $118 million in 2003. The
Company uses financial instruments to manage tiésdst rate exposure (see Note 11). These insttisraéiact the weighted average interest
rate of the Company’s debt and interest expense.
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of cash and cash equival@tspunts receivable, short-term debt and accqayable approximate their carrying values.
The fair value of long-term debt, which was $1.lfidn and $1.9 billion at September 30, 2005 an@£0espectively, was determined using
market interest rates and discounted future casvstl

The Company selectively uses derivative umagnts to reduce market risk associated with ctaimg®reign currency and interest rates.
The use of derivatives is restricted to those idéehfor hedging purposes; the use of any derivatisteument for trading purposes is strictly
prohibited. See the Summary of Significant AccoougtPolicies for additional information regarding tGompany’s objectives for holding
certain derivative instruments, its strategiesafthieving those objectives, and its risk managemedtaccounting policies applicable to these
instruments.

The Company has global operations and ppaies in the foreign exchange markets to minintzeisk of loss from fluctuations in
currency exchange rates. The Company primarily fsegyn currency exchange contracts to hedgeioenfdts foreign currency exposure.

The Company selectively uses interest ratgswio reduce market risk associated with chamgigerest rates (cash flow or fair value
hedges). In May 2002, the Company entered intaugdod-a-half-year interest rate swap to hedgeriopoof the Company’s 5% notes
maturing in November 2006. Under the swap, the Gompeceives interest based on a fixed U.S. dataerof 5% and pays interest based on
a floating three-month U.S. dollar LIBOR rate plis75 basis points. Terms of the four-and-a-ha#fry@vap were modified since inception
of the swap resulting in a decrease of notionalarhof $100 million from the original $250 millioin October 2003, the Company entered
into a four-year and three-month interest rate stwdpedge the Company’s 6.3% notes maturing indgr2008. Under the swap, the
Company receives interest based on a fixed U.$ardwalte of 6.3% and pays interest based on affigpaiiree-month U.S. dollar LIBOR rate
plus 283.5 basis points.

In September 2005, the Company entered imetforward treasury lock agreements to reducentdmiet risk associated with changes in
interest rates associated with the Company’s auatied fixed-rate bond issuance to finance the attopri of York International Corporation
(cash flow hedge; see Note 23). The three forwaabury lock agreements, which have a combinedmaitamount of $1.3 billion, fix a
portion of the future interest cost for 5-year,yHar and 30-year bonds. The fair value of eaclstigdock agreement, or the difference
between the treasury lock reference rate and xlee fiate at time of bond issuance, will be amodtitmeinterest expense over the life of the
respective bond issuance.

The Company also selectively uses cross-soyraterest rate swaps to hedge the foreign cayrerposure associated with its net
investment in certain foreign operations (net inment hedges). Under the swaps, the Company reciiterest based on a variable
U.S. dollar rate and pays interest based on varigdah and euro rates on the outstanding notiomatipal amounts in dollars, yen and euro,
respectively.

In addition, the Company selectively usestgawaps to reduce market risk associated withtiisk-based compensation plans, such as
its deferred compensation plans and stock appregcidghts. These equity compensation liabilitiesrease as the Company’s stock price
increases and decrease as the Company’s stockdgtceases. In contrast, the value of the swaeagyet moves in the opposite direction of
these liabilities, allowing the Company to fix arfion of the liabilities at a stated amount. In Ma2004, the Company entered into an equity
swap agreement. In connection with the swap agregra¢hird party may purchase shares of the Cogigatock in the market or in
privately negotiated transactions up to an amoguakto $135 million in aggregate market valuerat given time. Although the Swap
Agreement has a stated expiration date, the Companrtgntion is to continually renew the Swap Agremt with Citibank, N.A.’s consent.
The Swap Agreement’s impact on the Company’s egsnior the year ended September 30, 2005 was rtetiada
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The Company’s derivative instruments are réed at fair value in the Consolidated Statemertioancial Position as follows:

September 30,

2005 2004
Notional Fair Value Asse Notional Fair Value Asset
Amount (Liability) Amount (Liability)

(U.S. dollar equivalents, in million:

Other current assets

Treasury lock agreemer $ 1,27¢ $ 31 $ — $ =

Foreign currency exchange contre 2,98¢ 20 1,21¢ 1

Crost-currency interest rate swa 737 58 — —

Equity swar 107 3 97 3

Other noncurrent assets

Interest rate sway — — 32t 9

Other noncurrent liabilities

Interest rate sway 32t (2 — —

Cros«-currency interest rate swa — — 81¢€ (29

It is important to note that the Company’siiiive instruments are hedges protecting againderlying changes in foreign currency and
interest rates. Accordingly, the implied gains/esassociated with the fair values of foreign awyeexchange contracts and cross-currency
interest rate swaps would be offset by gains/loesasnderlying payables, receivables and net invests in foreign subsidiaries. Similarly,
implied gains/losses associated with interestsataps offset changes in interest rates and thedhie of long-term debt.

The fair values of interest rate and crossency interest rate swaps were determined usiatgdguotes and market interest rates. The
fair values of foreign currency exchange contragse determined using market exchange rates.

12. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Company originally issued 341.7969 shaféis 7.75 percent Series D Convertible Prefe@aatk to its ESOP. The preferred stock
was issued in fractional amounts representing endhiousandth of a share each or 3.4 million preéestock units in total. Each preferred
stock unit has a liquidation value of $51.20. TI®CP financed its purchase of the preferred stoik by issuing debt. An amount
representing unearned employee compensation, dguiva value to the unpaid balance of the ESOR, dets been recorded as a deduction
from shareholders’ equity. The net increase inethalders’ equity at September 30, 2003 resultingnfthe above transactions was
$74 million.

Preferred stock units were allocated to pgditing employees over the term of the ESOP dasedh on the annual ESOP debt service
payments and were held in trust for the employedistheir retirement, death or vested terminatiBach allocated unit could be converted
into four shares of common stock (on a post-splitify see below) or redeemed for $51.20 in cagheatlection of the employee or
beneficiary, upon retirement, death or vested teaton.

Dividends on the preferred stock were dethlefior income tax purposes and entered into therchénation of earnings available for
common shareholders, net of their tax benefit.

On November 19, 2003, the Company’s Boamiodctors declared a two-for-one split of the Comga common stock payable
January 2, 2004 to shareholders of record on Deeefith 2003. The stock split resulted in the isseasf approximately 90.5 million
additional shares of common stock. In connectidi Wie stock split, the par value of the commomlstwas changed from $.16 2/3 per share
to $.04 1/6 per share.
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Effective December 31, 2003, the Company’amf Directors authorized the redemption ofladl butstanding Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock, held in the ESOP, and the ESGieLconverted the preferred stock into commoreshiaraccordance with the terms of the
preferred stock certificate. The conversion resiiitethe issuance of approximately 7.5 million coomshares (on a post-split basis) and was
accounted for through a transfer from preferredisto common stock and capital in excess of parezal'he conversion of $96 million of
preferred shares held by the ESOP has been refledtiein Shareholders’ Equity in the Consolidatedt&ment of Financial Position. The
conversion of these shares resulted in their immtum the basic weighted average common sharestamuating amount used to compute basic
earnings per share (EPS). The conversion of pegfesinares has always been assumed in the detaomiofdiluted EPS. The Company’s
ESOP was financed with debt issued by the ESOPthenfinal ESOP debt payment of $23.6 million wagdy the Company in December
2003.

Options to purchase common stock of the Compat prices equal to or higher than market vabredates of grant, are granted to key
employees under stock option plans. Stock appieniaights (SARS) may be granted in conjunctionhwite stock option grants under one
plan. Options or SARs are exercisable between twdoten years after date of grant for current emgésy Shares available for future grant
under stock option plans were 4.5 million at Sefiten80, 2005.

Following is a summary of activity in the skooption plans for the three-year period endedeseper 30, 2005:

Weighted Shares
Average Subject to
Option Price Option SARs
Outstanding
September 30, 20( $ 29.6¢ 10,549,87. 1,450,291
Granted 40.32 2,735,58: 268,10(
Exercisec 25.3¢ (2,600,16)) (352,39)
Cancellec 31.8¢ (365,889) (292,489
Outstanding
September 30, 20C $ 33.51 10,319,40 1,073,511
Granted 52.5¢ 2,523,33! 268,99:.
Exercisec 28.31 (2,175,42) (286,119
Cancellec 41.02 (287,400 (81,71()
Outstanding
September 30, 20( $ 39.02 10,379,90 974,67
Granted 61.6¢ 2,521,12! 280,07¢
Exercisec 32.3¢ (2,135,29) (214,070
Cancellec 47.12 (241,25() (41,520)
Outstanding
September 30, 20( $ 45.62 10,524,49. 999,16!
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Options outstanding at September 30, 20

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Outstanding at Remaining Exercise
September 30, Contractual Price per
Range of Exercise Price 2005 Life (Years) Share
$15.00- $26.99 223,95! 1.5 $ 20.2i
$27.00- $38.99 1,775,72 4.7 $ 28.6:
$39.00- $50.99 3,723,81. 6.€ $ 40.2:
$51.00- $62.99 4,801,00 8.4 $ 57.2¢
Options Exercisable
Weighted
Exercisable Average Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Price per Share
At September 30, 20C
$15.00- $26.99 223,95! $ 20.2i
$27.00- $38.99 1,775,72 $ 28.62
$39.00- $50.99 2,641,76. $ 40.1¢
$51.00- $62.99 220,30( $ 55.5¢
4,861,73 $ 35.7¢
At September 30, 20C 4,612,82 $ 31.02
At September 30, 20C 3,805,11! $ 26.12

Effective October 1, 2002, the Company vauiht adopted the fair value recognition provisiaisSFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” and adopted the dis@osguirements of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting forckt®ased Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure-an amendment of SFAS"183accordance with SFAS No. 148, the Companyddipted the fair value
recognition provisions on a prospective basis andordingly, the expense recognized in fiscal 2@@Besents a pro rata portion of the 2005,
2004, and 2003 grants which are earned over a-flgaevesting period.

The fair values of each option and the assiomg used to estimate these values using the Babloles option pricing model were as
follows:

Grants Issued in Year Ended September 30, 2005 2004 2003
Expected life of option (year: 5 5 6
Risk-free interest rat 3.4&% 3.0% 3.1%
Expected volatility of the Compa’s stock 20.0(% 23.0(% 26.95%
Expected dividend yield on the Comp’s stock 1.7¢% 1.75% 1.82%
Fair value of each optic $ 12 $ 1 $ 1
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The following table illustrates the pro formfect on net income and earnings per shareths ifair value based method had been applied
to all outstanding and unvested awards in eachlfiszar:

Year Ended September 30, 2005 2004 2003

(In millions, except
per share data)

Net income, as reporte $ 909. $ 817t $ 682.¢
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expensgdiedlin reported net income, net of related
tax effects 15.€ 10.€ 4.8
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioarespdetermined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of related tax effe (16.3) (17.9) (13.9
Pro forma net incom $ 908.7 $ 810.C $ 673.¢
Earnings per shar
Basic— as reportes $ 4.7¢ $ 4.3t $ 3.7¢
Basic— pro forma $ 4.7¢ $ 4.31 $ 3.7%
Diluted — as reporte! $ 4.6¢ $ 4.2¢ $ 3.6C
Diluted — pro forma $ 4.6 $ 4.2 $ 3.5t

The Company has historically applied a noinheating approach for employee stock-based congtiemsawards with retirement eligible
provisions. Under the nominal vesting approachGbempany recognizes compensation cost over thinggstriod and, if the employee
retires before the end of the vesting period, tbemfany recognizes any remaining unrecognized cosgtiem cost at the date of retirement.
Upon adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company will beureggl to apply a non-substantive vesting period-a@gh whereby expense is
accelerated for those employees that receive aveaudisire eligible to retire prior to the award irestHad the Company applied the non-
substantive vesting period approach under SFAS dd#tional pre-tax compensation cost of approxatya$2 million and $17 million would
have been recognized for the years ended Septe8@b2005 and 2004, respectively.

In 2002, the Company adopted a restricteckgdtan that provides for the award of restrictedres of common stock or restricted share
units to certain key employees. Awards under the pre subject to certain vesting requirementsteltvere 131,000 restricted shares or
restricted share units awarded in 2004 with anagesfair market value of $57.80 per share. In 2€t&e were 316,000 restricted shares or
restricted share units awarded with an averagerfaiket value of $40.50 per share. There were atestissued in 2005 or 2003.
Compensation expense related to restricted stoekdsns based upon market prices at dates of aavatds charged to earnings over the
vesting period. Compensation expense related teetftected stock plan was $7 million, $6 milliomda$3 million in 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively.

Approximately $220 million of consolidatedamed earnings at September 30, 2005 represedistiibuted earnings of the Company’s
partially-owned affiliates accounted for by the ixgumethod.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table reconciles the numeratamd denominators used to calculate basic ancedilearnings per share for the years ended
September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003:

Year Ended September 30,

2005 2004 2003

(In millions)
Income Available to Common Shareholders
Net income, as reporte $ 909. $ 817.t $ 682.¢
Preferred stock dividends, net of tax ben — (1.8 (7.2
Basic income available to common sharehol: $ 909. $ 815.7 $ 675.7
Net income $ 909. $ 817t $ 682.¢
Effect of dilutive securities

Compensation expense, net of tax, arising fromrmassiuconversion of preferred stc — (0.7) (2.7)
Diluted income available to common shareholc $ 909. $ 817« $ 680.¢
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Basic weighted average shares outstan 191.¢ 187.% 178.%
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 2.5 3.C 2.8

Convertible preferred stoc — 1.9 7.€
Diluted weighted average shares outstan 194.% 192.€ 189.1
Antidilutive Securities
Options to purchase common she 0.€ 0.3 0.4

14. RETIREMENT PLANS
Pension Measurement Dal

The Company and its subsidiaries sponsor a8y and non-U.S. defined benefit pension plamspaimarily U.S. postretirement health
and other benefit plans. In 2003, the Company cbdrige measurement date for the U.S. defined hgresfsion and postretirement health
and other benefit plans from June 30 to July 3hadoe closely align the measurement date of thesesphith the measurement date of the
Company’s non-U.S. defined benefit plans and with@ompany’s fiscal year-end financial reportingeddhe cumulative and fiscal year
2003 impact of this change was not material to@bmpany’s financial position, results of operationgash flows.

Pension Benefits

The Company has noncontributory defined hepefision plans covering most U.S. and certainldd® employees. The benefits
provided are primarily based on years of serviakarerage compensation or a monthly retirementfieamount. Funding for U.S. pension
plans equals or exceeds the minimum requiremertteedEmployee Retirement Income Security Act of4L9unding for non-US plans
observes the local legal and regulatory limits.oAlhe Company makes contributions to union-trusfension funds for construction and
service personnel.

The Companyg investment policies employ an approach whereaimxeof equities and fixed income investments ardu® maximize th
long-term return of plan assets for a prudent lefeisk. The investment portfolio primarily comaia diversified blend of equity and fixed-
income investments. Equity investments are diviesificross domestic and non-domestic stocks, dsawgrowth, value, and small to large
capitalizations. Fixed income investments includgorate and government issues, with short-, md-langterm maturities, with a focus ¢
investment grade when purchased. Investment ankietniasks are
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measured and monitored on an ongoing basis thraggHar investment portfolio reviews, annual lidhimeasurements, and periodic

asset/liability studies.

The Company'’s actual asset allocations atiménwith target allocations. The Company rebaésnasset allocations monthly, or as
appropriate, in order to stay within a range abedtion for each asset category.

The Company’s pension plan asset allocatiyrasset category are shown below.

2005 2004

Equity securities

U.S. plans 63.5% 62.5%

Non-U.S. plans 46.7% 49.(%
Debt securities

U.S. plans 36.(% 37.%%

Non-U.S. plans 47.2% 45.(%
Real estate

U.S. plans 0.7% —

Non-U.S. plans 5.1% 5.C%
Cash/liquidity:

U.S. plans — 0.1%

Non-U.S. plans 1.C% 1.C%

The expected return on plan assets is bas#fieadCompany’s expectation of the long-term averade of return of the capital markets in
which the plans invest. The average market retaresadjusted, where appropriate, for active asseagement returns. The expected return
reflects the investment policy target asset mix @musiders the historical returns earned for easbtacategory.

For pension plans with accumulated benefigabions (ABO) that exceed plan assets, the ptegebenefit obligation (PBO), ABO and
fair value of plan assets of those plans were $iiton, $695 million and $296 million, respectiyelas of September 30, 2005 and
$710 million, $625 million and $279 million, respieely, as of September 30, 2004.

The Company expects to contribute approxilp&3 million in cash to its defined benefit pessplans in fiscal 2006. Projected benefit
payments from the plans as of September 30, 2@98stimated as follows:

(In millions)
2006 $ 78.%
2007 84.1
2008 89.¢
2009 97.2
2010 103.¢
2011-2015 651.2

Savings and Investment Plar

The Company sponsors various defined corttdbisavings plans primarily in the U.S. that allemployees to contribute a portion of
their pre-tax and/or after-tax income in accordanith plan specified guidelines. Under specifiedditions, the Company will match a
percentage of the employee contributions up taoefimits. Excluding the ESOP, matching contribug charged to expense amounted to
$42 million, $23 million and $18 million for thesftal years ended 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company established an ESOP as pad séitings and investment plans. The Company’s deoa#ibutions to the ESOP, when
combined with the preferred stock dividends, wdraroamount which allowed the ESOP to meet its debtice requirements. This
contribution amount was $17 million in 2004 and $diflion in 2003. The Company'’s final ESOP debt peynt was made in December 2003
(see
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Note 12). Compensation expense recorded by the @oymelated to the ESOP was $26 million in 2004 &&id million in 2003. N¢
compensation expense was recorded by the Comp&0m

Postretirement Health and Other Benefi

The Company provides certain health careliéméhsurance benefits for eligible retirees ahdit dependents primarily in the U.S. Most
nonU.S. employees are covered by government spongoogglams, and the cost to the Company is not sogmif. The U.S. benefits are pi
as incurred. No change in the Company’s practiderding these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basistisipated.

Eligibility for coverage is based on meetaggtain years of service and retirement age quatifins. These benefits may be subject to
deductibles, co-payment provisions and other litivites, and the Company has reserved the right wifijnthese benefits. Effective
January 31, 1994, the Company modified certairrigalglans to place a limit on the Company’s cdstiture annual retiree medical benefits
at no more than 150 percent of the 1993 cost.

The September 30, 2005 accumulated postretine benefit obligation was determined using assuinealth care cost trend rates of ten
percent for both pre-65 and post-65 years of agad@raes, decreasing one percent each year toiaratétrate of five percent. The
September 30, 2004 accumulated postretirement ib@béfation was determined using assumed health cost trend rates of eight percent
for both pre-65 and post-65 years of age employdEseasing one percent each year to an ultimeefaix percent. The health care cost
trend rate assumption could have a significantceffe the amounts reported. To illustrate, a omegrgage point change in the assumed
health care cost trend rate would have changeddtemulated benefit obligation by $1 million at &epber 30, 2005 and the sum of the
service and interest costs in 2005 by $0.2 million.

The Company expects to contribute approxilp&®2 million in cash to its postretirement healtid other benefit plans in fiscal 2006.
Projected benefit payments from the plans as ofedaper 30, 2005 are estimated as follows:

(In millions)
2006 $ 12.1
2007 12.¢
2008 13.2
2009 13.¢
2010 14.¢
20113-2015 81.t

Japanese Pension Settlement G

During fiscal 2004, the Company recorded s gain related to certain of the Company’s dapa pension plans established under
Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance Law. In acoogdaith recent amendments to this law, the Compganypleted the transfer of certain
pension obligations and related plan assets tddpanese government which resulted in a non-céis¢nsent gain of $84.4 million, net of
$1.2 million associated with the recognition of ecwgnized actuarial losses, recorded within SG&pesses in the Consolidated Statement
of Income. The excess of benefit obligations ovan@ssets (funded status) of the Company’sW@-pension plans decreased $85.6 mi
as a result of the transfer.
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The table that follows contains the accunaddienefit obligation and reconciliations of thawes in the PBO, the changes in plan asset:
and the funded status.

Pension
Postretirement
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Health and Other
September 30 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
(In millions)

Accumulated Benefit Obligatio $ 1,493 $ 1,206.¢ $ 928.( $ 743.¢ $ — $ —
Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y 1,428.: 1,263.¢ 827.1 891.€ 170.2 177.¢
Service cos 64.2 57.€ 28.2 28.4 5.8 5.1
Interest cos 89.2 82.1 39.5 35.5 10.& 11.C
Amendments made during the y 1.7 1.1 04 (8.1) .E 0.5
Acquisitions — — 80.€ 41.¢ — —
Settlement(1 — — — (198.9) — 0.8
Actuarial loss (gain 215.2 71.c 119.1 16.€ 18.1 (7.49)
Benefits paic (52.9 (46.9) (32.9) (38.5 (21.9 (18.5)
Currency translation adjustme — — (9.9) 57.¢ 1.7 0.7
Curtailment loss (gair 2.2 0.2 (6.7) — — —
Projected benefit obligation at end of y: $ 1,748.¢ $ 1,428. $ 1,046.f $827.1 $184¢ $ 170.C
Change in plan asset
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 1,180 $ 1,108.. $ 474¢€ $471¢ $ — % —
Actual return on plan asse 138.t 110.1 74.€ 25t — —
Acquisitions — — 63.€ 30.7 — —
Settlement(1 — — — (98.7) — —
Employer and employee contributic 187.( 8.9 56.5 44.1 21.4 18.F
Benefits paic (52.9 (46.9) (32.2) (38.5 (21.9 (18.5)
Currency translation adjustme — — (7.3 39.€ — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 1,453 $ 1,180 $ 629.6 $474¢ $ — % —
Funded statu $ (2959 $ (2482 $ (416.7) $(352.5) $(184.9 $ (170.9
Unrecognized net transition (obligation) as 4.0 (6.0) 0.2 0.2 — —
Unrecognized net actuarial lo 566.4 405.( 207.€ 121.¢ 20.¢ 6.8
Unrecognized prior service cc 8.7 8.5 (2.€) (6.9 (8.2) (14.9)
Employer contributions paid between August 1 angt&aber 3( 0.€ 0.4 0.¢ — — —
Net accrued benefit cost recognized at end of $ 276+ $ 1597 $ (210.6 $(236.9 $(172.) $ (177.)
Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financialitim consist of

Prepaid benefit co: $ 323¢ $ 184t B 84 $ 432 $ — % —

Accrued benefit liability (68.9) (71.6) (360.7) (313.9) (172.7) a77.%)

Intangible asse .3 5.8 4.8 0.1 — —

Accumulated other comprehensive inca 18.¢ 40.€ 136.% 72.4 — —
Net amount recognize $ 276« $ 159 $ (210.6) $(236.H) $(172.) $ (177.)
Weighted Average Assumptions(2
Discount rate 5.50% 6.25% 4.0(% 4.5(% 5.5(% 6.25%
Expected return on plan ass 8.75% 8.75% 5.9(% 5.75% NA NA
Rate of compensation incree 3.80% 4.00% 2.7%% 3.00% NA NA

(1) The settlement for the non-U.S. plans forytear ended September 30, 2004 includes $198.3mjhiojected benefit obligation and
$98.7 million of plan assets related to the Japapesision settlements of which the resultant ga$86.6 million relates to the interior
experience— Asia segment and $14.0 million relates to the ngdfficiency segment. These gains were offsetleyrecognition o
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unrealized losses associated with the settleméidtt.a million and $12.7 million at interior expenice — Asia and building efficiency,
respectively. The unrealized losses were recordeda@mmponent of net periodic benefit cost in fi2€D4.

(2) Plan assets and obligations are determineedbas a July 31 measurement date at Septembef38,ahd 2004 for U.S. plans and a
September 30 measurement date at September 30a88@9D04 for nc-U.S. plans, utilizing assumptions as of those di

The table that follows contains the composerfinet periodic benefit cost.

Pension
Postretirement
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Health and Other
Year Ended September 30 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cos
Service cos $ 642z $ 57€ $52:° $ 28.2 $ 28.4 $ 224 $55 $51 $4¢
Interest cos 89.2 82.1 76.2 39.5 S5k 30.7 10.5 11.C 11.2
Employee contribution — — — (2.7) (4.€) (3.2 — — —
Expected return on plan ass (104.0 (104.9 (94.5 (30.9) (26.7) (20.0 — — —
Amortization of transitional (obligation) as: (2.0) (2.7) (2.5 0.1 0.1 0.1 — — —
Amortization of net actuarial los 19.5 10.3 0.8 6.8 5.€ 4.9 0.8 1.1 0.1
Amortization of prior service co: 1t 1.3 1.8 (0.9 0.2 0.1 (2.3 (2.4) (2.9
Curtailment loss (gair 2.3 0.t (0.2 (6.7) — (0.2) 1.C —
Recognition of unrealized loss associated withsti@mot

Japanese pension obligati — — — — 13.¢ — — — —
Net periodic benefit cos $ 707 $ 447 $33. $ 34.F $ 52.4 $ 35. $14.2  $15.6 $13.
Expense Assumption:
Discount rate 6.25% 6.5(% 7.0(% 4.5(% 4.0(% 400% 6.252% 6.5(% 7.0(%
Expected return on plan ass 8.75% 8.7%% 9.5(% 5.7% 5.25% 4.7% NA NA NA
Rate of compensation incree 4.00% 4.0(% 5.0(% 3.0(% 3.0(% 3.25% NA NA NA

15. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Expenditures for research activities relatmgroduct development and improvement are chaageathst income as incurred and included
within Selling, general and administrative expen§&sh expenditures amounted to $817 million in52@&844 million in 2004 and
$884 million in 2003.

A portion of the costs associated with thedtivities is reimbursed by customers, and tot&ePR million in 2005, $352 million in 2004
and $420 million in 2003.

16. RESTRUCTURING COSTS

In the second quarter of fiscal 2005, the Gany executed a restructuring plan (2005 Plan)hsvg cost reduction actions and recorde
$210 million restructuring charge included in Resturing costs in the Consolidated Statement afrime. These restructuring charges incl
workforce reductions of approximately 3,100 empksywithin interior experience and power solutiond 800 employees in the building
efficiency business. The charges associated will@me severance and termination benefits are@aidthe severance period granted to
each employee and on a lump sum basis when reguiamtordance with individual severance agreemé&s®f September 30, 2005,
approximately 630 employees within interior expecie and the power solutions businesses and 47®gegd in the building efficiency
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business have been separated from the Compangdition, the 2005 Plan includes eight plant closusithin interior experience and power
solutions and four plant closures within buildirficéency. The write downs of the long-lived assassociated with the plant closures were
determined using a discounted cash flow analydis.iffiterior experience and power solutions actamesprimarily concentrated in Europe,
while the building efficiency restructuring actioimsolve activities in both North America and Eueohe Company expects to incur other
related and ancillary costs associated with sontkesfe restructuring initiatives. These costs ateerpected to be material and will be
expensed as incurred. The majority of the restrirguactivities are expected to be completed byetia of the second quarter of fiscal year
2006.

The Company recorded the restructuring chasge result of management’s ongoing review offbmpany’s cost structure, the sharp
increase in commodity costs, and the current ecandifiiculties facing some of our most significacustomers. Company management is
continually analyzing our businesses for opportasito consolidate current operations and to losatdacilities in low cost countries in clc
proximity to our customers. This ongoing analysidudes the review of our manufacturing, enginggénd purchasing operations as well as
our overall Company footprint. As a result of tH#03 Plan, the Company anticipates savings of apmaiely $135 million in fiscal year
2006.

The following table summarizes the Compar@85 Plan reserve, included within Other curreattilities in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position:

Utilized Balance at
Original Sept. 30,
Reserve Cash Noncash 2005
(In millions)
Employee severance and termination ben $ 139: $ (516 $ = $ 87.7
Write down of lonr-lived assets(1 45.¢ — (45.9) —
Other 24.¢ (9.0 2.7 14.2
Currency translatio — — (9.7) (9.7)

$ 210( $ (60.6) $  (56.9 $ 92.¢

(1) Write down of long-lived assets includes $3@i8ion related to interior experience — Europ#&,$million related to power solutions,
and $2.1 million related to the building efficienloysiness

Included within Other are exit costs relatederminating supply contracts associated witmgesa in the Company’s manufacturing
footprint and strategies, lease termination castsather direct costs of the restructuring plan.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Gany executed a restructuring plan (2004 Plan)hing cost structure improvement actions
and recorded an $82.4 million restructuring changiided in Restructuring costs in the Consolid&&tement of Income. These charges
primarily related to workforce reductions of approately 1,500 employees within interior experieaoel power solutions and 470 employ
in building efficiency. In addition, the 2004 Plaalled for four plants within interior experienaelie consolidated. Through September 30,
2005, substantially all employees have been segghfedm the Company. A significant portion of tihéeirior experience and power solutions
actions were concentrated in Europe. The buildffigiency restructuring actions involved activitissboth North America and Europe. The
remaining restructuring activities are expectedda@ompleted in the first quarter of fiscal yead@0
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The following table summarizes the Compa2@84 Plan reserve, included within Other curreattilities in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position:

Balance at Utilized Balance at
September 30, September 30,
2004 Cash Noncash 2005
(In millions)
Employee severance and termination ben $ 41.¢ $ (304 % — $ 11.4
Currency translatio (0.9 (0.2) (0.5)

$ 41.4 $ 3049 $ (0.9 $ 10.€

17. INCOME TAXES

An analysis of effective income tax ratesdontinuing operations is shown below:

Year Ended
September 30,
2005 2004 2003

(In millions)

Federal statutory ra: 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 1kt 14 3.C
Foreign tax expense at different rates and forkigses without tax benefi (11.6€ (4.5 (0.5
U.S. tax on foreign incom (17.€) (4.9 (4.9
Reserve and valuation allowance adjustn 15.1 (2.9 (1.9
Other (2.0) (0.9) (1.8)
Effective income tax rat 20.4% 23.5% 29.(%

The Company’s base effective income tax f@teontinuing operations for fiscal 2005 declined®5.7% from 26.0% for the prior year
primarily due to continuing global tax planningtiatives. The Company’s effective tax rate for 20@&s further reduced as a result of an
$11.5 million and a $69 million tax benefit in tfiest and second quarters, respectively, due tioamge in tax status of a French and a Ge!
subsidiary. The change in tax status resulted froroluntary tax election that produced a deemeaddation of the French and German
subsidiaries for US federal income tax purposes. U8 shareholder received a tax benefit for the lesulting from the decrease in value
from the original tax basis of these investmentss Election changed the tax status of the FrendhGerman entities from controlled foreign
corporations (i.e., taxable entities) to branches, flow through entities similar to a partnepghiior US federal income tax purposes and is
thereby reported as a discrete period tax bemeéitcordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 1@g&,cbunting for Income Taxes”. These
tax benefits were partially offset by an increaséhie tax valuation allowance of $28 million in #econd quarter related to restructuring
charges for which no tax benefits were recordezkimain countries given the uncertainty of its ieslon due to restrictive tax loss rules or a
lack of sustained profitability in that country. & koluntary tax election related to the German isiidry resulted in a capital loss for tax
purposes of $539 million, $187 million of which watlized in the second quarter. The tax benefitt@remaining capital loss has not been
recorded in accordance with the provisions of SIN®S5109 and will expire in 2010. In addition, otheluation allowance adjustments dur
the year related primarily to continuing losseseatain foreign subsidiaries for which no tax béngés recognized were offset by the
utilization of losses in certain foreign subsidigrfor which sustained profitability has not ye¢bheemonstrated, thereby resulting in no
significant change in the Company’s total valuaiowance during the year. The fiscal year endeggt&nber 30, 2004 benefited from a
$27 million favorable tax settlement related tmpperiods.
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The annual effective tax rate for income frdiscontinued operations approximated 39% and 35%\orld Services and the engine
electronics business, respectively. These effettiveates approximate the local statutory ratestdf for permanent differences. The
Company’s income taxes for the gain on the satfistfontinued operations resulted in an effectixeréde of 38.1%.

Components of the provision for income tase<ontinuing operations were as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2005 2004 2003
(In millions)
Current
Federal $ 170. $ 98.¢ $ 126.c
State 19.: 9.1 25.C
Foreign 40.: 42.¢ 1.8
230.2 150.¢ 153.1
Deferred
Federal 33.€ 72.€ 93.1
State 2.1 9.4 12.C
Foreign (61.7) 18.2 5.8
(25.2) 100.5 120.¢
Provision for income taxe $ 205.1 $ 251. $ 273t

The Company is subject to income taxes intBeand numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significartigment is required in determining our
worldwide provision for income taxes and recording related assets and liabilities. In the ordir@yrse of our business, there are many
transactions and calculations where the ultimat@é&ermination is uncertain. We are regularly uradedit by tax authorities. Accruals for
contingencies are provided for in accordance vhighrequirements of SFAS No. 5 “Accounting for Cogéncies”. The Company’s federal
income tax returns and certain foreign income &urns for fiscal years 1997-2003 are currentlyaundrious stages of audit by the Internal
Revenue Service and respective foreign tax autesriflthough the outcome of tax audits is alwayseautain, management believes that it
has appropriate support for the positions takeitsotax returns and that its annual tax provisimetuded amounts sufficient to pay
assessments, if any, which may be proposed bya#iegt authorities. At September 30, 2005, the Comieas recorded a liability for its best
estimate of the probable loss on certain of itspiasitions, the majority of which is included ini@t noncurrent liabilities. Nonetheless, the
amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolutiortha issues raised by the taxing authorities mégrdinaterially from the amounts accrued
for each year.

Consolidated domestic income from continwopgrations before income taxes and minority interegss $826 million in 2005,
$759 million in 2004 and $881 million in 2003. Tberresponding amounts for foreign operations wéarg7million in 2005, $311 million in
2004 and $61 million in 2003.

Income taxes paid during 2005, 2004 and 2682 $170 million, $107 million and $276 milliorspectively.

The Company has not provided additional USime taxes on approximately $1,091 million of utribsited earnings of consolidated
foreign subsidiaries included in stockholders’ égusuch earnings could become taxable upon tleecsdiquidation of these foreign
subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriation. The @any’s intent is for such earnings to be reinvestiethe subsidiaries or to be repatriated
only when it would be tax effective through thdimétion of foreign tax credits. It is not practita to estimate the amount of unrecognized
withholding taxes and deferred tax liability on Buwearnings.
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On October 22, 2004, the President signeditherican Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (Act). The Aates a temporary incentive for
US corporations to repatriate accumulated incomeeebabroad by providing an 85 percent dividendsived deduction focertain dividend
from controlled foreign operations. The deducti®subject to a number of limitations. As such,@menpany is not yet in a position to decide
on whether, and to what extent, the Company migitriate foreign earnings that have not yet bemitted to the US. The Act allows the
Company to repatriate an amount up to $560 milkenich represents the cumulative undistributed iegeof foreign subsidiaries subject to
the Act. The respective tax liability if the $560lllan was repatriated would be approximately $3@lion. The Company expects to be in a
position to finalize its assessment in the secarattgr of fiscal 2006.

Deferred taxes were classified in the Codstiid Statement of Financial Position as follows:

September 30,
2005 2004

(In millions)

Other current asse $ 238. $ 140.C
Other noncurrent asse 258.¢€ 309.¢
Other current liabilitie (45.7) (48.9)
Other noncurrent liabilitie (400.7) (420.6)
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ 51.C $ (19.9)

Temporary differences and carryforwards wigakie rise to deferred tax assets and liabilitiekuded:

September 30,

2005 2004
(In millions)
Deferred Tax Assets
Accrued expenses and reser $ 313t $ 315.1
Employee and retiree benef 35.1 35.7
Long-term contract: 16.€ —
Net operating loss and other carryforwa 759.2 592.7
Other 39.2 96.2
1,163.¢ 1,039.}
Valuation allowanct (572.9 (571.9)
591.( 468.(
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipme 134.% 126.4
Long-term contract: — 8.€
Joint venture: 10.t 14.1
Intangible asset 111.C 134.C
Foreign currency translation adjustme 284.: 204.¢
540.( 487.1
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ 51.C $ (19.7

At September 30, 2005, the Company had adeilf@reign net operating loss carryforwards ofragpnately $1,605 million, of which
$467 million will expire at various dates betwed@®& and 2020, and the remainder have an indefinite/forward period. The valuation
allowance, generally, represents loss carryforwéada/hich utilization is uncertain because it idikely that the losses will be utilized given
the lack of sustained profitability and/or limitedrryforward periods in certain countries.
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18. DECONSOLIDATION OF A JOINT VENTURE (Restated)

On April 1, 2005, the Company deconsolidaddorth American interior experience joint ventaeeit was determined the Company no
longer had effective control over the venture’'sragiag activities. Subsequent to April 1, 2005, @@mpany determined that based on
SFAS 94, “Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subgries,” the joint venture should not have beemsotidated in prior periods. As such,
the Company’s financial statements have been esstataccount for the joint venture on an equitsivan accordance with APB 18, “The
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in CommiStock” for all periods prior to April 1, 2005uP to this deconsolidation, the
Company has also revised the previously reporteslats in the Summary of significant accounting @eB, Note 3 — Inventories, Note 4 —
Property, plant and equipment, Note 5 — Goodwil ather intangible assets, Note 8 — Leases, Note-1Shareholders’ equity, Note 14 —
Retirement plans, Note 15 — Research and developiete 17 — Income taxes and Note 20 — Segmeaotrimdtion.

The deconsolidation of this joint venture madimpact on income from continuing operationg,ineome or earnings per share in the
respective periods and its impact on the consd@ilatatement of cash flows was not significant.

Revenues and expenses previously recordeeriain consolidated financial statement line itemesnow reported on a net basis as Equity
income in the Consolidated Statement of IncometheadCompany’s net investment in the joint ventsreeported in the Investments in
partially-owned affiliates line in the Consolidat8thtement of Financial Position. The followingleabummarizes the impact of this
restatement on key financial statement line items:

Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2004 September 30, 2003
As Reported* Restated As Reported* Restated
(In millions)
Consolidated Statement of Incomt
Net sales $ 25,363. $ 24,603 $ 21,591. $ 21,171.
Operating incom: 1,219.: 1,135.: 1,100.: 1,028.(
Equity income 71.1 96.4 54.¢ 76.€
Minority interests in net earnings of subsidial 78.C 51.€ 46.3 23.4
Consolidated Statement of Financial Positiol
Investments in partial-owned affiliates 314.¢ 447 .¢
Minority interests in equity of subsidiari 267.2 121t

*  Amounts reflect adjustments related to discontinojeerations (see Note :

19. SALE OF LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

In fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a pregtain of approximately $17 million related to g@nversion and subsequent sale of its
investment in shares of Donnelly Corporation, whinérged with Magna International effective OctobgP002. Prior to the sale, the
investment was reported as an available-for-salergg in the Consolidated Statement of Financiadifon at fair value. Changes in the fair
market value were recorded in the other comprelieriscome component of shareholders’ equity. Assalt of the merger, the Company’s
shares in Donnelly Corporation were converted gtitares of Magna International and the unrealizéd @athe investment was recognizec
the Consolidated Statement of Income. The Compalaytke shares in Magna International in the fixsarter of fiscal 2003 and received
proceeds of approximately $38 million.
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20. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business Segmen

The Company operates in three primary buseseduilding efficiency, interior experience, guadver solutions. Building efficiency
provides facility systems and services includingnfmrt, energy and security management for the maidential buildings market. Interior
experience designs and manufactures interior sygste products for passenger cars and light trueklsiding vans, pickup trucks and spo
utility vehicles. Power solutions designs and mantifres automotive batteries for the replacemethiaiginal equipment markets.

SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about Segmentsid@mterprise and Related Information,” (SFAS 13ktaklishes the standards for reporting
information about operating segments in finandialesnents. In applying the criteria set forth ilASFL31, the Company has determined that
it operates in six operating segments, two witlower solutions are aggregated under this accoustanglard to arrive at the Company’s five
reportable segments for financial reporting purgose

The accounting policies applicable to theortgble segments are the same as those describiesl Bummary of Significant Accounting
Policies. Management evaluates the performandeecsegments based primarily on operating incon@yéing significant restructuring
costs and other significant non-recurring gainslasdes. Operating revenues and expenses aretatidosbusiness segments in determining
segment operating income. Items excluded from #terthination of segment operating income includerést income and expense, equity in
earnings of partially-owned affiliates, gains ansses from sales of businesses and long-term afseign currency gains and losses, and
other miscellaneous income and expense. Unalloeasets are corporate cash and cash equivalergstriments in partially-owned affiliates
and other non-operating assets.

Financial information relating to the Compameportable segments was as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2005 2004 2003

(In millions)

Net Sales

Building efficiency $ 5,717. $ 5,323.° $ 4,809.¢
Interior experienc— North America 8,498.¢ 8,237« 7,605.!
Interior experienc— Europe 8,935.! 7,677.¢ 5,861.°
Interior experienc— Asia 1,399.: 1,092.¢ 1,013.¢
Power solution: 2,928.! 2,271, 1,881.(
Total $ 27,479. $ 24,603.( $ 21,171.
Operating Income

Building efficiency(1) $ 294.¢ $ 241t $ 241 .4
Interior experienc— North America(2] 349.¢ 504.1 581.¢
Interior experienc— Europe(3) 252.¢ 113.C (44.7)
Interior experienc— Asia(4) 30.C 37.€ 42.C
Power solutions(5 349. 237.( 206.¢
Total $ 1,276. $ 1,133.: $ 1,028.(
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Year Ended September 30,

2005 2004 2003
(In millions)
Assets (Year-end)
Building efficiency $ 2,472« $ 2,231.: $ 2,074.
Interior experienc— North America 4,050.¢ 3,645.¢ 3,511.(
Interior experienc— Europe 5,259.¢ 5,186.: 4,092.(
Interior experienc— Asia 865.¢ 751.1 718.(
Power solution: 2,999.¢ 2,562.. 1,580.:
Unallocatec 495.¢ 382.( 941 .
Total $ 16,144. $ 14,758. $ 12,916.
Depreciation/ Amortization
Building efficiency $ 45.C $ 50.2 $ 54.2
Interior experienc— North America 206.¢ 193.¢ 194«
Interior experienc— Europe 237.C 212.¢ 176.5
Interior experienc— Asia 25.4 17.2 20.1
Power solution: 122.2 95.1 82.¢
Total $ 636.4 $ 569.1 $ 528.2
Capital Expenditures
Building efficiency $ 40.7 $ 33.C $ 33.1
Interior experienc— North America 267.¢ 305.5 184.¢
Interior experienc— Europe 202.7 321.¢ 268.(
Interior experienc— Asia 56.2 41.1 25.¢
Power solution: 97.C 82.1 94.:
Total $ 664.1 $ 783. $ 606.(

(1) Building efficiency operating income for thears ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 excludes@8ilon and $13.3 million,
respectively, of restructuring costs which is imgd within Selling, general and administrative exges in the Consolidated Statemel
Income.

(2) Interior experience — North America operatingome for the years ended September 30, 2005 @0w &<cludes $11.9 million and
$5.1 million, respectively, of restructuring costlich is included within Selling, general and adisiirative expenses in the
Consolidated Statement of Incon

(3) Interior experience — Europe operating incdorehe years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004desc$129.6 million and
$51.1 million, respectively, of restructuring costsich is included within Selling, general and adisiirative expenses in the
Consolidated Statement of Incon

(4) Interior experience -Asia operating income for the year ended Septerd®e2005 excludes $0.4 million of restructuringtsoghich is
included within Selling, general and administratasg@enses in the Consolidated Statement of Inctntexior experience — Asia
operating income for the year ended September@®} xcludes a pension gain of $84.4 million whicluded within Selling,
general and administrative expenses in the CoratelidStatement of Incom

(5) Power solutions operating income for the yemded September 30, 2005 and 2004 excludes $16icdhrand $12.9 million,
respectively, of restructuring costs which is igd within Selling, general and administrative exges in the Consolidated Statemel
Income.
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The Company has significant sales to theraative industry. The following is a summary of thercentages of revenues from major
customers:

Year Ended September 30, 2005 2004 2003

General Motors Corporatic 14% 14% 15%
DaimlerChrysler AC 11% 11% 12%
Ford Motor Compan 11% 14% 12%

Approximately 42 percent of the Company’s 20@t sales to these customers were in the UnttdsS 45 percent were European sales
and 13 percent were attributable to sales in dtreign markets. As of September 30, 2005, the Gomhnad accounts receivable totaling
approximately $1.4 billion from these customers.

Geographic Segment

Financial information relating to the Compangperations by geographic area is as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2005 2004 2003

(In millions)

Net Sales

United State: $ 11,000.: $ 10,333. $ 9,601.¢
Germany 3,271.: 2,680.! 2,452.¢
Other European countrit 8,066.: 7,119.( 4,958.:
Other foreigr 5,141.¢ 4,470.¢ 4,158.!
Total $ 27,479. $ 24,603.( $ 21,171.
Long-Lived Assets (Yea-end)

United State: $ 1,355.: $ 1,222 $ 1,122.¢
Germany 639.¢ 640.2 542.¢
Other European countris 723.t 793.¢ 712.¢
Other foreigr 863.( 677.¢ 429.(
Total $ 3,581.¢ $ 3,333.¢ $ 2,807

Net sales attributed to geographic locatamesbased on the location of the assets produk@gdles. Long-lived assets by geographic
location consist of net property, plant and equipme

21. GUARANTOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Restated)

Subsequent to September 30, 2005, the Conigdantified intercompany subsidiary upstream guees) issued March 21, 2001,
applicable to certain third-party debt of the CompaBased upon the nature of these guarantee€dimpany has determined that condensed
guarantor subsidiary financial statement informasbould have been disclosed in its previouslgfilgerim and annual financial statements
since the issuance of the guarantees. As a rédsellGompany has restated its fiscal 2004 and f&@@8 consolidated financial statements to
include these required disclosures.
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Basis of Presentatiol

Certain of the Company’s wholly-owned subsiis (the “Guarantors”) have unconditionally gudead (the “guarantees’n a joint anc
several basis, any and all liabilities of Johnsamigls, Inc. (the “Parent”) for money borrowed,emhdue, whether at stated maturity, by
acceleration, or otherwise. The guarantees coeemtijority of the Parent’s short-term and long-telebt, as follows:

September 30,

2005 2004
(In millions)
Shor-term debi $ 684.( $ 813:
Less bank borrowings not subject to guaran (207.9) (96.9
Total shor-term debt of Parent subject to guaran $ 476.¢ $ 717.C
Long-term debi $ 1,658 $ 1,857.
Less debt not subject to guarante
Industrial revenue bonc — (9.7
Capital lease obligatior (104.¢ (89.0
Euro denominated de (131.5 (142.2)
Yen denominated del (0.9 —
Other lon¢-term debt (54.2) (39.9
Total debt subject to guarante 1,367.: 1,576.
Less current portion of Parent subject to guara (58.9) (200.0
Total lon¢-term debt of Parent subject to guaran $  1,309.( $ 1,376.

The guarantees did not have a stated mathotyever, the guarantees were rescinded in Novedfi5 and replaced with alternative
intercompany arrangements.

The Guarantors included Hoover Universal,,ldchnson Controls Battery Group, Inc., JC IntstieLC and Johnson Controls
Beteiligungs GmbH. Pursuant to Rule 3-10 of Regufe$-X, in lieu of
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providing separate audited financial statementefamh of the Guarantors, or the Guarantors asupgtioe Company has disclosed the
condensed supplemental consolidating financialrinégion below.

Year Ended September 30, 2005

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

(In millions)
Net sales $2,706.: $ 6,532 $ 23,405 $ (5,164.9 $ 27,479.«
Cost of sale: 1,964.! 5,649.! 21,548.. (5,164.9) 23,997.!

Gross profi 741.¢ 883.( 1,857.: — 3,481.¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 638.1 371.2 1,196.: — 2,205.!
Restructuring cost 15.1 11.4 183.f — 210.(

Operating incom: 88.€ 500.4 477 .4 — 1,066.¢
Interest incom 0.1 — 12.¢ — 13.C
Interest expens (72.¢) (12.5 (35.9 — (120.5
Equity income 0.3 27.: 44.2 — 71.¢
Miscellaneous— net(1) 152.€ (457.9 278.( — (27.3)

Other income (expens 80.2 (443.)) 299.¢ — (63.0
Income before income taxes, minority interests

equity in net earnings of subsidiar 168.¢ 57.2 777.8 — 1,003.¢
Provision for income taxe 29.¢ 14.2 161.1 — 205.1
Minority interests in net earnings of subsidial — — 41.1 — 41.1
Equity in net earnings of subsidiari 770. 100.: — (870.7) —
Income from continuing operatiol 909.< 143.¢ 575.1 (870.7) 757.2
Income from discontinued operations, net of

income taxe: — — 16.1 — 16.1
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of

income taxe: — — 136.1 — 136.1
Net income $ 909. $ 143¢ & 727 % (870.7) $ 909.4

(1) Includes intercompany charges between the Paremira@tors and N«-Guarantors
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(In millions)
Net sales
Cost of sale:
Gross profi
Selling, general and administrative exper
Restructuring cosl
Japanese pension g:
Operating incom:
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Equity income (loss
Miscellaneous— net(1)
Other income (expens
Income before income taxes, minority interests
equity in net earnings of subsidiar
(Benefit) provision for income taxt
Minority interests in net earnings of subsidial
Equity in net earnings of subsidiari
Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operations, net of
income taxe:
Net income

Year Ended September 30, 2004

(1) Includes intercompany charges between the Paremat;a@tors and N«-Guarantors

82

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

$2,548." $ 6,218.¢ $ 20,244 $ (4,409.9) $ 24,603.!
1,893.: 5,201.¢ 18,639.! (4,409.9) 21,325..
655.4 1,017.: 1,605.: — 3,277.¢
587.( 463.£ 1,094.: — 2,144.¢
6.4 2.1 73.€ — 82.4

— — (84.4) — (84.9
62.C 551.7 521.t — 1,135.:
1.3 04 11.4 — 13.1
(86.9) - (24.2) - (111.0)
0.2 (3.7 99.¢ — 96.4
69.4 (442.) 308.¢ - (63.9)
(16.0) (445.2) 396.( — (65.4)
46.C 106.: 917.t — 1,069.¢
(67.4) 35.¢ 283.( — 251.
— — 51.€ — 51.€
704.1 193.% — (897.9) —
817.t 263.¢ 582.¢ (897.9 766.¢
— — 50.7 — 50.7

$ 8175 $ 2636 $ 6336 $ (897.9) % 817.F
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Year Ended September 30, 2003

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

(In millions)
Net sales $2,423.¢ $ 6,161.¢ $ 16,129.. $ (3,543.) $ 21,171.:
Cost of sale: 1,815.: 5,021.: 14,850.. (3,543.) 18,143.(

Gross profit 608.¢ 1,140.¢ 1,278.¢ — 3,028.!
Selling, general and administrative exper 560.5 423.€ 1,016.: — 2,000.:

Operating incom: 48.5 717.C 262.0 — 1,028.(
Interest incomt — 0.3 8.1 — 8.4
Interest expens (90.]) (1.3 (22.0 — (113.2)
Equity (loss) incomi (1.0 (7.9 85.¢ — 76.€
Miscellaneous— net(1) 92.2 (465.9 314.¢ — (58.9)

Other income (expens 1.1 (474.7) 386.¢ — (86.2)
Income before income taxes, minority interests

equity in net earnings of subsidiar 49.4 242.¢ 649.5 — 941.¢
(Benefit) provision for income tax: (49.9 86.7 236.7 — 273.t
Minority interests in net earnings of subsidial — — 23.4 — 23.4
Equity in net earnings of subsidiari 583.€ 24.2 — (607.¢) —
Income from continuing operatiol 682.¢ 180.¢ 389.2 (607.¢) 644.¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of

income taxe: — — 38.C — 38.C
Net income $ 682.¢ 3% 1804 $  427.¢ $ (607.¢) $ 682.¢

(1) Includes intercompany charges between the Paremira@tors and N«-Guarantors
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September 30, 2005

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In millions)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $(495.0) % (973.H) $ 1,639.¢ $ — % 171.2
Accounts receivabl— net 366.5 1,093.¢ 3,212.; — 4,672..
Costs and earnings in exces: —

billings on uncompleted contrac 148.¢ — 165.€ — 314t
Inventories 114 261.¢ 710.1 — 983.1
Other current asse 236.% 326.( 435. — 997.%

Current assetl 268.( 707.¢ 6,163.( — 7,138.¢
Property, plant and equipme— net 232.7 1,018.¢ 2,330.: — 3,581.¢
Goodwill — net 73.% 1,160.: 2,499.: — 3,732.¢
Other intangible asse— net 13.C 51.Z 224.¢ — 289.(
Investments in partial-owned affiliates 9.7 62.¢ 372.2 — 444 ¢
Investments in subsidiaries( 8,152.¢ 4,726. 9,678.¢ (22,557.9) —
Other noncurrent asse 412.2 139.] 406.2 — 957.%
Total asset $9,161f$  7,866. $ 21674. $ (22,557.) $ 16,144.

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Shor-term debi $ 4768 $ — $ 207 $ — 3 684.(
Current portion of lon-term debt 58.2 1.3 21.4 — 80.¢
Accounts payabl 268.¢ 968.4 2,700.! — 3,937t
Accrued compensation and bene 136.¢ 145.¢ 422.% — 704.2
Accrued income taxe (15.7) (107.2) 166.€ — 44.:
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on

uncompleted contrac 119.t — 106.2 — 225.7
Other current liabilitie: 176.¢ 288.¢ 699.( — 1,164.¢

Current liabilties 1,221.¢ 1,296.: 4,323.: — 6,841.
Long-term deb 1,309.( 41.1 227.¢ — 1,577.f
Postretirement health and other bene 81.t 71.2 6.C — 158.7
Minority interests in equity of subsidiari — — 195.€ — 195.¢
Other noncurrent liabilitie 491.< (563.9) 875.1 — 1,313.;
Shareholder equity 6,058.. 6,510.¢ 16,047. (22,557.9) 6,058..
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $9,161.F $ 7,866.! $ 21,674.. $ (22,557.) $ 16,144.

(1) Negative cash balances at the Parent and Guaraeftarst the balance in a worldwide cash poolingragement
(2) Includes investments in subsidiaries and net intapany balance:
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September 30, 2004

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In millions)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 375.¢ % (101.0 $ (1757 $ — % 99.2
Accounts receivabl— net 345.¢ 738.1 2,732.: — 3,815.¢

Costs and earnings in excess of billings on
uncompleted contrac 120.z — 151.€ — 271.¢
Inventories 9.C 249.¢ 599.¢ — 858.%
Assets of discontinued operatic — — 579.¢ — 579.¢
Other current asse 104.2 151.¢ 469.¢ — 725.5
955.1 1,038.: 4,357.. — 6,350.
Property, plant and equipme— net 183.¢ 927.2 2,222.¢ — 3,333.¢
Goodwill — net 158.2 1,079.¢ 2,328. — 3,566.:
Other intangible asse— net 16.€ 50.¢€ 223.1 — 290.¢
Investments in affiliate 8.8 70.C 368.% — 447.¢
Investments in subsidiaries( 6,954.¢ 4,505.( 7,778t (19,238.) —
Other noncurrent asse 198.: 84.1 486.¢ — 769.%
Total asset $8,475." $ 7,754.¢ $ 17,766.. $ (19,238.) $ 14,758.

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Shor-term debi $ 717.( $ — 3 96.2 $ — 3 813.:
Current portion of lon-term debt 200.( 10.¢ 15.¢ — 226.7
Accounts payabl 237.5 681.¢ 2,506.: — 3,425.:
Accrued compensation and bene 94.¢ 86.¢ 410.¢ — 592.
Accrued income taxe (139.9 (66.9) 254.¢ — 48.€

Billings in excess of costs and earnings on
uncompleted contrac 106.¢ — 90.: — 197.2
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol — — 228.t — 228.t
Other current liabilitie 102.t 177.5 608.€ — 888.¢
1,319.: 890.¢ 4,211.( — 6,420.¢
Long-term debi 1,376. 26.¢ 227.: — 1,630.¢
Postretirement health and other bene 81.C 78.4 4.7 — 164.1
Minority interests in equity of subsidiari — — 121t — 121.t
Other noncurrent liabilitie 492.7 (116.0 838.4 — 1,215
Shareholder equity 5,206.1 6,875.( 12,363.. (19,238.) 5,206.1
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $8,475." $ 7,754.¢ $ 17,766.. $ (19,238.) $ 14,758.

(1) Negative cash balances at the Guarantors an-Guarantors reflect the balance in a worldwide gasdling arrangemen
(2) Includes investments in subsidiaries and net intagany balance:
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Year Ended September 30, 2005

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations __Consolidated
(In millions)
Cash provided (used) by operating activities of
continuing operations $ (627 $ 437.¢ $ 551.¢ $ $ 927 .
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditure (76.€) (249.9) (338.7) (664.7)
Sale of property, plant and equipm 3.C 6.C 30.2 39.2
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu — (61.€) (266.0) (327.9)
Business divestiture — — 678.t 678.
Recoverable customer engineering expendit — — (9.9 (9.8
Changes in lor-term investment 3.4 (0.7) 8.C 11.€
Cash (used) provided by investing activi (70.2) (305.9) 103.€ (272.9
Financing Activities:
(Decrease) increase in st-term deb— net (240.9) — 134.% (205.7)
Increase in lon-term debr — — 82.7 82.7
Repayment of lor-term debi (271.9) (20.5) (91.9) (373.9)
Change in intercompany accou (99.6€) (993.9 1,093.! —
Payment of cash dividen (191.9 — — (291.9
Other 65.2 — (19.9 45.
Cash (used) provided by financing activit (738.5) (1,004.9) 1,199.° (543.9)
Cash used by discontinued operati — — (69.2) (69.2)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and ¢
equivalents — — 29.F 29.F
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalent$ (871.() $ (872.9) $ 1,815.! $ $ 72.1
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Year Ended September 30, 2004

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In millions)
Cash provided (used) by operating activities of
continuing operations $(167.7) $ 144 $ 1,326.: $ — $ 1,303.:
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditure (43.9 (243.5) (496.7) — (783.5)
Sale of property, plant and equipm 1.€ 2.8 46.5 — 50.¢
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu — — (419.¢) — (419.6)
Recoverable customer engineering expendit — — (55.0 — (55.0
Changes in lor-term investment (2.9 (15.9) (7.3 — (25.6)
Cash used by investing activiti (45.2) (256.7) (931.5 — (1,232.9)
Financing Activities:
Increase in shc-term debi— net 653.3 — 6.€ — 659.¢
Increase in lon-term debr 83.7 — 130.1 — 213.¢
Repayment of lor-term debt (632.9) (12.5) (225.7) — (869.9)
Change in intercompany accou 575.¢ 24.2 (600.7) — —
Payment of cash dividen (170.%) — — — (170.7)
Other 48.€ 0.1 (14.9 — 34.5
Cash (used) provided by financing activit 558.t 11.¢ (702.9 — (132.¢)
Cash provided by discontinued operati — — 71.¢ — 71.¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents — — 5.€ — 5.€
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivale $ 345.t $ (99.6) $ (230.) $ — $ 15.:
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Year Ended September 30, 2003

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations __Consolidated
(In millions)
Cash provided (used) by operating activities of
continuing operations $(194.¢) $ 463. $ 542.¢ $ — 3 811.
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditure (28.¢) (210.)) (367.7) — (606.0)
Sale of property, plant and equipm 0.4 — 51.¢ — 52.2
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu — — (384.%) — (384.7)
Recoverable customer engineering expendit — — (46.0 — (46.0
Proceeds from sale of lo-term investmen 38.2 — — — 38.2
Changes in lor-term investment (3.9 (9.2 3.8 — (8.9
Cash provided (used) by investing activit 6.4 (219.9) (742.2) — (955.])
Financing Activities:
Increase (decrease) in st-term deb+— net 63.C — (10.7 — 52.¢
Increase in lon-term debr 500.( 7.2 3t — 510.%
Repayment of lor-term debi (239.9 (2.9 (133.9 — (376.7)
Change in intercompany accou (141.9) (226.)) 367.¢ — —
Payment of cash dividen (136.9) — — — (136.9)
Other 50.2 — (23.2) — 27.C
Cash (used) provided by financing activit 95.2 (221.9) 204.2 — 77.€
Cash used by discontinued operati — — (6.2) — (6.1
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cast
equivalents — — 9.3 — 9.3
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (93.2) $ 22.% $ 8.C $ — 3 (62.9)

22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in a number of praiiegs relating to environmental matters. At Septen®, 2005, the Company had an
accrued liability of approximately $65 million rélag to environmental matters compared with $6liomlone year ago. The Company’s
environmental liabilities do not take into consiat@n any possible recoveries of future insuranmoegeds. Because of the uncertainties
associated with environmental remediation actigjttae Company’s future expenses to remediateutrertly identified sites could be
considerably higher than the accrued liability.hélagh it is difficult to estimate the liability ¢fie Company related to these environmental
matters, the Company believes that these mattéraatihave a materially adverse effect upon ifgitz expenditures, earnings or competi
position. Costs related to such matters were néo¢riahto the periods presented.

Additionally, the Company is involved in amber of product liability and various other suitsident to the operation of its businesses.
Insurance coverages are maintained and estimastsl @e recorded for claims and suits of this matitiis managemergt'opinion that none
these will have a materially adverse effect onGbenpany’s financial position, results of operationgash flows. Costs related to such
matters were not material to the periods presented.
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In 1989, Johnson Controls initiated an actiothe Milwaukee County, Wisconsin Circuit Coulbhnson Controls, Inc. v. Employers
Insurance of Wausg, which sought reimbursement under comprehensiuergéliability insurance policies dating from 19%4#ough 1985
for costs relating to certain environmental matterd 995, the Circuit Court dismissed the actiasdd on the Wisconsin Supreme Court’s
decision inCity of Edgerton v. General Casualty Co. of Wis@oriBhe Company twice appealed the case to the Codtppéals and then
petitioned the Wisconsin Supreme Court to reviesvithver courts’ judgments. The Supreme Court grhtite petition and on July 11, 2003,
overruled its decision in thedgertoncase, and found that the comprehensive generditiiahsurance policies may provide coverage for
environmental damages. The Supreme Court’s decisimanded the case to the Circuit Court for furttwrsideration. In fiscal 2005, the
Company filed a motion for declaratory judgmentwinich it seeks a ruling that one of its insurarsaghed its duty to defend, thus waiving
defenses against the Company’s environmental cldliitms ultimate outcome cannot be determined attithis; however, the Company
expects a decision on its motion during fiscal 2006

23.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Unaudited)

On August 24, 2005, the Company enteredardefinitive agreement to acquire York Internaticd@arporation (York), a global supplier
of heating, ventilation, air-conditioning and rgiration equipment and services. York, which isdgeartered in York, Pennsylvania,
reported revenues of $4.5 billion for the year ehDecember 31, 2004, and has approximately 23,600ayees. As of December 1, 2005,
the Company expects to complete the acquisiticliedsat approximately $3.2 billion, including thesamption of approximately
$800 million of York debt, in December 2005. Untlez terms of the all cash transaction, the Compahyacquire all outstanding common
shares of York for $56.50 per share. The total caghired to complete the transaction is approxéfya#2.5 billion, which includes payment
for common shares, transaction fees and expenbesadquisition will be initially financed with sttderm borrowings, which the Company
intends to refinance with long term debt.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Year Ended September 30, (In millions 2005 2004 2003
Accounts Receivable — Allowance for Doubtful Accouts

Balance at beginning of peric $ 46.C $ 48. $ 43¢
Provision charged to costs and expet 24.¢ 23.4 17.1
Reserve adjustmen (10.7 (11.2 (9.2
Accounts charged o (16.7) (17.9) (23.9)
Acquisition of businesse 1.4 2.4 4.4
Currency translatio (0.5 2.5 4.4
Other 1.1 (0.7) 1.4
Balance at end of peric $ 47.C $ 46.C $ 48.C
Deferred Tax Assets— Valuation Allowance

Balance at beginning of peri $ 571.7 $ 4721 $ 352.
Allowance established for new operating and otbss karryforward 95.¢ 112.¢ 128.¢
Allowance reversed for loss carryforwards utilized other adjustmen (94.€) (13.2) (8.9
Balance at end of peric $ 572.¢ $ 571.7 $ 472.1

ITEM9 DISAGREEMENTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE:!

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclos@rControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the partidgrabf our management, including our principal exe® officer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disctestontrols and procedures, as such term is definddr Rule 1345(e) promulgated und
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendethlBe of the material weakness described belov dngpany has concluded that its
disclosure controls and procedures were ineffecth@eptember 30, 2005.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companyg management is responsible for establishing andtaiising adequate internal control over financegorting, as such tet
is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) undier $ecurities Exchange Act of 1934. The Compamy&rmal control over financial
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assarsggarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadbepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effieesis of the Company’s internal control over foalreporting as of September 30,
2005 using the criteria set forthlimternal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission (COSO).

A material weakness is a control deficieraycombination of control deficiencies, that resut more than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interimriitial statements will not be prevented or detectée. Company determined that as of
September 30, 2005, it did not maintain effectiatools over the identification and disclosure eduired guarantor subsidiary financial
statement information in the Company’s consolidditeaincial statements as required by Rule 3-10afuation S-X. Specifically, the
Company did not have effective controls, includihg communication between the Company’s TreasupaBment and Accounting
Department, to identify the required financial stagént disclosures to be included in the Companghsolidated financial statements resu
from subsidiary guarantees applicable to certdandybarty debt of the Company. This control defiig results in the restatement of the
Company’s fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 consolidditeghcial statements and our fiscal 2005 and fi26@4 interim consolidated financial
statements. In addition, this control deficienculdaresult in inaccurate or incomplete guarantdrsgdiary financial statement disclosures that
would result in a material misstatement to annuahterim financial statements that would not bevented or detected. Accordingly,
management has concluded that this deficiency itotest a material weakness.

Because of the material weakness describedealmanagement concluded that the Company dichaattain effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 208%l on criteria iinternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the COSO.

Management has excluded the recently acqoipedations of Delphi Corporation’s global battbasiness from its assessment of internal
control over financial reporting as of SeptemberZI5 because it was acquired by the Companyirréhase business combination in July
2005; total assets and total revenues of thesatipes represent approximately 4% and 1%, respygtiof the related consolidated financial
statement amounts as of and for the year ende@@bpt 30, 2005.

Managemens’ assessment of the effectiveness of our inteorgtal over financial reporting as of SeptemberZM5 has been audited
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registmrblic accounting firm, as stated in their répdrich is included herein.

Remediation Plan

The Company intends to implement enhancetr@isrand procedures surrounding the identificatiod reporting of required guarantor
subsidiary financial statement disclosures. Furttoee, the Company intends to rescind all intercamgpgpstream guarantees and replace
them with alternative intercompany arrangementsthEoextent new intercompany guarantees are refjiriréne future, the Company’s
Treasury Department will ensure that all intercompguarantees are maintained in its central repysdf external guarantees and reviewed
on a quarterly basis using a newly developed clstckh addition, the Company’s Accounting Depanmineill review the central repository
of guarantees in conjunction with its preparatiod éling of the Company’s quarterly reports on ot0-Q and annual reports on Form 10-
K. While we believe that the remedial actions wéult in correcting the material weakness in aternal control over financial reporting, t
exact timing of when the conditions will be corestis dependent upon future events.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In connection with the restatement discussédote 18 to the Company’s consolidated finanstatements included herein, management
concluded that, for periods prior to April 1, 20@%¢re had been a material weakness
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in internal control over financial reporting ovletaccounting for certain non-majority owned afitis as required by SFAS 94,
“Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subsidiarieghd APB 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting fovestments in Common Stock.”
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Comp#ook a series of steps designed to improve ¢idral processes regarding the applice
of SFAS 94 and APB 18 to the accounting for itdiafed entities and the related consolidation uersquity accounting requirements.
Specifically, the Company expanded its review gmgiraval procedures at the Business Unit and Cotpdeael related to joint venture
agreements using a newly developed checklist, req@FO and Controller review and approval of atyasion where the Company is not
consolidating a joint venture in which it has amigginterest greater than 50% or where the Compaepnsolidating a joint venture in whi
it has an equity interest of 50% or less, estabtisiormal quarterly review requirements relatethtidentification of any ownership, busin
or operational responsibility changes at its joiemtures and related accounting assessments, hadad global training regarding joint
venture accounting and the related authoritatiidance. Accordingly, Company management has corditidat newly designed controls |
operated effectively for a sufficient period of &rto conclude that the control deficiency had beemediated as of September 30, 2005.

Other than the changes discussed above, thgeebeen no significant changes in the Compantgsnal control over financial reporting
during the quarter ended September 30, 2005, thet imaterially affected, or are reasonably likelyaterially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Howevsubsequent to September 30, 2005, the Companythealemedial actions described in
“Remediation Plan” above.

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART 1lI

The information required by Part Ill, Item3, 111, 12 and 14, is incorporated herein by refegdn the Company’s Proxy Statement for its
2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (fiscal yedi®Broxy Statement), dated and filed with the SE@ecember 12, 2005, as follows:

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Incorporated by reference to sections edititlroposal One: Election of Directors,” “Board dnfnation,” “Board Compensation,”
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coiaapte,” “Q: How can | obtain Corporate Governanagenals for Johnson Controls if |
do not have access to the Internet?” and “Audit @ittee Report'of the fiscal year 2005 Proxy Statement. Requindéarimation on executi
officers of the Company appears on pages 14-1@uflRf this report.

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference to sections eudtittexecutive Compensation,” “Compensation Commieport,” “Performance Graph,”
“Board Information” and “Employment Agreements”toe fiscal year 2005 Proxy Statement.

” o«

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT

Incorporated by reference to sections edtitlohnson Controls Share Ownership” and “Equitynpensation Plan Information” of the
fiscal year 2005 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
None.

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference to the sectiortledti’Audit Committee Report” of the fiscal year@DProxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Page in
Form 10-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ fform 1¢-K:
(1) Financial Statemen
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 42
Consolidated Statement of Income for the yearseé&@ptember 30, 2005, 2004 and 2 45
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at&eper 30, 2005 and 20! 46
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yeaded September 30, 2005, 2004 and : 47
Consolidated Statement of Sharehol’ Equity for the years ended September 30, 2005, 266400: 48
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 49
(2) Financial Statement Sched
For the years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 @81
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 89

(3) Exhibits
Reference is made to the separate exhibiximdntained on pages 94 through 95 filed herewith.

All other schedules are omitted because #neynot applicable, or the required informatioshiswn in the financial statements or notes
thereto.

Financial statements of 50 percent or lessesixcompanies have been omitted because the pooyade share of their profit before
income taxes and total assets are less than 28raartthe respective consolidated amounts, angsinvents in such companies are less than
20 percent of consolidated total assets.

Other Matters

For the purposes of complying with the ameexis to the rules governing Form S-8 under the i@&=uAct of 1933, the undersigned
registrant hereby undertakes as follows, which wa#taing shall be incorporated by reference intastegnt's Registration Statements on
Form S-8 Nos. 33-30309, 33-31271, 33-58092, 33-58893-10707, 333-66073, 333-41564 and 333-117898.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilitiesising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be pgedito directors, officers and controlling
persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregpiogisions, or otherwise, the registrant has abnsed that in the opinion of the SEC such
indemnification is against public policy as expessi the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefaresnforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (otherrnithe payment by the registrant of expenses indwreaid by a director, officer or
controlling person of the registrant in the sucidstefense of any action, suit or proceeding)siseated by such director, officer or controll
person in connection with the securities beingsteged, the registrant will, unless in the opinibiits counsel the matter has been settled by
controlling precedent, submit to a court of appiaterjurisdiction the question whether such inddinaiion by it is against public policy as
expressed in the Act and will be governed by thelfadjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas caused this report to be signe
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly aigkd.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC

By: /sl R. Bruce McDonal

R. Bruce McDonalc
Vice President an
Chief Financial Officel

Date: December 9, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bakwaf December 9, 2005, by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities indicated.

/sl John M. Barth /sl Stephen A. Roell

John M. Barth Stephen A. Roell

President, Chief Executive Officer Vice Chairman and

and Director (Chairmar Executive Vice Presidel

/s/ R. Bruce McDonald /sl Jeffrey G. Augustin

R. Bruce McDonald Jeffrey G. Augustin

Vice President and Vice President and Corporate

Chief Financial Officer Controller (Principal Accounting
Officer)

/s/ Paul A. Brunner /s/ Natalie A. Black

Director Director

/sl Robert A. Cornog /sl Richard F. Teerlink

Director Director

s/ Willie D. Davis sl Jeffrey A. Joerres

Director Director

/sl Robert L. Barnett /s/ William H. Lacy

Director Director
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Exhibits

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Title

3.)

3.(ii)

4.A

4.B

4.C

4.D

10.A

10.B

10.C

10.D

10.E

10.F

10.G

10H

1.1

10J

10K

Composite of Restated Articles of IncorporationJofinson Controls, Inc., as amended through Decet#her
2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.@)}Jbhnson Controls, Inc. Quarterly Report on FobaQlfor the
quarter ended December 31, 20(

By-laws of Johnson Controls, Inc., as amended 2u)\2005 (incorporated by reference to ExhibitiBtéi
Johnson Controls, Inc. Current Report on Fo-K dated July 27, 2005

Miscellaneous long-term debt agreements and fimgnleiases with banks and other creditors and defent
indentures.’

Miscellaneous industrial development bond I-term debt issues and related loan agreements aselsl¢

Letter of agreement dated December 6, 1990 betdeemson Controls, Inc., LaSalle National Trust, N\aAd
Fidelity Management Trust Company which replaceSdl National Trust, N.A. as Trustee of the Johnso
Controls, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan Twitgh Fidelity Management Trust Company as Successor
Trustee, effective January 1, 1991 (incorporatedeligrence to Exhibit 4.F to Johnson Controls, kanual
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 19

Indenture for debt securities dated February 29518:tween Johnson Controls, Inc. and Chemical Bank
Delaware (now known as Chase Bank), trustee (ircatpd by reference to Johnson Controls, Inc. Redjisn
Statement on Form-3, [Reg. No. 3-57685]).

Johnson Controls, Inc. 1992 Stock Option Plan asnaled through January 24, 1996 (incorporated lereate
to Exhibit 10.A to Johnson Controls, Inc. Annualp@g on Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 199¢

Johnson Controls, Inc. Common Stock Purchase BlaEXecutives as amended November 17, 2004 and
effective December 1, 2004 (incorporated by refeeein Exhibit 10.B to Johnson Controls, Inc. AnnRaport
on Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2004

Johnson Contrals, Inc. 1992 Stock Option Plan fotsfdle Directors (incorporated by reference to BixHi0.D tc
Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Report on Forr-K for the year ended September 30, 19

Johnson Controls, Inc. Deferred Compensation Ria€értain Directors as amended through Octob2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.D to J@me€ontrols, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K foe grear
ended September 30, 200

Johnson Contrals, Inc. Executive Incentive Comptmsdlan as amended through October 1, 2001 (rucatec
by reference to Exhibit 10.F to Johnson Contrals, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 2001).’

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Incentive Compemsdlan, Deferred Option, Qualified Plan as anashand
restated effective October 1, 2003, (incorporatecetierence to Exhibit C of the Definitive ProxyaBtment of
Johnson Controls, Inc. filed on Schedule 14A onddelger 4, 2003) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Long-Term Performance Rlaramended and restated effective October 1, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit B of the Dé#five Proxy Statement of Johnson Controls, Iredfion
Schedule 14A on December 4, 2003) (CommissionNrilel-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Survivor Bend®itan amended through October 1, 2001 (incorpoiaed
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Kaenual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Sapier 30,
2001).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Equalization Benefit Planamended through October 1, 2003 (incorporateefeyence
to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Annualp@e on Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2004

Johnson Controls, Inc. PERT Equalization BenefiinPhs amended through October 1, 2003 (incorpbiate
reference to Exhibit 10.J to Johnson Controls, Mmual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended September
2003).**

Form of employment agreement effective May 23, 2@@5ween Johnson Controls, Inc. and all electéder$
and certain key executives (incorporated by refagdn Exhibit 99 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Curf@aport on



Form ¢-K dated May 23, 2005).*
10L Form of indemnity agreement effective Septembei2R05, between Johnson Controls, Inc. and eadteof t

directors, elected officers, and certain execut{iresorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to kimControls,
Inc. Current Report on Forn-K dated September 21, 2005).

94




Table of Contents

Exhibits

Title

10.M

10.N

10.0

10.P

10.Q

10.R

10.S

10T

10U

10V

1ow

10.X

12

21
23

311

31.2

32

Johnson Controls, Inc., Director Share Unit Planamended through October 1, 2003 (incorporategfeyence
to Exhibit 10.M to Johnson Controls, Inc. AnnualpiRet on Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 20

Johnson Controls, Inc., 2000 Stock Option Plagmsnded through October 1, 2001 (incorporated feyarce
to Exhibit 10.N to Johnson Controls, Inc. AnnuapBe on Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 200:

Form of stock option award agreement for Johnsamti@ts, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendealiin
October 1, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Bkhib.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Current ReporEorm 8-K
dated November 17, 2004).

Johnson Controls, Inc., 2001 Restricted Stock Rlamended and restated effective October 1, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit E of the Diive Proxy Statement of Johnson Controls, Inedfion
Schedule 14A on December 4, 2003) (CommissionNrilel-5097).**

Form of restricted stock award agreement for Jami@&antrols, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan, asraiee and
restated effective October 1, 2003, as in use tirdanuary, 2004, filed herewith.

Form of restricted stock award agreement for Jami@antrols, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan, asraiee and
restated effective October 1, 2003, as approvedderfor future grants, filed herewith.

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Deferred Compéms&tlan, as amended through October 1, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.P to JohnSontrols, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K foe frear
ended September 30, 2004)

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan for OutBigtectors, effective October 1, 2003 (incorporagd
reference to Exhibit D of the Definitive Proxy Statent of Johnson Controls, Inc. filed on Scheddl& &én
December 4, 2003) (Commission File N-5097).

Letter agreement dated November 29, 2004 amendogga@ni Fiori's Executive Employment Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.S to JoimnSontrols, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtfor
quarter ended March 31, 2005), relating to thetetgreement dated November 21, 2002 amending @ibva
Fiori's Executive Employment Agreement (incorpodhls reference to Exhibit 10.R to Johnson Contiloils,
Annual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended September 30, 2003), andetdohnson Controls, Inc. Execui
Survivor Benefits Plan (incorporated by referere&xhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Bepn
Form 1(-K for the year ended September 30, 2001

Agreement and Plan of Merger between Johnson Qentnz., YJC Acquisition Corp., and York Interratal
Corp. effective August 24, 2005 (incorporated fgmence to Exhibit 2 to Johnson Controls, Inc. €ntiReport
on Form ¢K/A dated August 24, 2005

Share Purchase Agreement between Valeo S.A. am$dolControls Automotive Electronics SAS dated
January 10, 2005 (incorporated by reference toltixh0.U to Johnson Controls, Inc. Quarterly Report
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

Stock Purchase Agreement between IAP Worldwidei&esvnc. and Johnson Controls, Inc. dated as of
December 17, 2004 (incorporated by reference Exhihil to Johnson Controls, Inc. Quarterly Repart o
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

Statement regarding computation of ratio of eamitogfixed charges for the year ended Septembe2(ih, filec
herewith.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herew
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriiing dated December 9, 2005, filed herew

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20itxd
herewith.

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20itad
herewith.

Certification of Periodic Financial Report by thhi€f Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offigeursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewitt



* These instruments are not being filed as aiiterewith because none of the long-term deltunsents authorizes the issuance of debt
in excess of ten percent of the total assets afslmhControls, Inc. and its subsidiaries on a diretied basis. Johnson Controls, Inc.
agrees to furnish a copy of each such agreemehetSecurities and Exchange Commission upon rec

Denotes a management contract or compensatory

*%
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Exhibit 10.Q

JAHNSON
CONTRELS

RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT

GRANTED TO SOCIAL SECURITY NO. NUMBER OF SHARES
XXXXXXXXXXXXX XXX =XX -XXXX XXXXX
GRANT DATE STOCK PRICE RESTRICTION PERIOD
ENDS ON:
XXXXXXXXXXXXXX TBD XXXXX Shares — XXXXXXXXX

XXXXX Shares — XXXXXXXXX

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN

This certifies that on , Johnson Controls, Inc., shall grant a Restricted Stock Award as indicated above, upon the
terms and conditions in this Agreement and the terms of the Restricted Stock Plan dated October 1, 2001, which terms the
Participant accepts.

Johnson Controls, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation, has its principal office in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, (the “Company”). The Restricted
Stock Plan (the “Plan”) was adopted October 1, 2001, to allow Restricted Shares or Restricted Share Units of the Company’s
common stock (“Shares”) to be granted to certain key employees of the Company or any Subsidiary, as defined in Section 425(f)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Subsidiary”).

The individual named in this agreement (the “Participant”) is a key employee of the Company or a Subsidiary, and the Company
desires the Participant to remain in such employ by providing the Participant with a means to increase his/her proprietary interest
in the Company’s success. The Plan and this Agreement shall be administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors (the “Committee”). If at any time the Committee shall not be in existence, the Board shall administer the Plan and this
Agreement and each reference to the Committee herein shall be deemed to include the Board.




The parties mutually agree as follows:

1. Grant of Award . Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan, a copy of which has been delivered to the Participant and
made a part hereof, and this Agreement, the Company grants to the Participant an award of Restricted Shares on the date and
with respect to the number of Shares specified above. The Participant may elect, prior to or within thirty (30) days after the
grant date, to convert the Award, in whole or in part, to Restricted Share Units. If the Participant fails to make an election, the
Award shall remain in the form of Restricted Shares. Any capitalized terms not defined in this Agreement will have the
meanings provided in the Plan.

2. Restricted Shares . If the Award is in the form of Restricted Shares, the Restricted shares are subject to the following
provisions:

Restriction Period. The Company will hold the Restricted Shares in escrow for the Restriction Period. During this period, the
Participant may not sell, transfer, pledge, assign or otherwise use these Restricted Shares, and the Restricted Shares shall be
subject to forfeiture as provided in Section 4.

Each certificate representing Restricted Shares will bear a restrictive legend while held in escrow.

a) Removal of Restrictions. Restricted Shares that have not been forfeited shall become available to the Participant after the
last day of the Restriction Period. Once the Shares are released from the restrictions, the legend shall be removed from
the Participant’s stock certificate.

b) Voting Rights . During the Restriction Period, the Participant may exercise full voting rights with respect to the Restricted
Shares.

c) Dividends and Other Distributions . Any dividends or other distributions paid or delivered with respect to Restricted Shares
will be subject to the same terms and conditions (including risk of forfeiture) as the Restricted Shares to which they relate.
All dividends or other distributions paid or delivered with respect to Restricted Shares during the Restriction Period shall
be allocated to a Share Unit account or other investment account selected by the Participant under the Deferred
Compensation Plan.

3. Restricted Share Units. If the Participant elects to convert all or part of this Award to Restricted Share Units, the Restricted
Share Units are subject to the following terms:

a) Establishment of Account . The Company shall establish a bookkeeping account under the Deferred Compensation Plan
to which shall be credited the number of Restricted Share Units elected. During the Restriction Period, the Restricted
Share Unit account will be subject to a risk of forfeiture as provided in Section 4.

b) Alienation of Account . The Participant (or beneficiary) shall not have any right to assign, transfer, pledge, encumber or
otherwise use the Restricted Share Unit account (including after the Restriction Period has lapsed).
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d)

Dividends and Other Distributions . The Participant’'s Restricted Share Unit account shall be credited for any dividends or
other distributions delivered on Shares equivalent to the number of Restricted Share Units credited to such account,
whether in the form of cash or in property, in accordance with the terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan. Such credit
shall be subject to the same terms and conditions (including risk of forfeiture) as the Restricted Share Units to which they
relate.

Payment of Account . The value of the Participant’s Share Unit account as to which the Restriction Period has lapsed shall
be paid to the Participant (or his beneficiary) in accordance with the terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan.

. Termination of Employment — Risk of Forfeiture.

a)

b)

Retirement . If the Participant terminates employment from the Company and its Subsidiaries due to Retirement, any
remaining Restriction Period shall continue as if the Participant continued in active employment. If the Participant engages
in Inimical Conduct after his Retirement, as determined by the Committee, any Restricted Shares and/or Restricted Share
Units still subject to a Restriction Period shall automatically be forfeited as of the date of the Committee’s determination.

Death or Disability . If the Participant’s employment from the Company and its Subsidiaries terminates because of death
or Total and Permanent Disability at a time when the Participant could not have been terminated for Cause, or if the
Participant dies after Retirement while this Award is still subject to the Restriction Period, any remaining Restriction Period
shall automatically lapse as of the date of such termination of employment or death, as applicable.

Other Termination. If the Participant's employment terminates for any reason not described above, then any Restricted
Shares and/or Restricted Share Units (and all deferred dividends paid or credited thereon) still subject to the Restriction
Period as of the date of such termination shall automatically be forfeited and returned to the Company. In the event of the
Participant’s involuntary termination of employment by the Company or a Subsidiary for other than Cause, the Committee
may waive the automatic forfeiture of any or all such Shares or Share Units (and all deferred dividends paid or credited
thereon) and may add such new restrictions to such Restricted Shares or Restricted Share Units as it deems appropriate.
The Company may suspend payment or delivery of Shares (without liability for interest thereon) pending the Committee’s
determination of whether the Participant was or should have been terminated for Cause or whether the Participant has
engaged in Inimical Conduct.

. Amendment of Agreement. The Committee, subject to the provisions of the Restricted Stock Plan, may amend this award
agreement.

. Withholding. The Participant agrees to remit to the Company any foreign, Federal, state and/or local taxes (including the
Participant’s FICA obligation) required by law to be withheld with respect to the issuance of Shares or the vesting and/or
distribution of the Participant’s Share Unit account. The Company can withhold Shares no longer restricted, or can withhold
from other cash or property payable to the Participant, in the amount needed to satisfy any withholding obligations.
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10.

The Participant may elect to tender to the Company previously acquired Shares to satisfy the minimum tax withholding
obligations. The value of the Shares to be tendered is to be based on the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the date that
the amount of tax to be withheld is determined.

Securities Compliance. The Company may place a legend or legends upon the certificates for Shares issued under the
Plan and may issue “stop transfer” instructions to its transfer agent in respect of such Shares as it determines to be
necessary or appropriate to (a) prevent a violation of, or to obtain an exemption from, the registration requirements of the
Securities Act, applicable state securities laws or other legal requirements, or (b) implement the provisions of the Plan or any
agreement between the Company and the Participant with respect to such Shares.

Successors. All obligations of the Company under this Agreement shall be binding on any successor to the Company. The
terms of this Agreement and the Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Participants, heirs, executors,
administrators or legal representatives.

Legal Compliance. The granting of this Award and the issuance of Shares under this Agreement shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules, and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national securities exchanges
as may be required.

Governing Law; Arbitration.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Wisconsin.

Arbitration will be conducted per the provisions in the Restricted Stock Plan.

This Agreement, and any documents expressly incorporated herein, contains all of the provisions applicable to the Restricted
Stock Award. No other statements, documents or practices may modify, waive or alter such provisions unless expressly set forth
in writing, signed by an authorized officer of the Company and delivered to the Participant.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Restricted Stock Agreement to be executed by one of its duly authorized
officers, and the Participant has consented to the terms of this Agreement, as of the date of Grant specified on the front of this
certificate.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

Jerome D. Okarma
Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel

Participant Date



Exhibit 10.R

JAHNSON
CONTRSLS

RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT

GRANTED TO SOCIAL SECURITY NO. NUMBER OF SHARES
Employee Name HH#-HHE-HitH#H it
GRANT DATE STOCK PRICE RESTRICTION PERIOD
ENDS ON:
mm/dd/yyyy BXX.XX # Shares — mm/dd/yyyy

# Shares — mm/dd/lyyyy

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN

This certifies that on mm/dd/yyyy, Johnson Controls, Inc., shall grant a Restricted Stock Award as indicated above, upon the terms
and conditions in this Agreement and the terms of the Restricted Stock Plan dated October 1, 2001, and Amended January 28,
2004, which terms the Participant accepts.

Johnson Controls, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation, has its principal office in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, (the “Company”). The Restricted
Stock Plan (the “Plan”) was adopted October 1, 2001, to allow Restricted Shares or Restricted Share Units of the Company’s
common stock (“Shares”) to be granted to certain key employees of the Company or any Subsidiary, as defined in Section 425(f)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Subsidiary”).

The individual named in this agreement (the “Participant”) is a key employee of the Company or a Subsidiary, and the Company
desires the Participant to remain in such employ by providing the Participant with a means to increase his/her proprietary interest
in the Company’s success. The Plan and this Agreement shall be administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors (the “Committee”). If at any time the Committee shall not be in existence, the Board shall administer the Plan and this
Agreement and each reference to the Committee herein shall be deemed to include the Board.




The parties mutually agree as follows:

1. Grant of Award . Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan, a copy of which has been delivered to the Participant and
made a part hereof, and this Agreement, the Company grants to the Participant an award of Restricted Shares on the date and
with respect to the number of Shares specified above. The Participant may elect, prior to or within thirty (30) days after the
grant date, to convert the Award, in whole or in part, to Restricted Share Units. If the Participant fails to make an election, the
Award shall remain in the form of Restricted Shares. Any capitalized terms not defined in this Agreement will have the
meanings provided in the Plan.

2. Restricted Shares . If the Award is in the form of Restricted Shares, the Restricted shares are subject to the following
provisions:

Restriction Period. The Company will hold the Restricted Shares in escrow for the Restriction Period. During this period, the
Participant may not sell, transfer, pledge, assign or otherwise use these Restricted Shares, and the Restricted Shares shall be
subject to forfeiture as provided in Section 4.

Restricted Shares will be held in a book entry share position, subject to a notation concerning the restrictions to which
Restricted Shares are subject, while held in escrow.

a) Removal of Restrictions. Restricted Shares that have not been forfeited shall become available to the Participant after the
last day of the Restriction Period. Once the Shares are released, the restrictions shall be removed from the Participant's
book entry share position.

b) Voting Rights . During the Restriction Period, the Participant may exercise full voting rights with respect to the Restricted
Shares.

c) Dividends and Other Distributions . Any dividends or other distributions paid or delivered with respect to Restricted Shares
will be subject to the same terms and conditions (including risk of forfeiture) as the Restricted Shares to which they relate.
All dividends or other distributions paid or delivered with respect to Restricted Shares during the Restriction Period shall
be allocated to a Share Unit account under the Deferred Compensation Plan.

d) Payment of Dividends . The value of the Participant’s Share Unit account as to which the Restriction Period has lapsed
shall be paid to the Participant (or his beneficiary).

3. Restricted Share Units. If the Participant elects to convert all or part of this Award to Restricted Share Units, the Restricted
Share Units are subject to the following terms:

a) Establishment of Account . The Company shall establish a bookkeeping account under the Deferred Compensation Plan
to which shall be credited the number of Restricted Share Units elected. During the Restriction Period, the Restricted
Share Unit account will be subject to a risk of forfeiture as provided in Section 4.

b) Alienation of Account . The Participant (or beneficiary) shall not have any right to assign, transfer, pledge, encumber or
otherwise use the Restricted Share Unit account (including after the Restriction Period has lapsed).

c) Dividends and Other Distributions . The Participant’s Restricted Share Unit account shall be credited for any dividends or
other distributions delivered on Shares equivalent to the number of Restricted Share Units credited to such account,
whether in the form of cash or in property, in accordance with the terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan. Such credit
shall be subject to the same terms and conditions (including risk of forfeiture) as the Restricted Share Units to which they
relate.
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d) Payment of Account . The value of the Participant’s Share Unit account as to which the Restriction Period has lapsed shall
be paid to the Participant (or his beneficiary) in accordance with the terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan.

4. Termination of Employment — Risk of Forfeiture.

a) Retirement . If the Participant terminates employment from the Company and its Subsidiaries due to Retirement, any
remaining Restriction Period shall continue as if the Participant continued in active employment. If the Participant engages
in Inimical Conduct after his Retirement, as determined by the Committee, any Restricted Shares and/or Restricted Share
Units still subject to a Restriction Period shall automatically be forfeited as of the date of the Committee’s determination.

b) Death or Disability . If the Participant’s employment from the Company and its Subsidiaries terminates because of death
or Total and Permanent Disability at a time when the Participant could not have been terminated for Cause, or if the
Participant dies after Retirement while this Award is still subject to the Restriction Period, any remaining Restriction Period
shall automatically lapse as of the date of such termination of employment or death, as applicable.

c) Other Termination. If the Participant’s employment terminates for any reason not described above, then any Restricted
Shares and/or Restricted Share Units (and all deferred dividends paid or credited thereon) still subject to the Restriction
Period as of the date of such termination shall automatically be forfeited and returned to the Company. In the event of the
Participant’s involuntary termination of employment by the Company or a Subsidiary for other than Cause, the Committee
may waive the automatic forfeiture of any or all such Shares or Share Units (and all deferred dividends paid or credited
thereon) and may add such new restrictions to such Restricted Shares or Restricted Share Units as it deems appropriate.
The Company may suspend payment or delivery of Shares (without liability for interest thereon) pending the Committee’s
determination of whether the Participant was or should have been terminated for Cause or whether the Participant has
engaged in Inimical Conduct.

5. Amendment of Agreement. The Committee, subject to the provisions of the Restricted Stock Plan, may amend this award
agreement.

6. Withholding. The Participant agrees to remit to the Company any foreign, Federal, state and/or local taxes (including the
Participant’s FICA obligation) required by law to be withheld with respect to the issuance of Shares or the vesting and/or
distribution of the Participant’s Share Unit account. The Company can withhold Shares no longer restricted, or can withhold
from other cash or property payable to the Participant, in the amount needed to satisfy any withholding obligations.

The Participant may elect to tender to the Company previously acquired Shares to satisfy the minimum tax withholding
obligations. The value of the Shares to be tendered is to be based on the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the date that the
amount of tax to be withheld is determined.
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7. Securities Compliance. The Company may place a legend or legends upon the certificates for Shares issued under the Plan,
or notations relating to book entry share positions, and may issue “stop transfer” instructions to its transfer agent in respect of
such Shares as it determines to be necessary or appropriate to (a) prevent a violation of, or to obtain an exemption from, the
registration requirements of the Securities Act, applicable state securities laws or other legal requirements, or (b) implement the
provisions of the Plan or any agreement between the Company and the Participant with respect to such Shares.

8. Successors. All obligations of the Company under this Agreement shall be binding on any successor to the Company. The
terms of this Agreement and the Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Participants, heirs, executors,
administrators or legal representatives.

9. Legal Compliance. The granting of this Award and the issuance of Shares under this Agreement shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules, and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national securities exchanges
as may be required.

10. Governing Law; Arbitration.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Wisconsin.

Arbitration will be conducted per the provisions in the Restricted Stock Plan.

This Agreement, and any documents expressly incorporated herein, contains all of the provisions applicable to the Restricted
Stock Award. No other statements, documents or practices may modify, waive or alter such provisions unless expressly set forth
in writing, signed by an authorized officer of the Company and delivered to the Participant.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Restricted Stock Agreement to be executed by one of its duly authorized
officers, and the Participant has consented to the terms of this Agreement, as of the date of Grant specified on the front of this
certificate.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

Jerome D. Okarma
Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel

Participant Date
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EXHIBIT 21

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
Following is a list of significant subsidiariesthe Company, as defined by section 1.02(w) of Re&gn S-X, as of December 1, 2005.

JURISDICTION
WHERE
SUBSIDIARY IS
NAME INCORPORATED
Autoseat SA de C) Mexico
Beijing Johnson Controls Co. Lt China
Borg Instruments AC Germany
Brookfield LePage Johnson Controls Facility ManagetBervices, Ltc Canade
Building Services S.r. Italy
Commer 1 S.r.l Italy
Controles Reynosa SA de C Mexico
Cybertron Systems (Pty) Lt South Africa
Enertec Mexico S. de R.L. de C. Mexico
Ensamble de Interiores Automotrices, S. de R.LCdé Mexico
Erste JCI Holding Gmbt Germany
Hoover Universal, Inc Michigan
Intertec Systems, LL! Michigan
JCI Regelungstechnik GmbH (1 Germany
Johnson Control Sp. Italy
Johnson Controls & Summit Interiors L Thailand
Johnson Controls (India) Private Limit India
Johnson Controls (M) Sdn Bl Malaysia
Johnson Controls (S) Pte. L Singapore

Johnson Controls (UK) Ltc

Johnson Controls Alagon, S.

United Kingdom

Spain




NAME

Johnson Controls Australia Pty. L

Johnson Controls Austria GmbH & Co OF

Johnson Controls Automation Systems

Johnson Controls Automobilove Soucastky,
Johnson Controls Automotive (Belgium) M
Johnson Controls Automotive (Pty) LI

Johnson Controls Automotive (UK) Lt

Johnson Controls Automotive Electronics S
Johnson Controls Automotive Holding (Malaysia) &hd
Johnson Controls Automotive N

Johnson Controls Automotive S.r.|

Johnson Controls Automotive S/

Johnson Controls Automotive Spain S

Johnson Controls Automotive Systems Corporatior
Johnson Controls Automotive Systems £

Johnson Controls Batterien GmbH & Co. |
Johnson Controls Batterien Verwaltungsgesellsahaft
Johnson Controls Batteries (UK) Li

Johnson Controls Batteries France S.s

Johnson Controls Battery Group, |i

Johnson Controls Battery Sweden Kommandith
Johnson Controls de Mexico SA de ¢

Johnson Controls do Brasil Automotive Lti
Johnson Controls Espana S

Johnson Controls Eurosit S.

Johnson Controls France S.A

JURISDICTION
WHERE
SUBSIDIARY IS
INCORPORATED

Australia
Austria
Netherland
Czech Republi
Belgium

South Africa
United Kingdom
France
Malaysia
Belgium

Italy

France

Spain

Japar
Argentina
Germany
Germany
United Kingdom
France
Wisconsin
Sweder
Mexico

Brazil

Spain

Spain

France




NAME

Johnson Controls Gmb

Johnson Controls GmbH & Co. K

Johnson Controls Headliner Gml

Johnson Controls Holding Company, |

Johnson Controls Holding SA

Johnson Controls Hong Kong L{

Johnson Controls Il Assentos de Espuma,
Johnson Controls Integrated Facility Management
Johnson Controls Interiors GmbH & Co. k
Johnson Controls Interiors LL

Johnson Controls International spol s.

Johnson Controls International spol s.

Johnson Controls Investment Gm

Johnson Controls Investments (U.K.) L

Johnson Controls KI

Johnson Controls L.

Johnson Controls Management Comp

Johnson Controls Martorell, S.A.Johnson Controlsuity Systems S/
Johnson Controls MC International S.A

Johnson Controls Nederland E

Johnson Controls Norden #

Johnson Controls Objekt Bochum GmbH & Co.
Johnson Controls Objekt Zwickau GmbH & Co. |
Johnson Controls Roth Freres Insitu Technologie B&KCo. KG
Johnson Controls Roth S

Johnson Controls SA/N'

Johnson Controls Sach«-Batterien Beteiligungs Gmb

JURISDICTION
WHERE
SUBSIDIARY IS
INCORPORATED

Germany
Germany
Germany
Delaware
France

Hong Kong
Portugal
Netherland:
Germany
Michigan
Czech Republi
Slovak Republic
Germany
United Kingdom
Japar

Canade
Minnesota
Spain

France
Netherland
Norway
Germany
Germany
Germany
France
Belgium

Germany




JURISDICTION

WHERE
SUBSIDIARY IS
NAME INCORPORATED
Johnson Controls Sach+-Batterien GmbH & Co. K( Germany
Johnson Controls SR Italy
Johnson Controls Sweden / Sweder
Johnson Controls Systems A. Switzerland
Johnson Controls Technology Comp: Michigan
Johnson Controls Valladolid SA Spain
Johnson Controls World Services | Florida
Optima Batteries AE Sweder
Optima Batteries, Inc Colorada
Sicar BVJohnson Controls Automotive (Netherlands) Netherland
Sistemas Automotrice Summa SA de Mexico
TechnoTrim, Inc Michigan
Trim Masters Inc Kentucky
Varta Automotive GmbHAC Germany

VB Autobatterie KGoA

Germany



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

EXHIBIT 23

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 anchFx48 listed below of Johnson
Controls, Inc. of our report dated December 2, 2@0&ting to the financial statements, financiatesment schedule, management'’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting and the effectivenesitdrnal control over financial reporting,
which appears in this Form 10-K.

1.

© © N o g s~ w DN

e i e
w b B O

Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No

Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No

Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No.
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No.
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No.
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

[, John M. Barth, President and Chief Executivei@@if of Johnson Controls, Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Johnson Controls, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comjnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets. under which such statements were made, nigamisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ adimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 1-15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over finahm@gorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presentad report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materialak@esses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidf’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatothwes management or other employees who have Hisag role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: December 9, 2005

/s/ John M. Bartt

John M. Bartt
President and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, R. Bruce McDonald, Vice President and Chief ficial Officer of Johnson Controls, Inc., certifyath
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Johnson Controls, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comjnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets. under which such statements were made, nigamisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ adimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 1-15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over finahm@gorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presentad report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materialak@esses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidf’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatothwes management or other employees who have Hisag role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: December 9, 2005

/s/ R. Bruce McDonal
R. Bruce McDonalc
Vice President an
Chief Financial Officel




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS

We, John M. Barth, President and Chief Executivic®f, and R. Bruce McDonald, Vice President anie€Rinancial Officer, of Johnson
Controls, Inc., certify, pursuant to Section 90@he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for jfemr ended September 30, 2005 (the “Periodic R§gornivhich this statement is an
exhibit fully complies with the requirements of 8en 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange éfct934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d))
and

(2) information contained in the Periodic Regairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operati
of Johnson Controls, In

Dated: December 9, 2005

/s/ John M. Bartl

John M. Bartt
President and Chief Executive Offic

/s/ R. Bruce McDonal

R. Bruce McDonalc
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
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